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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TRBEUAREEEANRRE DM

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2018.

OVERALL REVIEW

On 7 February 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of
the entire issued share capital of Motto Investment Limited
("Motto"”) and the shareholder’s loan notes (the “Acquisition”)
from AVIC International (HK) Group Limited ("AVIC
International (HK) Group”), an intermediate holding company,
at an aggregate nominal consideration of HK$2,400,000,000,
of which HK$1,400,000,000 was satisfied by way of allotment
and issue of shares of the Company and HK$1,000,000,000
was satisfied by cash. Further details of the Acquisition were
included in the circular of the Company dated 29 December
2017. The core business of Motto and its subsidiaries (“Motto
Group”) is the general aviation aircraft piston engine business
which engages in the design, development and production of
general aviation aircraft piston engines and spare parts as well
as the provision of aftermarket services and support for piston
engines.

During the year, the Group disposed of the entire issued share
capital of Ease Triumph International Limited (“Ease Triumph")
and the outstanding shareholder’s loans and interests owed by
Ease Triumph to the Company, to Shengtong Holding Limited
(the “Disposal”).
in the property development and investment business. The

Ease Triumph and its subsidiaries engaged

Disposal is part of a wider restructuring campaign being
implemented by the state-owned Assets Supervision and
Further
details of the Disposal were included in the circular of the
Company dated 25 October 2018. In 2018, the revenue of
this discontinued operation amounted to HK$41,095,000
(2017: HK$1,520,710,000). Together with the after-tax gain
on disposal of subsidiaries of HK$568,550,000 (2017: Nil)
recorded, the profit from this discontinued operation was
HK$507,569,000 (2017: loss of HK$267,833,000).

Administration Commission of the State Council.
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In 2018, the Group recorded revenue from continuing
operations of HK$1,341,223,000 (2017: Nil). The profit
attributable to owners of the parent was HK$398,968,000
compared with a loss of HK$288,481,000 last year. The
significant improvement was caused by the profit from the
discontinued operation attributable to owners of the parent of
HK$526,100,000 (2017: loss of HK$219,771,000) recorded,
though there was also loss from continuing operations of
HK$127,132,000 (2017: HK$68,710,000) recorded.

The increase in the loss from continuing operations from
HK$68,710,000 to HK$127,132,000 was mainly because: (1)
the newly acquired general aviation aircraft piston engine
business recorded a loss of HK$84,773,000 for 2018; (2) a one-
off gain on disposal of convertible loans of HK$87,151,000
was recorded last year; and (3) finance costs of HK$15,461,000
(2017: Nil) was recorded in 2018 on the new loan from an
intermediate holding company made in 2018; which were
partly offset by: (a) the decrease in the impairment and fair
value loss on financial assets from HK$106,173,000 last
year to HK28,054,000 in 2018; (b) an exchange gain of
HK$33,151,000 (2017: loss of HK$17,000) arisen from the
change in exchange rate was recorded in 2018; and (c¢) the
decrease in the share of losses of the joint ventures and
associates from HK$18,821,000 last year to HK$2,470,000 in
2018.

Basic earnings per share amounted to HK¢4.47 (2017: loss per
share amounted to HK¢5.23) . The return on equity, calculated
on the basis of profit/loss attributable to owners of the parent
as a percentage of equity attributable to owners of the parent
as of 31 December 2018, was 11% (2017:-17%).

ETRBEUAREEEANRRE DM
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ETRBEUREEENRR DT
BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group acquired the general aviation
aircraft piston engine business and disposed of the property
development and investment business. Accordingly, the Group
has only one reportable operating segment, namely the general
aviation aircraft piston engine business, which engages in the
design, development and production of general aviation aircraft
piston engines and spare parts as well as the provision of
aftermarket services and support for piston engines.

In accordance with HKFRS 3, the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed in a business combination should
be measured at their fair values at the acquisition date.
Accordingly, at the Group’s level, property, plant and
equipment, other tangible assets and inventories of Motto
Group were stated at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group subsequently measures and accounts for the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in the business combination
in accordance with other applicable HKFRSs for those items,
depending on their nature.

Since the completion of the Acquisition, i.e. 7 February
2018, up to 31 December 2018, the general aviation aircraft
piston engine business recognised revenue and gross profit
of HK$1,341,223,000 and HK$270,961,000, respectively, and
recorded loss of HK$84,773,000. Had the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed in the Acquisition been stated at their
carrying values at Motto Group's level, i.e. excluding the effect
from the aforesaid fair value adjustments charged to current
year's profit or loss of HK$105,065,000 at the Group's level,
the general aviation aircraft piston engine business would have
recorded profit of HK$20,292,000.

In 2018, the general aviation aircraft piston engine business
built and shipped 2,511 engines, a 13% increase from 2017
(before being acquired by the Group). Engine volume is an
important measure to the business as it reflects market share
gains reflective of the business strategy to have the widest
product offerings to ensure access to all general aviation piston
engine aircraft types. In 2018, there was growth in both our
Titan product line and our Jet-A Engine product line.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Convertible bonds

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held convertible bonds
issued by Peace Map Holding Limited (“"PMH") and AVIC Joy
K) Limited (“AVIC Joy"),
listed companies in Hong Kong. These convertible bonds are

Holdings (H respectively, both are
managed and their performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis. Fair values are mainly influenced by the prices of the
underlying securities and the time value of the conversion
option.

On 1 January 2018, the Group adopted HKFRS 9. Originally,
the convertible bonds were separated into derivative financial
instruments and available-for-sale debt instruments. In
accordance with HKFRS 9, the entire convertible bonds should
be classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

On 6 March 2018, the convertible bond issued by AVIC Joy
matured and was redeemed by AVIC Joy. On 2 August 2018,
the convertible bond issued by PMH matured but PMH failed to
redeem them. Therefore, they were included in financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and stated at fair values of
zero as at 31 December 2018.

In 2018, net fair value loss on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of HK$30,573,000 was recognised in
respect of the convertible bonds issued by PMH and AVIC
Joy, whereas last year, a fair value loss on derivative financial
instruments of HK$11,337,000 was recognised in respect of the
derivatives embedded in these convertible bonds.

TEHREUREEENRR DM

Bt 75 1o R

RRES

R-B—tF+-_A=t—B XEBEHED
AMERXTEZEEERAR ([RTEER]) &
ERER(FR)ERQA (M=RER]) (M
BMEYREELTAR) BT ZARBES &%
FUBMERESDRAFEEEEE  ERRIT
BAFEEEFE R FEETEXHBRESFE
RARBERENREEMRZE -

>

R=B—\F—A—B AEBERNTEBH
R EREOY - BA - TRBEESHHE A
FESMITARMHLERBTAMBG iR
BB T4 A EOR - B AR ES
EAOBARATFENAESZHBEERE-

RZZBE-NF=ZARA BAERERMETZ
%hﬁ%ﬂ% WEwFRERER R
- N\FNRZB BAXRTEEEMAETZA
B ES B - R T BEAE N RERE - F it
REABBRESR T N\F+-_A=+—H
BEERAVEFABRMBEES LK

TZRFE K

%**ﬂ\ﬁ BLR T B M E R IE IR P

IR EFERATEATEFAEREZ
é!ﬂ%éfﬁzAifﬁrgﬂé%%ﬁso,s73,ooo,%no
EF RREFARRESFPHRAZITET AR
RITEEMITEZ AFEEIE11,337,000%8
3T 0



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REMZE TEERER (58)BRA T
Annual Report 2018 —Z— )\ FFF 7R

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEHREUREEEN R R DM

Listed equity investments

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held shares issued by PMH
and classified the investment as a financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss, and held shares issued by AVIC Joy and
classified the investment as an available-for-sale investment.

On 1 January 2018, the Group adopted HKFRS 9. In accordance
with HKFRS 9, the Group elected the option to irrevocably
designate all its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Net changes in fair value are recognised as other
comprehensive income instead of being recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Gains and losses recorded in
other comprehensive income for the equity investments
cannot be recycled to profit or loss when the investments are
derecognised. Since 2018, PMH's shares have been suspended
for trading and PMH is in liquidation process. As at 31
December 2018, the fair value of the shares issued by PMH
and AVIC Joy was assessed to be zero and HK$53,642,000
respectively, which were included in equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Last year, the Group recorded a fair value loss on the shares
issued by PMH of HK$6,857,000 which was recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Furthermore, an impairment of
available-for-sale investments of HK$67,280,000 in respect of

the shares issued by AVIC Joy was also recorded.

Joint ventures and associates

During the year, the Group recorded share of losses of joint
ventures and associates in an aggregate of HK$2,470,000
(2017: HK$18,821,000).

Other income and gain

Other income and gain from continuing operations increased
from HK$6,227,000 last year to HK$51,355,000 in 2018,
mainly due to the exchange gain of HK$33,151,000 recorded.
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Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses from continuing operations
of HK$83,367,000 (2017: Nil) represents those selling and
distribution expenses incurred by the general aviation aircraft
piston engine business newly acquired in 2018.

Administrative expenses

During the year, the Group recorded administrative expenses
from continuing operations of HK$351,248,000 (2017:
HK$37,054,000), of which HK$319,998,000 were incurred
by the general aviation aircraft piston engine business newly
acquired in 2018. Administrative expenses consist of salaries
and wages, product liability expenses, engineering expenses,
legal and professional expenses and other general expenses.

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has consistently maintained sufficient working
capital. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had current
assets of HK$1,892,118,000 (2017: HK$3,825,763,000),
including cash and bank balances and time deposits in an
aggregate of HK$1,191,575,000 (2017: HK$627,140,000).
The Group's current liabilities as at 31 December 2018 were
HK$540,746,000 (2017: HK$980,982,000).

On 7 February 2018, the Acquisition was completed and a total
of 3,783,783,783 new shares of the Company have been issued
as fully paid to AVIC International (HK) Group, an intermediate
holding company. The fair value of these shares was
HK$1,627,027,000 which was measured based on the listed
share price of HK$0.43 on that date. Accordingly, the issued
share capital and share premium account of the Company
increased by HK$378,378,000 and HK$1,248,649,000
respectively.
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FEREUAREEENRRE DM

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s equity attributable
to owners of the parent amounted to HK$3,619,168,000
(2017: HK$1,732,505,000), comprising issued capital of
HK$930,337,000 (2017: HK$551,959,000) and reserves of
HK$2,688,831,000 (2017: HK$1,180,546,000). The Group's
interest-bearing debts included interest-bearing bank
borrowings of HK$121,249,000 (2017: loans from a fellow
subsidiary of HK$923,077,000 and loans from an intermediate
holding company of HK$503,550,000). The Group's gearing
ratio, calculated on the basis of the interest-bearing debts as a
percentage of equity attributable to owners of the parent plus
the interest-bearing debts, was 3% (2017: 45%).

The Group’s banking facilities are mainly utilised for general
working capital requirements.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

There were no charges on the Group's assets.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

As most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the operating units, the Group's exposure to
foreign currency risk is minimal.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save for the transactions as disclosed elsewhere in this annual
report, the Group had no other material acquisitions or
disposals during the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the significant contingent liabilities of the Group are
set out in note 47 to the financial statements.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND REGULATORY
COMPLIANCE

Environmental protection and the effective use of natural
resources have gradually become an important concept in
modern economic growth. The Group has been keeping track
on the major trends in environmental protection around the
world and has been making an effort to integrate the concept
of environmental protection in its operations. Based on new
technology and management approach, the Group strictly
control its environmental impact and resource usage such
that cleaner production featuring lower pollution and lower
emissions thus sustainable development can be achieved.

The Group strictly complies all applicable laws and regulations
released by the relevant authorities which are material to us.
Throughout the year, there was no incidence of non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2018, there were 691 (2017: 70) employees
in the Group. The employee wages and salaries for the
continuing operations, excluding directors’ remuneration,
amounted to HK$252,989,000 (2017: HK$5,846,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2018. The Group recognises
the importance of good relationship with employees. The
Directors believe that the working environment and benefits
offered to employees have contributed to building good staff
relations and retention. The Group’s remuneration policies are
formulated based on the performance of individual employees
and market conditions and are reviewed regularly. The Group
also provides other staff benefits including medical and life
insurance, and grants discretionary incentive bonuses and
share options to eligible staff based on their performance and
contributions to the Group.
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TRERBEUARERENRWR DT
OUTLOOK

Across the five market sectors accessible to the piston aircraft
(Certified General Aviation Business and Pleasure; Certified
General Aviation Pilot Training; Uncertified General Aviation;
General Aviation Light Sport; and Unmanned Aircraft), our
strategy is to have the widest breadth of product offerings
and to invest heavily in new product development and
certification so as to meet future opportunities in the market.
In addition, our commitment to continuous improvement and
modernisation of the manufacturing facility are on schedule to
deliver operational and cost efficiencies in 2019 and 2020.

Blue Marlin Program

The Blue Marlin factory modernisation program (the “Blue
Marlin Program”), a US$75 million investment in new facilities
and equipment, began construction in July of 2018. As of
December 2018, facility construction, despite substantial
weather impacts, was on schedule to complete construction in
June 2019. In addition, equipment upgrades were on schedule
with the first equipment completing supplier runoff verification
in December 2018. This equipment will be ready for shipment
and installation in May 2019. Overall progress remains on
schedule for full production rates in late 2020.

Research and Development

Research and Development projects aimed at bringing new
engine variants to market including the 10-370, CD-170, CD-
285, and CD-300, which have completed major milestones
and entered important installation and flight testing programs
with original equipment manufacturers of various aircrafts. We
expect these programs to exit development and certification
in phases across the next 24 months allowing transition to full
production and customer delivery in that timeframe.
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CHAIRMAN'’'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Challenge and opportunities

The uncertainty of the global economy in 2019 and thus
resulting changes in the global general aviation market will
affect the sales targets of the Group. In addition, in case there
is a delay in the progress of the Research and Development
projects and the Blue Marlin Program, it may have an impact on
short-term production.

The many opportunities, initiatives and investments that
were underway in 2018 are expected to continue in 2019 as
both the Blue Marlin Program and major product programs
would reach fruition in 2020. At that time, the Group expects
to achieve improved operating results and to have growth
opportunities.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation
to my fellow Directors and all our staff for their support, hard
work and dedication.

By order of the Board
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

Liu Hongde
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 March 2019
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENREESEZERE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Hongde, aged 58, has been an executive Director, the
Chairman of the Company, and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company since December 2016. He is
a PhD in Management Science and Engineering of Harbin
Engineering University (F/E T2 K2 ) and a professoriate
senior engineer. He enjoys the special government allowances
of the State Council. Mr. Liu has extensive working experience
in the areas of operation management, scientific research
management, organisational and cultural development. Mr.
Liu is currently the chairman of the board of directors of AVIC
International Holding Corporation (“AVIC International”), a
director of AVIC International (HK) Group and the supervisor
of Aviation Industry Corporation of China, Ltd ("AVIC"),
all being substantial shareholders of the Company. Mr. Liu
was appointed in February 2017 as an executive director of
AVIC International Holdings Limited (“AVIC IHL"), a company
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Prior to joining AVIC
International, Mr. Liu was the deputy general manager of
Harbin Dongan Engine Corporation (ME/ER LT EENAF)) ,
the general manager and chairman of Harbin Dongan Auto
Engine Co., Ltd. (MEBER L /REE HR M AR A A which
shares are listed and traded on the Shanghai Stock Exchange),
the director and the deputy executive general manager of
Harbin Aviation Industry (Group) Co., Ltd. (FAEEME T % (&£
E)AMR AT ), the chairman of Jiangxi Changhe Automobile
Co., Ltd. CIAE A /RERR M B R Q7 - which shares are listed
and traded on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), the general
manager of AVIC Automobile Industry Corporation (/1 Efn 2=
REBE T ¥4 X 7)), the deputy general manager of AviChina
Industry & Technology Company Limited, which shares are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange, the head of the
corporate cultural departments of the China Aviation Industry
Corporation Il (FEIfiZ T % — £ E /2 5]) and AVIC, and the
vice executive chairman of the trade union of AVIC.
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Mr. Lai Weixuan, aged 54, has been an executive Director
since June 2015, and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and a member of the Nomination Committee of
the Company since August 2018. He is a senior accountant,
holding doctorate degree in Management of Tongji University
and an EMBA of Guanghua School of Management, Peking
University. Mr. Lai is now the Chief Executive Officer of
AVIC International and a director of AVIC International (HK)
Group. Mr. Lai joined AVIC International Shenzhen Company
Limited (“AVIC Shenzhen”
International) in 1983. He previously served as the deputy

, @ wholly owned subsidiary of AVIC

general manager of AVIC Shenzhen, the Chairman of Fiyta
Holdings Limited (“Fiyta”), the deputy chairman of Tianma
Microelectronics Co., Ltd.(“Tianma”) and the chairman of
Rainbow Department Store Co., Ltd.
Store”).

companies listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He is also the

("Rainbow Department
Fiyta, Tianma and Rainbow Department Store are

director of two subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Lai has rich
experience in finance and operation management, and once
acted as an executive director of AVIC IHL from 2004 to 2012
and was appointed as an executive director again in 2014.

Mr. Fu Fangxing, aged 45, has been an executive Director
since August 2018. He obtained a Bachelor's Degree in
Investment, Economics and Management from Central
University of Finance and Economics in 1996 and a Master's
Degree in Accountancy from Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics in 2005. Mr. Fu is currently an executive
director of AVIC IHL. He is also the director and the head of
financial management department of AVIC International, a
substantial shareholder of the Company and the director of
AVIC International (HK) Group and Tacko International Limited.
He previously served as the executive director of AVIC Joy
K) Limited (“AVIC Joy"), which shares are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange, the deputy head of

Holdings (H

the financial management department of AVIC International,
the deputy chief accountant of AVIC-INTL Project Engineering
Company and the chief accountant of AVIC International Aero-
Development Corporation. He is also a director of a subsidiary
of the Group. Mr. Fu is a senior accountant and has extensive
experience in financial management, investment and financing
management as well as mergers and acquisitions.
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EENREESEZERE

Mr. Zhang Zhibiao, aged 45, has been an executive Director
since August 2018. Mr. Zhang is currently the head of the
operations management department of AVIC International,
a director of AVIC Sunda Holding Company Limited ( 112
ERRH AR AT which shares are listed and traded on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange and an executive director of AVIC
Joy. Mr. Zhang previously served as the president assistant of
AVIC Securities Co., Ltd (& H B2 F]) (formerly known
as SouthChina Securities Co., Ltd.* GTEZES AR ET A A)),
the head of SouthChina Financial Research Institute* (T < &l
35 A7) and the deputy office manager of the capital operation
office of AVIC International. Mr. Zhang was also the office
manager of international aviation business, the head of the
administrative management department and the head of the
planning and development department of AVIC International.
Mr. Zhang has over 22 years of working experience in the areas
of management, aviation business, strategic development,
industries research, securities, investment and initial public
offerings.

Mr. Yu Xiaodong, aged 46, has been an executive Director
since August 2018. He obtained a Master’'s Degree in
International Trade from University of International Business
and Economics in 1997. He previously served as the project
manager of AVIC International, the assistant general manager
of AVIC International Harbin Company* (# fii B BE A 58
/A7), the operations management vice director of the
international cooperation department of AVIC International, the
organisational performance director of the human resources
department of AVIC International, the vice general manager
of the human resources department of AVIC International
and the general manager of the auditing department of AVIC
International. He is also the director of four subsidiaries of the
Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chow Wai Kam, /p, aged 71, has been a non-executive
Director since June 2015. He obtained a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Architectural Studies and a Bachelor of Architecture
degree from the University of Hong Kong in November 1970
and November 1972, respectively. He has been an Authorised
Person (List of Architects) and a Registered Architect since July
1976 and January 1991, respectively. He was also admitted as
a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects since August
2001. He is currently an executive director of CK Asset Holdings
Limited (“CKAH"), a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Chow joined the Hutchison Group in July
1995 and was the Group Managing Director of the property
and hotels divisions of the Hutchison Group since 2000. He is
now the Group Managing Director of Hutchison Property Group
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKAH. He has over 40
years of experience in project management and architectural
design for various developments, including hotel, residential,
commercial, industrial and school projects in Hong Kong, the
Mainland China and overseas.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David, /2 s8s, aged 75, has been an
independent non-executive Director since May 1999. He is also
a member and the Chairman of the Nomination Committee,
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company. Mr. Chu received his Master of Business
Administration degree from Harvard University after degrees
in Electrical Engineering and Management at Northeastern
University and was awarded an honorary Doctor of Public
Service degree from Northeastern University. He worked for
a number of sizeable international corporations such as Bank
of America, General Electric Co. and Jardine Matheson &
Company Limited. Mr. Chu is an independent non-executive
director of Chuang’s China Investments Limited, Chuang’s
Consortium International Limited and Zhuhai Holdings
Investment Group Limited, all being listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange.
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EENREESEZERE

Mr. Li Ka Fai, David, aged 64, has been an independent non-
executive Director since December 2007. He is also a member
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of Science honours
degree in Chemistry and Administration. He is the deputy
managing partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co. CPA (Practising).
Mr. Li is also a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, UK, as well as The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales. He is an independent non-
executive director of China Merchants Port Holdings Company
Limited, China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited,
Cosmopolitan International Holdings Limited, Goldlion Holdings
Limited, Shanghai Industrial Urban Development Group Limited
and Wai Yuen Tong Medicine Holdings Limited, all being listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Zhang Ping, aged 54, has been an independent non-
executive Director since May 2017. He is also a Chairman and
member of the Nomination Committee member and the Audit
Committee of the Company. He received a doctoral degree in
Economics from Chinese Academy of Social Science Graduate
School (R EREBRMREL). Mr. Zhang started
working at the Institute of Economics under Chinese Academy
of Social Science (B4t & B} 8 g & 7 8 5K A7) since July
1988. He once led and organized key national research project
on economics. He published several essays based on theory
research and surveys. His major research fields are the growth
of China economy and macroeconomic policies. Mr. Zhang
was an independent non-executive director of AVIC IHL, until
December 2014. He is currently an independent director of
Minsheng Tonghui Asset Management Co., Ltd (RABEEE
ERARRAD .
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhao Yang, aged 48, joined the Group in January 2017 as
the Chief Financial Officer and is responsible for the Group’s
corporate finance, accounting and treasury functions. He is also
a director of Tacko and certain subsidiaries of the Company. He
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Finance from Nankai University and
EMBA degree from China Europe International Business School.
Mr. Zhao Yang is a senior economist. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Zhao held senior management positions in different
companies, of which two are Shenzhen listed companies.
Mr. Zhao has over 25 years of experience in accounting and
finance.

Mr. Lin Jining, aged 47, joined the Group in June 2018 as
Deputy Chief Financial Officer and is responsible for assisting
the Chief Financial Officer for the Group’s corporate finance,
accounting and treasury functions. He holds a Bachelor's
degree in accounting and economic from University of
Xiamen. Mr. Lin held senior management positions in different
companies. He has over 25 years of experience in accounting
and finance and international aviation business.
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ERERARE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain good standards of
corporate governance practices by emphasising transparency,
accountability and responsibility to its shareholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company applied
the principles of, and complied with all the code provisions
and, where applicable, the recommended best practices of the
“Corporate Governance Code” (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), except as noted
hereunder:

Other than the Non-executive Director appointed on 23 June
2015 and the Independent Non-executive Director appointed
on 26 May 2017, the other two Independent Non-executive
Directors were appointed without specific terms (code provision
A.4.1), details of which are mentioned under the section
headed “NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS"” in this report.

The Company will periodically review and improve its corporate
governance practices with reference to the latest development
of corporate governance.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company had adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company's
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. A
reminder was served by the Company to each Director twice
annually of the black out period that Director cannot deal in
the securities and derivatives (if any) of the Company.
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The Directors are required to notify the Chief Executive
Officer (who is also a Director) and receive a dated written
acknowledgement before dealing in the securities and
derivatives (if any) of the Company. In the case of the Chief
Executive Officer himself, he must notify the Chairman and
receive a dated written acknowledgement before any dealing.

Having made specific enquiry, all Directors had confirmed that
they had complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Company has also established a written guideline no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions by
relevant employees (including any employee of the Company
or director or employee of a subsidiary who, because of his
office or employment in the Company or a subsidiary, is likely
to possess inside information in relation to the securities of the
Company). No incidence of non-compliance was noted by the
Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board which has the
responsibility for leadership and control of the Company. The
Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company's
affairs.

Currently, the Board comprises five Executive Directors, and
four Non-executive Directors, including three Independent Non-
executive Directors. An Independent Non-executive Director has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as prescribed by the Listing
Rules. 6 out of the 9 Directors served the full year for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The biographical details of the
Directors are set out on pages 12 to 16 of this annual report.
There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) between Board members.
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Notwithstanding any contractual or other terms on which
any Director may be appointed or engaged at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years. The Directors to
retire in every year shall be those who have been longest in
office since their last election but as between persons who
became Directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless
they otherwise agree between themselves) be determined by
lot. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election. A new
Director appointed by the Board after the preceding annual
general meeting shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual
vacancy) or until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company (in the case of an addition to the existing Board)
and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

The Company did not have a nomination committee before 24
August 2018. The Board was directly in charge of nomination
of Directors before 24 August 2018. In accordance with the
Bye-laws of the Company, the Board shall have the power
from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as
a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board but so that the number of Directors so appointed
shall not exceed the maximum number determined from time
to time by the members in general meeting. For nomination,
consideration will be made to the qualifications and capabilities
of the nominated individual. During the year, the Board
selected and recommended the appointment of Mr. Fu
Fangxing, Mr. Yu Xiaodong and Mr. Zhang Zhibiao as Executive
Directors.
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The Company had adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to maintaining a competitive
advantage of the Board. The Company seeks to achieve board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to the talents, skills, regional and
industry experience, background, gender and other qualities.
The Board will consider and if appropriate, set measurable
objectives to implement the Policy and review such objectives to
ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives. The Board will review the
Policy, from time to time, to ensure its continued effectiveness.

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors
its financial performance and maintains effective oversight
over the management. The Board members are fully committed
to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximize the
shareholders’ value in the long run, and have aligned the
Group's goals and directions with the prevailing economic and
market conditions.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions under the requirements of the CG
Code. The major role and functions of the Board regarding its
corporate governance include:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company;
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ERWE

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of
the Company and Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this report.

The following is a summary of the work of the Board in respect

of corporate governance matters during the year ended 31
December 2018:

performed corporate governance duties under the CG
Code;

reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices;

reviewed the connected transactions and the continuing
connected transactions of the Group;

reviewed the compliance with the CG Code; and
reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and

internal control systems of the Company through the
Audit Committee.

The senior management of the Company is delegated

with responsibilities in the day-to-day management and

administration of the Company and makes operational and

business decisions within the control and delegation framework

of the

Company.
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The Company had issued formal letters of appointment for
Directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment.

The Company had arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal actions against its Directors and officers. The
Company reviews the extent of insurance cover each year.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary who is responsible for ensuring that
board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are
followed; and also regularly updates the Board on governance
and regulatory matters. Any Director, in the furtherance of
his or her duties, may take independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances through the Chairman at the
expense of the Company. The availability of professional
advice extends to the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration
Committees.

Minutes of Board meetings were taken by the Company
Secretary and, together with any supporting Board papers,
are available to all Board members. During the year ended 31
December 2018, eight regular Board meetings were held by the
Company.
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The attendance record of Directors at regular Board meetings
and other Committee meetings as well as general meetings

EENBE_ZT-N\F+-_A=+—HLFE
AEEEEeTHeAREMZESEHAUR

during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the MEAEHLEHEHNTE:
table below:

Number of regular meetings or Number of general

meetings attended/held meetings attended/held
HE/BTEHERAERRY HE/BTRRRXERY
Remuneration Nomination Audit
Board Committee Committee Committee Annual Special
Director E= EEg §MEEE REEEE ENZEEE BE 15 5l
Executive Directors HTEZE
Liu Hongde e 6/8 - - - 171 33
Pan Linwu* MR 5/5 - - - 17 172
Lai Weixuan BEE 6/8 - - - 1/1 2/3
Zhou Chunhua* AEE 3/5 - - - 0/1 0/2
Xu Hongge* TR * 0/5 - - - 0/1 0/2
Fu Fangxing** 75 Jx+ 3/3 - - - 0/0 0/1
Yu Xiaodong** TR+ 33 - - - 0/0 171
Zhang Zhibiao** RAGIE** 3/3 - - - 0/0 0/1
Non-executive Director ~— F#iTEE
Chow Wai Kam A &% 8/8 - - - 11 3/3
Independent Non-executive B & /7E F
Directors

Chu Yu Lin, David R 7/8 - - 212 1/1 2/3
Li Ka Fai, David TRE 8/8 - - 2/2 1”1 3/3
Zhang Ping R¥ 7/8 - - 2/2 0/1 0/3
* Mr. Pan Linwu, Ms. Zhou Chunhua and Mr. Xu Hongge resigned  * ERREE BREELXTRBREMEER T

on 24 August 2018. Up to the date of their resignation, five Board
meetings and three general meetings were held during the year.

* Mr. Fu Fangxing, Mr. Yu Xiaodong and Mr. Zhang Zhibiao were
appointed as director of the Company on 24 August 2018. Three
Board meetings and one general meeting were held during the
period from the date of their appointment up to the end of the
year.

No meeting was held during the period from the date of
establishment of the Nomination Committee up to the end of
the year.

Save for the annual general meeting, three special general
meetings were held during the year 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL EERIREXRE

DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed director was given a comprehensive, BEZHFEZIMEZTELTE2HE CLAFEAH
formal and tailored induction training to ensure that he is fully MRAMITBE UERMGFATE2MNERNSE
aware of his responsibilities under statute and common law, the AR R E@E - EMER AR REMEER

Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements.

ETNHBE -

All directors were encouraged to participate in continuous ZARARHEEREZLEBFEZLERRE LR
professional development to develop and refresh their WEHFHEMBLFE - REESEHODE
knowledge and skills. According to the records provided by the BEEER T — \FRETATEI:
Directors, the Directors received the following training during

the year 2018:

Type of continuous professional
development programmes

BESERRITEER
Reading materials Attending briefing
and updates sessions/seminars

Director 2= MEMBREHER HESNES/ANE
Executive Directors HITEF
Liu Hongde 24tE v v
Pan Linwu* & MR > v v
Lai Weixuan FES v v
Zhou Chunhua* AEE v v
Xu Hongge* Rt v -
Fu Fangxing** 1% 77 B+ > v v
Yu Xiaodong** FHER v v
Zhang Zhibiao** KRR ** v v
Non-executive Director FHHITEF
Chow Wai Kam E&E % v v
Independent Non-executive Directors B FEH7TE F
Chu Yu Lin, David K 4 Bk v v
Li Ka Fai, David FRE v v
Zhang Ping R v v
* resigned on 24 August 2018. * RZE-—NFENAZ+MARE-

** appointed on 24 August 2018.

o RZZE-NFNA-ZT+TOBHEZE-
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the role of the
Chairman is separated from that of the Chief Executive Officer.
Currently, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company are Mr. Liu Hongde and Mr. Lai Weixuan respectively.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role
and for setting its agenda and taking into account any matters
proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
Agendas and accompanying Board papers are circulated where
possible at least three days before the time of a Board meeting.
The Chairman is also responsible for making sure all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings. The
Chief Executive Officer is delegated with the authorities to
manage the business of the Group in all aspects effectively.

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer has been clearly established and set out
in writing.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills and
experience to the Group. They serve the important function
of providing adequate checks and balances for safeguarding
the interests of shareholders and the Company as a whole.
The Company had received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
Independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Board considered that the independent non-executive Directors
are independent in character and judgment and fulfill the
independence guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

Other than the non-executive Director appointed on 23 June
2015 and the independent non-executive Director appointed
on 26 May 2017, the other two independent non-executive
Directors were appointed without specific terms, but are
subject to retirement by rotation as explained above under
section headed “BOARD OF DIRECTORS”.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises one
Executive Director, Mr. Liu Hongde, and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chu Yu Lin, David
(as chairman) and Mr. Li Ka Fai, David. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the Company's policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration. The role, authority
and duties of the Remuneration Committee are clearly set out
in its terms of reference.

No meeting was held during the year 2018 to review and
recommend the remuneration of non-executive Directors,
executive Directors and senior management since the review
and recommendation of the remuneration for the year 2018
were performed in the meeting held in December 2017. The
attendance of each member is set out in the table above under
section headed “BOARD OF DIRECTORS".

The primary goal of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration packages is to enable the Company to retain
and motivate Executive Directors by linking their compensation
with performance as measured against corporate objectives.
Under the policy, no director or any of his associates is allowed
in deciding his own remuneration. During the year 2018,
the Remuneration Committee had adopted the model “to
determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management”.

EEERRSE
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Details of remuneration of members of senior management of

the Company by band for the year ended 31 December 2018
are set out below:

BE_T—\F+A=+—HILFE AR
AEREREZMESERHIIWT

Number of
individuals
Remuneration & AE
HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0007% 7T £ 1,500,000/ 7T 1

Details of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16
to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established
in compliance with rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the
purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group's financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control systems and the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal audit function. It currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu Yu Lin,
David (as chairman), Mr. Li Ka Fai, David and Mr. Zhang Ping.
The Audit Committee met two times during the year 2018 to
review the interim and final results, the interim and annual
reports, the external auditor's engagement letter and fee, the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit function and
the continuing connected transactions. The attendance of each
member is set out in the table above under the section headed
“BOARD OF DIRECTORS”. The duties of the Audit Committee
are clearly set out in its terms of reference.

Full minutes of meetings were kept and sent to all members of
the Board. Matters raised at the meetings were reported back
to the Board so that due consideration was given as to the
action to be taken.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company had established a Nomination Committee on
24 August 2018 in compliance with code provisions A.5.1
to A.5.4 of the CG Code for the purposes of reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board and making recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed changes, identifying
candidates with suitable qualifications as directors, selecting
and making recommendations to the Board, assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, and
making recommendations to the Board on matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. It currently comprises one executive
Director, Mr. Lai Weixuan, and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Zhang Ping (as chairman) and Mr. Chu Yu
Lin, David. The duties of the Nomination Committee are clearly
set out in its terms of reference. No meeting was held during
the period from the date of its establishment up to the end of
the year.

BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee shall endeavor to find individuals
of high integrity who have a solid record of accomplishment in
their chosen fields and who possess the qualifications, qualities
and skills to effectively represent the best interests of the Group
and its shareholders. Candidates will be selected for their ability
to exercise good judgment, and to provide practical insights
and diverse perspectives. Candidates also will be assessed in
the context of the then-current composition of the Board,
the operating requirements of the Group. In conducting this
assessment, the Nomination Committee will, in connection with
its assessment and recommendation of candidates for director,
consider diversity (including, but not limited to, gender, race,
ethnicity, age, experience and skills) and such other factors as
it deems appropriate given the then current and anticipated
future needs of the Board and the Company, and to maintain
a balance of perspectives, qualifications, qualities and skills on
the Board.
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The Nomination Committee considered the following
qualifications at a minimum to be required of any Board
members in recommending to the Board potential new board
members, or the continued service of existing members:

the highest professional and personal ethics;

. broad experience in business;

o ability to provide insights and practical wisdom based on
their experience and expertise;

o commitment to enhancing shareholder value;

o sufficient time to effectively carry out their duties;

o compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and
o ability to develop a good working relationship with other

Board members and contribute to the Board’'s working
relationship with senior management of the Group.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young are the auditors of the Company. The services
provided by them include audit and non-audit. Fees for auditing
and non-auditing (including interim review, taxation and other
professional services) services for the year ended 31 December
2018 amounted to HK$4,164,000 and HK$5,197,000
respectively.

REZEBERREFTENENESTSHENE
EFEXRER XRMAENEETGNER E4F
ZABATER:

. = i B B SR B AR AN E A B 1

et

. BZOBERER:

. RIBFMPIMERMAMBIREEEN R AR

MEBRES:
. HARRSRRNEE:
. BRANKEBEMETERE:
. BFEENEEER R

. ENEHEMEEENERTIRIFOTIE
BE TEHESERAKENETEE
B TRREE

BB ET N &

LXK G BB T AR B 2 % EAD - % F AT
RE‘EZBRELEEZRIEZ -HE_T—N
FH+ZA=+—"RHLFE BE&KEFEZ (R
RHOHEH REREMEERSE)REER
7 5l A4,164,0007% 7T 5,197,000 7T ©



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REMZE TEERER (58)BRAF
Annual Report 2018 —Z — )\ 7R

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for monitoring the preparation of
financial statements of each financial period and ensuring those
financial statements provide a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for the
relevant financial period. In preparing the financial statements,
the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies
and applied them consistently, adopted Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, made a prudent and reasonable
judgment and estimation, and, prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The Company has timely announced and published its financial
results in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The auditors are responsible for forming an independent
opinion, based on their audit, on those financial statements
and to report their opinion solely to the members of the
Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”), and
for no other purpose.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting
responsibilities is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report of
this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's risk
management and internal control systems and for reviewing
their effectiveness through the Audit Committee. These
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement, losses or fraud. Procedures have been
designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or
disposition, for maintaining proper accounting records; and for
the reliability of financial information used within the business
or for publication. Procedures have also been designed for
compliance of applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, were conducted by the internal audit section of the
Group from time to time. The results and recommendations
were reported to the Audit Committee and thereafter to the
Board. The adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions had
also been reviewed by the Board and Audit Committee. During
the year ended 31 December 2018, internal audit section of the
Group evaluated the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems by adopting an
integrated risk assessment approach, and the review report was
presented to the Audit Committee and the Board for review in
March 2019. No material deficiency was identified. The Board
considered that the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems were adequate and effective and the Company
had complied with the provisions on risk management and
internal control of the CG Code. The Board confirms that
systems and procedures are in place to identify, control and
report on significant risks involved in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives. Exposures to these risks are monitored by
the Board with the support of Audit Committee, internal audit
section and senior management.
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The Company has implemented Corporate Disclosure Policy,
which set out the reporting procedures for the handling and
dissemination of inside information.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kwok Chi Ho, the Company Secretary, is an employee of
the Company and responsible directly to the Board. He had
complied with all the qualification, experience and training
requirement under the Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The updated Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of
the Company had been posted on the Company’s website at
www.avic.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s designated website
at www.hkexnews.hk. During the year 2018, there was no
change in the Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of the
Company.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of a special general meeting by
shareholders

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company and the Companies
Act, the Board shall, on the requisition of shareholders holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the Company as at
the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene a
special general meeting of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company (the "Registered Office”),
which is presently situated at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda, and may consist of
several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.
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If the Board does not within twenty-one days from the date
of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the
said date.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, either any number of
shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date
of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or not less than one hundred shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next annual general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to
shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
sent to them any statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be
deposited at the Registered Office with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses, not less
than six weeks before the meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution; and not less than one week
before the meeting in the case of any other requisition.
Provided that if, an annual general meeting is called for a date
six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes
thereof.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

Regarding the procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director, please refer to the procedures made available under
section Corporate Governance of the Company’s website at
www.avic.com.hk.

Procedures for directing shareholder’s enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose
contact details are as follows:

Unit B, 15th Floor, United Centre
95 Queensway, Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 2915 0867

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
general meetings of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to fair disclosure, comprehensive
and transparent reporting. Effective communication with
shareholders has always been one of the Company’s priorities.
Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
shareholders in a timely manner through various formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars.

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication
policy which is subject to review on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness.
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General meetings of the Company provide good opportunities
for direct communications between the Board and its
shareholders. The Chairman of the Board, all other
Directors and senior management endeavor to attend any
general meeting of the Company and answer queries from
shareholders. Separate resolution is proposed for each issue by
the chairman of the meeting at each general meeting. Notice
of general meeting is served together with the circular to the
shareholders at least twenty clear business days or twenty-one
clear days, whichever is the longer, before an annual general
meeting and at least ten clear business days or twenty-one
clear days, whichever is the longer, before a meeting called for
passing of a special resolution, and, at least ten clear business
days or fourteen clear days, whichever is the longer, before a
meeting other than an annual general meeting or a meeting for
the passing of a special resolution.

Detailed procedures for conducting a poll are to be explained
by the chairman of the meeting at the commencement of
the general meeting. Any questions raised from shareholders
regarding voting by way of a poll may also be answered by the
chairman of the meeting.

The 2018 annual general meeting of the Company was held
on 24 May 2018. At the meeting, a separate resolution was
proposed by the chairman of the meeting in respect of each
separate issue, including re-election of retiring directors,
and voted by way of poll. The Company announced the
results of the poll in the manner prescribed under the Listing
Rules. All Directors except for two Executive Directors and
an Independent Non-executive Director, the chairman of
the audit committee and remuneration committee and a
member of the audit committee and remuneration committee,
attended the 2018 annual general meeting and had effective
communications with shareholders.
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SCOPE OF REPORTING

The Group is pleased to present this environmental, social
and governance report. This report specifies the Group's
environmental, social and governance performance for the
fiscal year 2018 (1 January to 31 December 2018), which runs
consistent with the annual report of the Group. The Group
adopted the materiality principle in planning and preparing this
report. Unless otherwise stated, this report covers the newly
acquired general aviation piston engine business in the United
States. Compared with the previous fiscal year, this report of
this year does not cover the real estate development business
in Dalian since the related business has been sold. The scope of
reporting herein has been updated based on the latest business
portfolio of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
GUIDELINES AND REPORTING

The Group’s environmental, social and governance philosophy
is to create long-term value for stakeholders that grows in
tandem with the Group's business and sustainable development
while being in line with environmental interests. The Group is
committed to becoming a responsible corporate citizen and
believes that transparency and responsibility are important
foundations for building trust with stakeholders.

As such, the Board endeavours to contribute to sustainability.
Meanwhile, the Board is responsible for assessing and
identifying the Group's environmental, social and governance
risks. By identifying and managing such risks, the Board can
formulate well-defined environmental, social and governance
policies and ensure the solid implementation of relevant policies
and guidelines.
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R HERERRS
BASIS OF PREPARATION

This report is prepared and presented with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Reporting Guide
set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules:

1. Materiality: the threshold at which ESG issues become
sufficiently important to investors and other stakeholders
that they should be reported.

2. Quantitative: KPIs need to be measurable. Targets can
be set to reduce a particular impact. In this way, the
effectiveness of ESG policies and management systems
can be evaluated and validated. Quantitative information
should be accompanied by a narrative, explaining its

purpose, impacts, and giving comparative data where
appropriate.
3. Balance: The ESG report should provide an unbiased

picture of the Group’s performance. The report should
avoid selections, omissions, or presentation formats that
may inappropriately influence a decision or judgment by
the report reader.

4, Consistency: The Group should use consistent
methodologies to allow for meaningful comparisons of
ESG data over time. The issuer should disclose in the ESG
report any changes to the methods used or any other
relevant factors affecting a meaningful comparison.

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

As part of its business strategy, the Group communicated with
stakeholders in an open, honest and positive manner. That
involved a variety of formal communication channels, such as
interim reports, annual reports, announcements and circulars.
In 2018, the Group continued to maintain an open dialogue
with stakeholders to review and update the key areas identified
as important to the Group's business operations. This helped
the Group to develop sustainability plans in line with the
business strategy.
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group upholds the philosophy of “Low-carbon
economy will become the norm of future economic
development” and is committed to aligning its business
model with this philosophy. The Group implemented
a series of environmental management measures on
air and greenhouse gas emissions. water and land
discharges, and the generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes. This can reduce the damage caused
by daily business activities to the environment and
enable the Group to achieve a green production mode
with low pollution and low emissions, which leads the
Group towards a low-carbon economy.

1. GREENHOUSE GAS AND AIR EMISSIONS

In an effort to practice environmental protection,
the Group regards the management of
greenhouse gas and air emissions as part of the
operational decisions. Along with the strategy,
the Group also takes effective measures to reduce
greenhouse gas and air emissions, in addition
to comply with relevant government laws and
regulations and keeping abreast of the latest
environmental developments around the world.
The Group's air emissions mainly come from its
general aviation piston engine business, which

RE -HERERRE
5
AN ER B R ME R A E 18 A R R R
BRINERA TR AL ERNE
BoEY -AEEBAER—RINER
RERBRE BEEREEREH
BoKREHHES BERBSEEY
EEZERE KMHLERELE
EBHRREKZEE BIERES
AEHBEROZEEERS S ERAEE
EREBREHENEZ M -

1. BERERERHER

AEBIEAEREREREEE
RAEEEERKN o &
TRERER A B R A B = RS K R
[EMNITE B ETRTE
BIVER B W8 B & E AR
BIRRBE RN EBRRRE
BRI T - AN B B B RBE
YEBREBAMEREEER
BT B ROE R KORIEH
SIEMESZ =R il
AELW(NOX) ~ Br &1L ¥ (SOxX)

involves air pollutants from transportation and KAl R A FERLY) o

testing of engines. The air emissions include

nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulphur oxides (SOx) and

respirable suspended particulates.

Emission Unit Emissions
B B BHE
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) REEYI(NOX) kg T 2721.00
Sulphur oxides (SOx) &AL ¥(SOX) kg T 73.00
Particulate matter R kg T3 1996.00

Table 1 — Total Emissions During the Reporting Period
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The Group’s greenhouse gas emissions come
from the operations of the aircraft factory,
including fuel consumption for testing aircraft
engines. During the reporting period, the Group
produced a total of approximately 1,100 tonnes
of carbon dioxide equivalent of greenhouse gases,
representing an emission density of 3 tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent per employee.
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Emissions
Scope of (Tonnes of Density
greenhouse Emission carbon dioxide  (Emissions per Total emissions
gas emissions source equivalent) employee) (In percentage)
HHE BE
(LAHg = & b B (BEWE/ mERE
BERBHREE B i SRR E&5) BTI) (B2 s
Scope 1 Direct emissions
EE1HEEER
Aviation fuel fin 22 1A 543.33 1.31 47.71
Unleaded gasoline i3 D 10.28 0.02 0.90
Liquefied petroleum gas  B{LAHR 96.29 0.23 8.46
Kerosene o 90.98 0.22 7.99
Diesel 5 0.23 0.00 0.01
Natural gas RAR 0.00 0.00 0.00
Acetylene R 0.04 0.00 0.00
R22 refrigerant R222% A 6.57 0.02 0.58
Carbon dioxide fire & R A 2 3.82 0.01 0.33
extinguishers
Scope 2 Indirect
emissions
EE2 MEER
Purchased electricity BEEN 6.92 0.02 0.61
Scope 3
Other indirect
emissions
SBE3HCBEER
Disposed paper waste EEENR 50.11 0.12 4.40
Employee flight mileage BT RITEH 330.46 0.79 29.01
Total BEt 1138.92 2.74 100.00

Table 2 - Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions During the
Reporting Period
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The Group’s business units take different
measures to reduce air pollutants and
greenhouse gas emissions. In order to reduce
power consumptions and emissions from office
operations, the Group prefers using low-power
electrical appliances or products, and avoids using
unnecessary high-power equipment. For example,
the Group preferably chooses low-wattage with
bright lighting systems to effectively reduce
power consumption. In addition, the Group is
committed to using appropriate machinery and
equipment. Pollution control devices have been
installed in paint shops, sandblasting machines
and treatment tanks in the factory to effectively
control and reduce the emissions of carbon
monoxide, volatile organic compounds, harmful
air pollutants and particulate matters, thus
achieving the goal of reducing greenhouse gas
emissions.
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(a)

Waste Management

The Group adheres to the principles of
waste management and strives to properly
handle and dispose of all wastes generated
from business activities. In order to reduce
environmental impact, the Group classify
and recycle wastes where feasible to
increase the potential of downstream
recycling, and properly dispose of non-
recyclable wastes.

By implementing waste assessment
procedures, the Group assesses the
emissions of air, water and solid waste,
special waste, hazardous and non-
hazardous waste for newly added
machines and processes. Meanwhile,
the Group classifies hazardous and non-
hazardous waste in the factory to meet the
requirements of local laws and regulations.
The hazardous waste is handed over to
four qualified hazardous waste collectors
for disposal. When selecting a suitable
hazardous waste collector, the Group
requires the supplier to obtain a hazardous
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waste transportation permit issued by the KBEEBREWMTIE
U.S. Department of Transportation. EH °
Density
(Emissions
Waste Unit Emissions per employee)
BE (HRE/
BEY By B2 BT)
Total hazardous waste tonnes 27.00 0.06
EEEEYES 7
Total non-hazardous waste tonnes 244.33 0.59
BEEREVES A
Table 3 — Waste Generated During the Reporting —REHANMELEZEY

Period
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During the reporting period, the Group
strictly complied with the relevant
environmental laws and there was no
case of prosecution against the Group for
violation of environmental laws.

USE OF RESOURCES

In order to effectively use resources, reduce waste
and protect the ecological environment, the
Group is committed to protecting resources to
achieve environmental and operational benefits.
In order to fulfil its environmental commitments,
the Group has implemented a series of green
production measures to improve energy efficiency
and reduce paper and water consumption. By
monitoring and managing the use of resources,
the Group aims to reduce operating costs and
carbon footprint.

(a) Resources

During the reporting period, the resources
directly consumed by the Group for
operations are as follows:

RiR #HERERRS
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Density

(consumption

Resources Unit Consumption per employee)
BE
CHEER
&R B HIEE BI)
Power kilowatt hour 13,056.00 31.38
EH FRLBF
Aviation fuel litre 223,422.57 537.07
it 2= R NI
Unleaded gasoline litre 3,797.53 9.13

55U DTt
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Density
(consumption
Resources Unit Consumption per employee)
RnE
(CH¥EE
BiR By HMEE BI)
Liquefied petroleum gas litre 31,916.70 76.72
BRAL R N
Kerosene litre 37,411.22 89.93
B nF
Diesel litre 41.64 0.10
e nFH
Natural gas cubic metre 756,037.35 1,817.40
RIAR, 377K
Acetylene kilogramme 11.04 0.03
7R N
R22 refrigerant kilogramme 3.63 0.01
R22&% Al NIy
Carbon dioxide fire kilogramme
extinguishers 3,819.70 9.18
ZEALIRB A S /NI
Water cubic metre 5,692,900.00 13,684.86
K 377K
Steam cubic metre 21,042.00 50.58
Packaging materials for tonnes
finished products (plastic) 31.90 0.08
B BEME (2H) 7
Packaging materials for tonnes
finished products (paper) 185.90 0.45
UK B M E (HR) 7
Packaging materials for tonnes
finished products (wood) 196.01 0.47
UK B MK (KRH) 7
Table 4 — Consumption of Resources During the RA-MEHRNNERERERE

Reporting Period
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The Group has been implementing the
“5S methodology” (standing for “Sort”,
“Set in order”, “Shine”, "“Standardize”,
and “Sustain”) as the core model for
the daily management, implementation
and discussion. Furthermore, the Group
conducts lean management and waste
reduction management to realise the
“Zero emission plan”. The plan is aimed
at encouraging employees to redesign the
use of resources from many aspects to
prolong the life cycle of resources. Through
effective use of products or materials, the
plan can help reduce the use of resources
and generate less waste.

In addition, the Group attaches great
importance to energy management in
order to make effective use of power
resources. The Group gives preference to
the use of energy-efficient equipment,
including energy-saving lighting
fixtures, with a view to reducing energy
consumption in the long run.

Water Consumption

Sustainable and responsible use of water
resources is a major global issue. The
Group is aware that water shortage,
excessive demand and overuse of water
can cause serious problems. In view of
this, the Group has in place wastewater
treatment equipment. Through waste
minimization plans, neutralization,
chromate reduction, and alkaline
chlorination of cyanide, the Group
effectively reduce wastewater effluent
characteristics and the discharge in the
factory.
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3.

ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The Group continuously identifies, assesses
and manages potential adverse impacts on
the environment, and strives to maintain a
balance between business development and
ecological environment for long-term sustainable
development. When reviewing its business
strategies and planning for future business
development, the Group will definitely take
environmental protection and conservation of
natural resources into consideration.

The Group is dedicated to taking a series of
effective measures to avoid and mitigating the
impact on the environment and surrounding
areas, including reducing noise, emissions and
indoor air pollution. The Group has engaged
qualified environmental consultants to review its
environmental projects on a regular basis. For
example, the Group ensures that the factory is in
compliance with the Resource Conservation and
Recycling Act (RCRA), the Air Emissions Permit,
and the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System (NPDES) permit.

During the reporting period, the Group did not
have any major environmental accidents.
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B. SOCIAL

e

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

Employees are an important asset of the Group
and have a critical impact on the quality of
the Group's products and services. The Group
attaches great importance to the protection
and development of its employees and hopes to
establish long-term relations with them.

The Group strives to build a safe, healthy,
fair and non-discriminative work environment
and maintains a harmonious relationship
with employees, so as to bring together all
employees to promote the long-term sustainable
development of the Group.

The Group is convinced that equal employment
relations can improve employee satisfaction,
which in turn helps retain and motivates
outstanding talents and thus speeds up the
Group’s business development. As such, in order
to prevent employees from discrimination in the
hiring process. The Group has formulated relevant
recruitment procedures to ensure that recruitment
decisions are based on the capabilities,
knowledge and experience of job applicants
related to the open positions irrespective of
factors such as gender, age, race, family status,
religious belief and disability.

In addition, the Group has developed a well-
established dismissal policy. As a result of
downsizing or business restructuring, those
dismissed employees with a good track record
maybe entitled to severance pay. Moreover, all
dismissals are properly carried out in accordance
with established procedures.
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R HERERERS

During the reporting period, the Group did
not have any cases of violation of relevant
employment laws and regulations, nor did it
receive any complaints related to recruitment.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

Ensuring that employees have a safe and
healthy working environment is the basic
responsibility of each company, and the Group
takes it seriously. In an effort to create a safe
and sound working environment for employees,
the Group has developed occupational safety
measures, in addition to enhancing employees’
safety awareness, provide protective devices,
and regularly monitor and review the safety
performance.

The Group has set up a safety committee to
take charge of its occupational health and
safety matters. The committee, which consists
of the human resources director, safety manager
and fire— Fire Specialist, as well as hourly team
members from the shop floor, is responsible
for the Group’s occupational health and safety
matters. The committee meets once per week to
discuss health and safety issues brought up by
team members, formulate safety management
measures for compliance, and advise internal
departments on government standards and
regulations. On the other hand, the Group
incorporating safety performance into the annual
performance appraisal. As such, the Group
effectively improves occupational health and
safety.
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In addition, the Group has developed measures
for drug abuse prevention. According to the
Employee Assistance Program, professionals are
engaged to diagnose whether local employees
have drug and alcohol abuse problems and
advise them thereon, and to provide professional
guidance, training and consultation in this regard.
In addition, the Group requires all employees to
attend monthly safety meetings. Such meetings
cover the latest information on occupational
health and safety, internal safety policies and
safety accident review.

During the reporting period, the Group found
no cases of violation of laws and regulations
related to occupational safety and health, nor did
it receive any complaints about work conditions.
Also, there was no work-related death or injury
within the Group.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group understands the importance of
providing employees with opportunities to pursue
meaningful and prosperous careers, which can
help employees demonstrate their potential and
facilitate the Group's objectives.

In order to provide opportunities for employees to
grow, the Group provides induction training and
guidance for all new employees, offers a variety
of training courses to in-service employees,
including internal and external training, and
creates opportunities for employees to exchange
and learn in work-projects. Moreover, the Group
has established the Educational Assistance Plan
which provide educational subsidies to employees
n job-related internal training courses and
support them to take external training courses.

RiR #HERERRS

SN REBE R EYEATE
el E - EE Tl FE R
[BEIXEE] BBEEASR
ETEBEEREDMERND
B @R WEH B TIRHEHEZEE
B EFIRER e N AEEE
SKETEETIHRBARTZZE
R o GRAERFEREREL S
MEFEM AHL2HE &
ZEREWHR -

RBEEHAN ARELEZHRE

f= B 3 72 2 0 PR AR A B0 A () AT
AR RN TAEE R MR E
= ROSBEEMAEATEMET
THHBER-

BEKIEI

AEERBAREBRHKEER
EEENBEREREZTXNEERE
M- FELLRE BN IE B R3RERE
R MR A ARENBIR-

RTABIREKRERSE K&
BRMAEMARBE TREARK
BolR® YRMAEBETRHES
BEJKE BRAKERNTR
9\\ﬁ5iﬁ%| ' jt’élﬁﬁ Q%E\IE

. 2 aT_L%Zﬁ &EBhET &l lfta‘fzﬂ
BAQT&ZEITET/\,\IVE*B A
ZAREIEI B R BB T
TTWEME SRR o

49



50

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REMZE TEERER (58)BRA T
Annual Report 2018 —Z— )\ FFF 7R

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HEREARS

4.

LABOUR STANDARDS

(a) Prohibition of Child Labour and Forced

Labour

The Group is firmly against child labour
and forced labour, and prohibits the
employment of any child labour and forced

labour in any operations and services.

All employees of the Group must reach
the statutory minimum working age.
Before hiring any candidate, the Group
will check the age-related documents to
verify his/her age. The Group adheres
to the principle of fair and voluntary
recruitment, strictly forbids forced or
fraudulent recruitment, ensures that all
employees work on a voluntary basis, and
prohibits forced labour in any form. Where
employees are needed to work overtime
in the production process, the Group will
formulate overtime arrangements with the
employee representatives and employees,
and the working hours will not exceed
the maximum legal limits. Moreover, the
management personnel will not force
the employees to carry out work with
significant safety and health risks or illicit

work.

During the reporting period, the Group
found no incidents in violation of the laws

and regulations on labour standards.
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group believes that building a sustainable
supply chain create values for employees,
suppliers of goods, service providers, communities
and customers. The Group also emphasises
promoting good communication and cooperation
with business partners to jointly maintain the
quality and safety of products and services.

The Group requires all suppliers to undergo an
evaluating, rating and approving process to assess
their environmental and process certifications
including AS9100 (quality management systems
for the aviation industry). In addition, the Group
also request that the suppliers utilize Solumina
Supplier Rating System software to select and
validate vendor codes. To ensure product quality
and management, as well as motivating suppliers
to make improvements, suppliers are required to
certify its products via third-party certifications.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
(a) Quality Assurance

The Group strictly controls every aspect of
the product trade and carries out stringent
quality management. Accordingly, the
Group has formulated different policies in
the design, planning and production stages
to ensure that the products meet the
relevant quality and safety requirements.
Before delivering products to customers,
the processes stipulated by the Group's
internal quality procedures are completed
to ensure that the products meet the
quality standards stipulated in laws and
regulations and the quality requirements of
the Group.
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The Group’s general aviation piston
engine business in the United States has
obtained ISO 9001 quality management
system certification and applies the Plan-
Do-Check-Act (PDCA) model to continually
improve quality management in the
procurement process. The Group will strive
to ensure that its products meet regulatory
requirements and customer expectations
on a continuous basis.

In addition, the Group regularly accesses
its internal production processes to ensure
customer satisfaction and compliance with
the requirements of 1ISO9001, AS9100 and
the Federal Aviation Administration.

During the reporting period, the Group
found no violations of laws and regulations
related to products or services.

INTEGRITY

The Group advocates honest operation, fair
competition, and expects all employees to observe
the highest ethical, personal and professional
standards. The Group has developed sound codes
of conduct on risk management and internal
control to ensure that all employees comply with
the Group’s rules in daily operations.

The Group has established and implements
an internal integrity system to strengthen the
integrity of employees in management practices.
Moreover, the Group has specifically established
internal practices guidelines and a sound
reporting system to encourage all employees,
managers and directors to report acts that are
harmful to the Group's interests or illegal acts.
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The Group provides clear guidelines against
misconduct such as bribery, corruption,
embezzlement, insider trading and swindling
to ensure that employees can report matters of
concern through various channels in an absolutely
confidential manner. Where a case of misconduct
is found valid after investigation, the Group
will take appropriate corrective measures and
disciplinary action against the person(s) involved.
If there involves any criminal offence, the Group
will hand over the suspect(s) to the competent
authority. In addition, the Group engages a third-
party agency to audit its financial statements each
year.

During the reporting period, the Group found
neither corruption incidents nor violations of
relevant laws and regulations.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

As a responsible company, the Group fully
understands its important role in promoting
environmental protection in the areas where it
operates. As such, the Group is always committed
to integrating environmental protection into
its day-to-day operations and encouraging
employees, customers, business partners and
communities to protect the environment together.
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The Group will continue to regularly review
its objectives for community investment, and
supervise community investment, sponsorship
and donation activities and the relevant approval
policies. The Group will also examine each year
whether the social performance is in line with
the Group’s community investment policy and
objectives for community activities to ensure
that such policy is well implemented in all
departments, while overseeing and improving the
team’s capabilities in this regard.

OUTLOOK

The Group believes that the implementation of
current measures regarding environmental and
social responsibility measures is sufficient for
compliance with the relevant laws and listing
rules, though necessary reviews and amendments
are needed from time to time to meet the
requirements of laws, listing rules and internal
management. Looking forward, the Group will
continue to carry out more measures beneficial
to the environment, society and governance in
business operations to live up its commitment to
the environment and society.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required
by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622 of the
laws of Hong Kong), including a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties faced by the Group and an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business, can be found
in the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 2 to 11 of this annual report.
The Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and
Analysis forms part of this directors’ report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
the Group's financial position at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 82 to 277 of this annual report.

At the Board meeting held on 15 March 2019, it was declared
a special dividend of HK1 cent per ordinary share in respect of
the year to shareholders on the register of members on 6 June
2019.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”),
distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company to

pursuant to which the Company may declare and

allow the shareholders to share the Company’s profits.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account, inter
alia, the following factors:

(1) the Group’s actual and expected financial results;

(2) the Group's working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

(3) the Group’s liquidity position; and

(4) any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The payment of dividend is subject to the compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, including the laws of Bermuda
and the Company’s bye-laws. The Board will continue to review
the Dividend Policy from time to time.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements, is set
out on page 278 of this annual report. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 38 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$375,825,000. In addition, the Company's share premium
account, in the amount of HK$1,857,729,000, may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of the Group’s purchases attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

FEHREEAREF

AEETEHEEMEAEE REEAS
mF

2018 2017
—E-N\#F e
% %

Percentage of purchases: HEREBEA DL
From the largest supplier REmAEES 3 6
From the five largest suppliers RERARKEERS 15 8

The percentages of the Group's sales attributable to the
Group’s major customers are as follows:

AEBFEXTFMEAEEZHERD LN
T

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
% %

Percentage of sales: HEE B AL
To the largest customer REZRAEP 30 1
To the five largest customers REAKRKEFEP 61 3

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any

shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group's five largest suppliers and customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Board during the year and up to the date of this report
comprises:

Executive Directors:

Liu Hongde
Pan Linwu (resigned on 24 August 2018)
Lai Weixuan
Zhou Chunhua (resigned on 24 August 2018)
Xu Hongge (resigned on 24 August 2018)
Fu Fangxing (appointed on 24 August 2018)
Yu Xiaodong (

(

Zhang Zhibiao

appointed on 24 August 2018)
appointed on 24 August 2018)

Non-executive Director:

Chow Wai Kam

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Chu Yu Lin, David
Li Ka Fai, David
Zhang Ping

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Liu Hongde, Mr.
Lai Weixuan and Mr. Chow Wai Kam will retire by rotation.
Mr. Fu Fangxing, Mr. Yu Xiaodong and Mr Zhang Zhibiao, the
Directors who were appointed by the Board on 24 August
2018, shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company. All of them, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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The Company has received an annual confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors of his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange. The Company, as at the date of this report,
still considered all the Independent Non-executive Directors as
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 12 to 17 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of employees (including Directors and senior
management of the Group) is determined with reference to
their qualification, expertise and experience in the industry,
competence, duties and responsibilities within the Group,
the performance and profitability of the Group as well as
the market benchmark and the prevailing market conditions.
Employees shall also be eligible to receive a discretionary year-
end incentive bonus, which shall be determined by the Group
at its absolute discretion taking into account, inter alia, the
Group’s operating performance, market conditions in which
the Group operates and the individual’s performance, payable
at such time as the Group may consider appropriate, and
discretionary share options.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director or entities connected with the Directors had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company’s holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party

during or at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Except for certain Directors who had non-beneficial interests
in certain subsidiaries of the Company held for the benefits of
the Company, as at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had an interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (a) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"); or (b) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section of “Directors’ and chief
executive's interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above and in the section of “Share
option scheme” below, during the year no rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company had been granted to any of the Directors or
their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age;
no such rights had been exercised by them; and none of
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting held on 28 May 2014, the
Company adopted a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
to contribute to the business development and growth of
the Group and to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre
employees and attract or retain human resources that are
valuable to the Group. The share option scheme is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from the date of its adoption.
Further details of the share option scheme are disclosed in note
39 to the financial statements.

Since the adoption of the share option scheme, no options
have been granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled or outstanding
thereunder as at 31 December 2018.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the following interests of 5% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded
in the register of interests required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions: Ha:
Capacity and

nature of

Name of shareholders Notes interest
BRREE Hizz SORERME
Tacko International Limited (“Tacko") (a) Beneficial owner

AVIC International (HK) Group Limited (a) Beneficial owner
("AVIC International (HK) Group”)
HMER (BB EEARAA

([HER (FE)KE])

EanEAA

AVIC International (HK) Group Limited (a)
("AVIC International (HK) Group”)

HREIR (BB)SEAERAT
(THmER (F5)&H])

Through a controlled
corporation

Bp—-AXEEE

AVIC International Holding Corporation (a)
("AVIC International”)
FEMERMBERERERAR ([RHRER])

Through a controlled
corporation

BB -EXEEE

Through a controlled
corporation
BiR—RAXEEE

Aviation Industry Corporation of China, Ltd (a)
("AVIC")
FEMETEEERRAR ([FHRIE])

Number of
ordinary

shares

held
MEEERYA

1,895,559,000

2,421,341,390

4,316,900,390

4,316,900,390

4,316,900,390

EEEHSE

FTERRRHEMATRERD R EER S
Z

RZE-—NFE+_A=+—HB XRRREE
R ERDIE336IRTFE < #m B AT
)R RAIS%HIA L BEITRAERNT

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share
capital as at

31 December
2018
R-ZZB-N&E
+=B=+—-H
EEATE BT
BAZBEDH

20.37

26.03

46.40

46.40

46.40
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Notes:

(a)

According to notices of disclosure of interests filed with the
Company, Tacko is a wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC International
(HK) Group, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of AVIC
International. AVIC International is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of AVIC (62.52% interest controlled by AVIC as at 31 December
2018). Accordingly, each of AVIC International (HK) Group, AVIC
International and AVIC is deemed to be interested in the shares held
by Tacko.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, no person

had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying

shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company and the Group had the
following connected and continuing connected transactions,

certain details of which are disclosed in compliance with the
requirements of Charter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Connected transactions

(a)

Very substantial acquisition of Motto Investment Limited

On 7 February 2018, in accordance with the terms of
a sale and purchase agreement dated 19 September
2017 as amended by an amendment deed dated 27
October 2017, the Company acquired from AVIC
International (HK) Group, a subsidiary of the Company’s
ultimate holding company, the entire share capital of
Motto Investment Limited at cash consideration of
HK$1,000,000,000 and 3,783,783,783 shares of the
Company. Further details of the transaction are included
in note 42 to the financial statements.

At :

(a) BEBRXEARBZE=EEBME  Tacko
APMER(EE)EEZ2EMBEAR mF
MER(BEB)EEATMBEBRZZ2ENRER
Ale PMBRATMIEZF2ENBERR (B
- N\FF+ZA=+—H BHPMIET
62.52% %) AL RAMER (FE)KE-
A BB K P A T E AR R R Tacko s B 2 iR
MR A -

BEXFEEN R-E—N\F+-A=+—
B B8 AR TR S8 B 1 o
1098 % T A () 336 T 7 2 B 30
2P EET R

RER RADBRAEEEATHERS &
FHBERLETREIAZ ZBE T UR

o

BEXS
(@)  FEEAYSE- Motto Investment Limited

BEZZT—tFLA+ILBKRER
FR-Z—tF+A=-t+tBEME
ARE ARRABER-_ZE—NF=
A+ HLA1,000,000,000 TR & &
3,783,783,7834A R Al x 1H AR (B E MK
HBARAZEERF-RMER (FE)
£ FH U BEMotto Investment LimitedZ
100%RAEREE R H2FED
BRI R M 742 o



(b)

(c)

Disposal of equity interests in Eaglet Aero-Technology
Inc.

On 3 December 2018, in accordance with the terms of a
sale and purchase agreement dated 12 November 2018,
CATIC Helicopter Development (Shenzhen) Limited ( FFffii
BREFERMARS ORI AR AF), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, disposed of 40% equity
interests in Eaglet Aero-Technology Inc. (3t R IR
ZERTERBRAF) to China National Aero-Technology
Import & Export Corporation (R fin it i O B R & AF
Ad]), which is owned by as to 50% by AVIC and 50%
by AVIC International, for a total cash consideration
of RMB3,839,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$4,388,000). Further details of the transaction are
included in note 19 to the financial statements.

Very substantial disposal of Ease Triumph International
Limited

On 28 December 2018, in accordance with the terms
of a sale and purchase agreement dated 30 September
2018, the Company disposed the entire issued share
capital, the shareholder’s loans and the accrued interests
of the shareholder’s loans of Ease Triumph International
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, to
Shengtong Holding Limited for a total cash consideration
of approximately HK$2,165 million. Shengtong Holding
Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
Hengda Real Estate Group Company Limited, which
currently holds 80% of the issued share capital of
Hangfa Investment Limited and therefore is a substantial
shareholder of Dalian Hanghua Real Estate Company
Limited, a 52.08%-owned subsidiary of Ease Triumph
International Limited. Further details of the transaction
are included in note 43 to the financial statements.

(b)

(c)
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Continuing connected transactions

(a)

(b)

Pre-handover real estate management services

On 31 May 2016, the Company and CATIC
Property Management Co., Ltd (“AVIC Real Estate
Management”), an associate of a controlling shareholder
of the Company, namely, AVIC International, entered
into a framework agreement for the engagement of
AVIC Real Estate Management to provide pre-handover
real estate management services for the relevant
properties in real estate development projects of the
Group. The management fees comprise the management
costs based on the annual budget proposed by the
relevant developers of the Group and the management
commission of 10% of the total management costs
incurred for each development project. Further details
were disclosed in the announcement dated 31 May
2016.

Tender agency services

On 31 May 2016, the Company and China National
Aero-Technology Trade and Economic Development
company Limited (“AVIC TED"),
International, entered into a framework agreement for

an associate of AVIC

the engagement of AVIC TED to provide tender agency
services for the construction projects of the Group.
The fees for tender agency services is calculated by
applying the marginal rates to the relevant actual sum
of the tender awarded or contracted on a progressive
scale as prescribed by the Provisional Measures on
the Administration of Service Fees Charged for Tender
Agency Services (12K I8 R 7% Uk & & 12 & 17 i1 %)
with such further discounts as the parties agree to in
each engagement. Further details were disclosed in the
announcement dated 31 May 2016.
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(c) Sale services

On 24 October 2017, the Company and AVIC entered
into a sale framework agreement (the “Sale Framework
Agreement”) for the sale of engines and engine parts to
AVIC and/or its associates (excluding the Group) for use
in new aircraft manufacture and the sale of parts into
the aftermarket for maintenance, repair and overhaul.
The price lists are determined based on a fair and
reasonable basis based on the published price list and
discounts provided based on factors including, but not
limited to, volume levels. Further details were disclosed
in the announcement dated 24 October 2017.

These continuing connected transactions of the Group are
disclosed as related party transactions in note 48 to the
financial statements.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions pursuant to Rule
14A.55 of the Listing Rules, and had confirmed that these
continuing connected transactions had been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) according to the terms of the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.
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The total amounts of the pre-handover real estate management
services fees, tender agency services fees and the sale
income disclosed above during the year under review have
not exceeded the annual caps amounts of HK$30 million,
HK$9.5 million and US$22 million (equivalent to approximately

HK$170.5 million), respectively.

Ernst & Young, the Company's external auditors, were engaged
to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information,
and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their unqualified
letter containing the findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions disclosed above in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, the related party transactions that
did not constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions of the Company during the year are
disclosed in note 48 to the financial statements. The Directors
confirmed that the Company had complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, the following Director had interests in the
following businesses conducted through the company named
below which are considered to compete or be likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group, as defined in the Listing Rules:

Name of Director Name of company

Nature of interest

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REMZE TEERER (58)BRAF
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EERGEMHRB Lo
ER THEFEBTARRSE FIIEBH
Wi MRS RBRE LT RUTERE AR

REBNEBERFANEEEERBEER
o

Nature of competing business

EEps DNEEH EEMtE BMEBEEBME
Chow Wai Kam CK Asset Holdings Limited Executive director - Property development
&% RIBXEEARAA WMITES and investment

The Board is of the view that the Group is capable of carrying
on its business independently of, and at arms length from the
Excluded Businesses. When making decisions on the businesses
of the Excluded Businesses of the Group, Mr. Chow, in the
performance of his duties as Director, has acted and will
continue to act in the best interest of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the
year 2018.

("Excluded Businesses”)
MEZRRIIRE
([EABRER])

EZeRRAEEARENBIIMEERE BT
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company and the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2018 have been audited
by Ernst & Young who shall retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited

Liu Hongde
Chairman

Hong Kong
15 March 2019
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e

Ernst & Young KEBFTENS AR Tel E&%: +852 2846 9888
EY 22/F, CITIC Tower BEEPIRREE1R Fax 8 H: +852 2868 4432
ﬁ?i( 1 Tim Mei Avenue hERE221E ey.com

Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of AVIC International Holding (HK)
Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AVIC
K) Limited (the
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 82 to 277, which

International Holding (H “Company”) and its
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

FHAVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matter

REETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMWETNMEEEARETEE

Purchase price allocation related to business combination

BHEFE R ED I

During the year, the Group completed the acquisition
of Motto Investment Limited and its subsidiaries
("Motto Group”) on 7 February 2018, satisfied
by cash consideration of HK$1,000 million and
3,783,783,783 shares of the Company.

Motto Group is principally engaged in the design,
development and production of general aviation
aircraft piston engines and spare parts as well as the
provision of aftermarket services and support for
piston engines.

RAFE BEE£EER-_ZTZ—N\F-_AtHZEKK
B Motto Investment Limited X% H [ & 2 &) ([ Motto
E£E]) UBELRBE1,0008EEFE TR ERQF
3,783,783,783 A 45 & -

Motto R B T 2N FRAMEREEIEE R BN
MRE FABEREE URRMAEZDRNERTS
AR TS M Sk -

We assessed the competence and objectivity of
the independent professional valuer engaged by
management.

We discussed with management the purchase
price allocation process of the Group. We assessed
management’s identification of the Motto Group's
identifiable assets and liabilities acquired at the
acquisition date.

BNEFEERERANB L T EENNE )RR
B

BMCEEEENW ESENBEEIKRE K
MEeFHEREEHWEE B AT EMottosk B 7] 357l
BERBENET-
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Key audit matter

REETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RAMWETNMEEEARETEER

BHEFE G ERESI (&)

Purchase price allocation related to business combination (continued)

Management engaged an independent professional
valuer to determine the fair values of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the Motto Group for the
purpose of the purchase price allocation at the
acquisition date.

The determination of the fair values of the
intangible assets is subjective in nature and involves
significant management judgement and estimation
of assumptions, including discount rates and growth
rates.

Relevant disclosures are included in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AEEESEN S EREDEEH L H R EDN
7% Mottotk B 5 WAl &6 B ) AT 851 6 2E R B 6 2 2
FiE-

BETEVEENATEABIENE PREEENE
RHE R BRET BRTRERERE-

HERBEINGE M mRNFEL2 -

We evaluated the assumptions adopted by
management in the cash flow forecasts used in the
valuation.

We involved our internal valuation specialists to assist
us with our assessment of the valuation methodology
and discount rates adopted.

We also assessed the related disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements.

BAPEFEEEBRMGEMARS REFRRF RS
H R °

BAEREAASBEEERBHRMATEMRANGEE
TAERFBER -

B FHERE B RERMENEBRE-
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Key audit matter

REETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMWETNMEEEARETEE

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had goodwill
and intangible assets amounting to HK$400 million
and HK$1,781 million, respectively, which are related
to the “general aviation aircraft piston engine
business in the United States of America” and the
“general aviation aircraft piston engine business in
Germany” cash-generating units (“"CGUs").

Management engaged an independent professional
valuer to determine the valuation models for the
impairment assessment.

The determination of recoverable amounts, being the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value-
in-use, requires significant management judgement
and estimates of variables such as expected growth in
revenue, gross margins and discount rates.

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 16 and 17
to the consolidated financial statements.

RZZ—N\F+=-A=1+—H EBE£EOEERER
& E % 7l /400,000,000 7T }2.1,781,000,000/% T
HIRNEBENBAMERBEEZHHELI RN
EENBRAMERE I ERYRER I BEEESE T
([ReEELERT])BH-

B ERFELERGENETREN G HERE -
BrAlmERE BAFERELERAREREE
MmEEE ATEBHELHEAHBREEME  WES
W RE - EMREHFREK-

AR ERN RSB RERMTI6 K17

We assessed the competence and objectivity of
the independent professional valuer engaged by
management.

We reviewed management’s assessment of the
recoverable amount. Our audit procedures included
examining and recalculating management’s
discounted cash flow projections for the
determination of value-in-use and assessing key
assumptions by comparison to the historical
performance of the CGUs. We also performed
sensitivity analyses on the assumptions used in the
cash flow projections. Further, we involved our
internal valuation specialists to assist us with our
assessment of the methodology and the discount
rates used to determine the recoverable amounts of
the CGUs.

We also assessed the related disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements.

HMEFHEREEERANBIEXAEMNEIRE
Bt

HMEEMEERBY AT IRE S BTG - R TS
EFreftntEkEaNtEEEENEEEREEMEF
HOFRRSRERA WBBLERSELETN
FELRBFGARBR -HATHRSREBAPE
AEBEETT T BURED T - tb i R BB A
HEERBHERMAFEARECRSELETAIKRE
SRENTERTRE -

AP IR 3P4 2 B 75 90 55 AT P R B S o
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Key audit matter

REETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RAMWETNMEEEARETEER

Impairment provision in a joint venture

RE &R aA B ER

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had interests in
joint ventures amounting to HK$39 million. As one
of the joint ventures sustained losses, management
performed an impairment assessment on the assets
of that joint venture. The determination of the
recoverable amounts of the assets of that joint
venture is dependent on a range of estimates and
assumptions.

Relevant disclosures are included in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RZZE-N\F+ZRA=+—RH  EEEREEQAZ
#257339,000,0008 T IR —REERRIFERE -
EEEHZAERARMNEELTTREN G - BEEZA
LBRABIEENTTHESEIBURRL Z @M RERR-

R ESRNRS B RAME18

We evaluated the application of the valuation
methodology for estimating the recoverable amounts
of the assets of that joint venture and key valuation
parameters.

We involved our internal valuation specialists to assist
us to assess the bases and assumptions adopted in
the valuation.

BRFEEEZEERREER RSB M[E X
EREZHELHEOBERML-

HAPIEE B AR S E B R B B AR E R A E P PR
B R R RER -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

FHRARNEMESR

ERREFFHEMERAA - EMERER
REBFATHNER ETBEFAaUBHRE
FEAlEL:NEPS

BHESEEeVBEmENER L NREHME
B EMTTAHZEFEMEERRAANEAN
B

U)%

BRMAYSEEYBRROB RANELE
MEREBEERELBRET ZREMES
Eéﬁi BMBRERIBPERSBRETRT
MBERFEEARBAEUT FHEEAER
iﬂ’]‘l*iﬁ ERBEMERATHOI/E MR
BREMESFEERERRL  HMFE
%EZ%;NEEE@*?‘Z1Pﬁ>‘§*ﬁ1ﬂﬂ$&%°

;ﬁfﬁﬁmﬁm‘

=
&
nu\

EENGaMBBRAENER

EQE%%ZE,W RIEEE
ERVBREENLBERTGINKER
*T%H%E,aﬁﬁqﬂaﬂ’l B BHmE LHER
2%/%1%5 —EM‘%#E?%E’H BIFERRRIEX
SR M B ERERRAPTF A BZEH A
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

ERBEAVBHRERE . BAREFRBAR
i BERERELENRS YEERABRT
BREREKEAMNFE URERFEL
EREHER KIF BEQREFEEEL =
SEBRAFULLE LHEEMERNER

L

BERREFEEZZESNHY NEITRE
EE ESEEMMBERERERE-

REMRET REMBRRAENER

BZAWER EHEAVBERRBERETH
£ i 70 BRAF S BE R T 48 BUA) B K AR R At BX
BAERE AL ABERMEROZBE R
FoHMNBEREERERRE-NN—F
FER BT (FRZAER) RE MALT
AEEMARE - R TSR ARENATAE
ERALTRE EAESE-

AEREESNKFNRE BETERERRE
BB ERETHER  EX -EABRRM
TrIE I AR BE 35 3R - R AR PR A] A R R RF Sk B AR
Sl MRAEFEMEMEBKEALIRA G
TESAVBBRREMAERBEEE P BHREM
1 R TE - BRI B O $E RRBR AL mT AR AR E
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

ERBEBETERETRIABES R
BRTERHAE RETEXERREEE R

DI

ast Bl A0 ¥ & B 0 BRRF oK 85 AR 1 B BUAR
EMBEBRFEENBRRANAR
WA RHMITEA R ARE ELAR
AN B AE E N BEAHRE ES
BPBROER - BARREFFA S M &
womE ERER ERRL REE
KA BB S 2 £ - Bk K 58 3% 30 R ARGGF
i 28 2R ) B K 85 RR PRt 9 B B = T R BE
HHRRFERMEHN B A RBAA R

B o

TR EET AR A EES] - ARFTE
ENEAEF BENLFEYE BEEE
NEIZEFIN AR MEERER -

HEEEMRA S EERNREIERIE
SRt AR REN R IE -

HEERAFBELLESHERNRKE
MR e o IRIBPT R BT R
BERLAFEEERABREMNEX
THEE RMARERYE E£EY
FEK LR NEEENRE - AREA
RRTFEERTHEEE MEVEERZ
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FEREERE-BREAEORESR
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

HEFRAMBHRERNBRIETA &
BNAR BERE URGESVBR
REETPERRZZMEIE-

. B EREANERXEFIDOMKE
BERRT EENTNRE UEY
FEMBEHRERER -BMEE &
SEBRFANTR EEMRT -HMA
BEARRAER2HEE-

BREMERIN RAREELZEGEABTAME
MBEFEE BHRZHE EXEAERS B
EIRMIET R A B I R E R E AR
B o

HHERNBESZERRRER HARMEF
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lai Ho Yin.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
15 March 2019

feREZZ B RBOFAET - L IHEE WL
SHHAYPGRAVBREANEARSER B
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Year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT— \F+_A=1+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\& —T—+F
Notes HKS'000 HK$'000
Htiz FET FET
(Restated)
(E5)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS REREEY
REVENUE e 5 1,341,223 -
Cost of sales HEKK (1,070,262) -
Gross profit EH 270,961 B
Other income and gain H A A R F 5 51,355 6,227
Selling and distribution expenses HEREHER (83,367) -
Administrative expenses ﬁﬂ( BEEM (351,248) (37,054)
Other operating expense Hi &R % 6 - (764)
Finance costs BRI % 7 (18,854) -
Gain on disposal of convertible loans HEMRRER 2 FIHE 25 - 87,151
Share of profits and losses of: RN REE:
Joint ventures B2 AT (2,941) (19,043)
Associates HERE 471 222
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate WEBLERE R R 2B 19 3,561 -
Loss on disposal of an associate HEHE AR BE 79 (909) -
Impairment of available-for-sale investments AHREENRE 2 RE
(transfer from available-for-sale investment (e EHERE
revaluation reserve) BHREEEAN) 20 = (67,280)
Reversal of impairment losses/(impairment losses) Bf i & & Z HEBERR/
on financial assets, net (REEE) T8 6 2,519 (20,699)
Fair value loss on derivative financial instruments T4 428 T E 7 A T{EEE 21 - (11,337)
Fair value loss on an equity investment BATEFABRIRERE
at fair value through profit or loss NEEEE - (6,857)
Fair value loss on financial assets TE@$EE+AT§§ZE7T7F%EEZ
at fair value through profit or loss ATEEER (30,573) -
LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING REFEREXB 2 BRBA
OPERATIONS 3] 6 (159,025) (69,434)
Income tax credit PSR 10 31,893 724
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING REGARCEEB2AEHR
OPERATIONS (127,132) (68,710)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEEEEK
Profit/(loss) for the year from a discontinued RECKRIFEEERK L
operation KERF,/ (BR) 11 507,569 (267,833)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR KERF/ (BR) 380,437 (336,543)
Attributable to: TH AT
Owners of the parent NAIFEE 398,968 (288,481)
Non-controlling interests ik (18,531) (48,062)
380,437 (336,543)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE B A RLEERSH AEN
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF BREFN/ (F8)
THE PARENT 13
Basic and diluted BEAREE
~ For profit/(loss) for the year —-AREHEF/ (BE) HK4.47 cents (HK5.23 cents)
4.47%4L (5.2378 1)
— For loss from continuing operations -REKELEEB BR (HK1.43 cents) (HK1.24 cents)
(1.437%4L) (1.24741)




AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REMZE TEERER (58)BRAF
Annual Report 2018 —Z — )\ 7R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #r & £ H W 25 &

Year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT— \F+_A=1+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
k=3 FET FET
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR XERF/ (FE) 380,437 (336,543)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hih 2 H k&
Other comprehensive income that may be RERBBAIEERIEZE
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent Bamz Efn 2wl :
periods:
Available-for-sale investments: AR ENERE:
Changes in fair value NFEED 20 - (86,017)
Reclassification adjustment for loss included in ~ FF ABABREZEEZ
the consolidated statement of profit or loss BN BEAE
- Impairment loss —REBE 20 - 67,280
= (18,737)
Exchange differences: P A )
Exchange differences on translation BREBIEBEEZ
of foreign operations fE N =% (117,307) 97,554
Reclassification adjustment for a foreign AEHEZBINEKZ
operation disposed of during the year BN EHE 43 114,803 -
(2,504) 97,554
Share of other comprehensive income DEEERAZEtmEEKE
of a joint venture = 2,905
NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME THAT RE#ZHBAEEH S EE
MAY BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT ORLOSS E#zHtt2H i FHE
IN SUBSEQUENT PERIODS (2,504) 81,722
Other comprehensive income that will not be  REZBETZENHEE
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent BazHEME2ERE:
periods:
Actuarial gains on defined benefit plans ERE N EBENE 36 1,333 -
Income tax effect RS- % (338) -
995 -
Equity investments designated at fair value BRAFEFAEMRE
through other comprehensive income: Wik AR -
Changes in fair value NFEE (137,499) -
NET OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME THAT RE#HBMFEEHIEE
WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFITOR ~ E# 2 Hiti2EKEFHE
LOSS IN SUBSEQUENT PERIODS (136,504) -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AEHMEEKE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (MpRBER) (139,008) 81,722
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AERHBERE
FOR THE YEAR 241,429 (254,821)
Attributable to: THATER:
Owners of the parent BREIMESE 279,595 (240,767)
Non-controlling interests R (38,166) (14,054)
241,429 (254,821)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 424 B # R % 3%

31 December 2018 —E—\F+=-A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\& —tF
Notes HKS'000 HK$'000
&t FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 14 335,243 22,444
Investment properties 15 = 368,639
Goodwill Sk 16 400,094
Other intangible assets HEFEE 17 1,781,157 -
Investments in joint ventures BER T Z& ﬁ 18 39,174 42,464
Investments in associates 19 12,446 14,385
Equity investments designated at fair value { ﬁ]\ﬁﬁﬂ%@
through other comprehensive income HQEZH&L$T§§ 20 54,031 -
Available-for-sale investments AN ENEE 20 - 110,380
Total non-current assets ERBEEBE 2,622,145 558,312
CURRENT ASSETS
Properties under development and BRPMERFELEZ
completed properties held for sale TR 22 - 2,937,160
Inventories 23 473,753 -
Trade receivables EWE 5T 24 102,711 76,977
Due from fellow subsidiaries JE U ] ?W%"ﬂ 31 29,566 1,664
Due from an associate 19 575 10,441
Loans to an associate 19 9,143 -
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
ﬁf@%ﬂ&zﬁ%?& 25 84,795 5,095
Available-for-sale investments AHENEE 20 - 82,348
Financial assets at fair value through AFEFABREL
profit or loss f 26 - 80,761
Derivative financial instruments TESBIA 21 - 1
Prepaid taxes 27 - 4,176
Cash and cash equivalents RekBe%E 28 1,191,575 627,140
Total current assets 1,892,118 3,825,763
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #Z= & Bf # ik 57 3%
31 December 2018 —Z— \F+=-_A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\§ —t&F
Notes HKS'000 HK$'000
Hizt FET FET
CURRENT LIABILITIES ik Y
Due to non-controlling shareholders of FE AT BT /8 A B] 2 JEIE IR AR 3R
subsidiaries 29 = 138,852
Due to intermediate holding companies PR R R A 30 28,815 16,681
Due to fellow subsidiaries R IGES IR 31 - 5,492
Loans from a fellow subsidiary KERZEME R 7 HEX 31 - 366,864
Trade payables e E 5 8RN 32 90,152 122,511
Other payables and accruals HibENRIERETER 33 114,727 34,198
Provisions and other liabilities RERHEMEE 34 49,445 -
Customer deposits RFE&e - 217,981
Tax payable e iIE 137,389 78,403
Interest-bearing bank borrowings HERITER 35 120,218 -
Total current liabilities nBRELEE 540,746 980,982
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 1,351,372 2,844,781
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EE#BERAEEE 3,973,517 3,403,093
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Loans from an intermediate holding company R & EZKR A BINE X 30 - 503,550
Loans from a fellow subsidiary RERZMBARLER 31 - 556,213
Other payables and accruals BN RIERERER 33 29,520 -
Provisions and other liabilities BEIEMEE 34 47,539 -
Interest-bearing bank borrowings HEBITER 35 1,031 -
Defined benefit obligations E%ﬁﬁa FIEM 36 6,905 -
Deferred tax liabilities FREFIEAE 37 269,354 71,398
Total non-current liabilities FRBERERE 354,349 1,131,161
Net assets BEHE 3,619,168 2,271,932
EQUITY iR
Equity attributable to owners of the parent B A FFIEEEGER
Issued capital BEITEAR 38 930,337 551,959
Reserves f#& 40 2,688,831 1,180,546
3,619,168 1,732,505
Non-controlling interests FERER - 539,427
Total equity BmaE 3,619,168 2,271,932

Lai Weixuan
BEE
Director

EFE

Fu Fangxing

BrE

Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &R B KR
Year ended 31 December 2018 HE =T —\F+-A=1+—HIEFE
Share
Issued premium
capital account
BEITRA % 17 )5 (B BR
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHET
At 1 January 2017 RZF—+%—H—H 551,959 609,080
Loss for the year REBA - -
Other comprehensive income AEHEMEENE:
for the year:
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale AHHENRECATEED
investments, net of tax (MkHEE) - -
Share of other comprehensive income of NMEAEREZEMEEKE
a joint venture - -
Exchange differences related to HENEBEB ELES
foreign operations - -
Total comprehensive income rE2ANELEH
for the year - -
Transfer to reserve fund BEREZFES - -
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+-A=+—H 551,959 609,080*
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY Z&R & = 2 B &

Year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT— \F+_A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAMBEREER

Available-
for-sale
investment Exchange Non-
revaluation Reserve fluctuation Retained controlling Total
reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity
A E N
REBMFERE FHe e BEan ) MRS EnEE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TR TET T FET THET FET TET
(note 40)
(Kfit4a0)
25,386 18,505 (116,340) 884,682 1,973,272 553,481 2,526,753
- - - (288,481) (288,481) (48,062) (336,543)
(18,737) - - - (18,737) - (18,737)
- - 2,905 - 2,905 - 2,905
- - 63,546 - 63,546 34,008 97,554
(18,737) - 66,451 (288,481) (240,767) (14,054) (254,821)
- 5,150 - (5,150) - - _

6,649* 23,655* (49,889)* 591,051* 1,732,505 539,427 2,271,932

87



88

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REMZE TEERER (58)BRA T

Annual Report 2018 —Z— )\ FFF 7R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY iR S =B B &

Year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT— \F+_A=1+—HILFE

Available-
for-sale
Share investment
Issued premium revaluation
capital account reserve
AHEHE
BRITRA BBEER REEMFHE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET
At 31 December 2017 R_E—+&5—H—H 551,959 609,080 6,649
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 BB AT REER
(note 2.2(a)) FORMEZE (Hit2.2(a) - - (6,649)
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 15 BB AT REER
(note 2.2(b)) FISHKOTE (Hi22.20)) - - -
At 1 January 2018 (restated) W-2-N\F—A—H (&) 551,959 609,080 -
Profit for the year REF 5 F - - -
Other comprehensive income FEEMEENE
for the year:
Exchange differences related EGNEBERCELER
to foreign operations = = =
Actuarial gains on defined benefit TREEAEBENE
plans, net of tax (MEFEE) = - -
Changes in fair value of equity BATEFAEMEZENE
investments designated at fair value BAEE s AT EE
through other comprehensive income = = =
Total comprehensive income for the year R4 2 [ UL 258 = - -
Issue of shares (note 38) BIIRG (H1i238) 378,378 1,248,649 -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBERA = = =
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\E+-_A=+—H 930,337 1,857,729* —*

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$2,688,831,000 (2017: HK$1,180,546,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

ZERBEEBREAVBRAREPHE
A RE#2,688,831,0008 0 (- & —+ 4
1,180,546,000/% 7T ) °
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Year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT— \F+_A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARFMEEEEER
Fair value
reserve
of equity
investments
designated
at fair value
through other Exchange Non-
comprehensive Reserve fluctuation Retained controlling Total
income fund reserve profits Total interests equity
ROFETA
Hih2EKE 2
REREZ 5K E
AVERE wEE A BN &5t FERER EEmaE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note 40)
(Hizta0)
= 23,655 (49,889) 591,051 1,732,505 539,427 2,271,932
(628,135) - - 634,784 - - -
- - 1,070 (21,029) (19,959) (18,364) (38,323)
(628,135) 23,655 (48,819) 1,204,806 1,712,546 521,063 2,233,609
= = = 398,968 398,968 (18,531) 380,437
= = 17,131 = 17,131 (19,635) (2,504)
= = = 995 995 > 995
(137,499) = = = (137,499) > (137,499)
(137,499) = 17,131 399,963 279,595 (38,166) 241,429
= = = = 1,627,027 = 1,627,027
= (15,865) = 15,865 = (482,897) (482,897)
(765,634)* 7,790* (31,688)* 1,620,634 3,619,168 = 3,619,168
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 488 &

Year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT— \F+_A=1+—HILFE

MBI

2018 2017
—E-N\% —E—+tF
Notes HKS'000 HK$°000
&t FET FET
(Restated)
(E5)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES £ ZBH 2 REKE
Profit/(loss) before tax: BERER, (BE):
From continuing operations KRERBREER (159,025) (69,434)
From a discontinued operation REBR[EEER 11 (58,396) (251,913)
Adjustments for: HE
Finance costs MBH % 67,965 38,761
Share of profits and losses of joint ventures NMEEERAIRBERRZ
and associates m R g8 2,470 18,821
Bank interest income SRITRIBUA (2,744) (6,239)
Interest income on a convertible bond MRRES 2 FIERA 5 (186) (1,036)
Interest income on loans to an associate REEABRRENER
FIEWA 5 (787) (586)
Interest income on a loan to a related REHARRENER
company FEWA 5 - (536)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, HENE - BEMREEE
plant and equipment ZER/ (FE) 56 (221) 764
Reversal of write-down of inventories to net ~ FEHEZ A &5 FEED
realisable value 6 (2,335) -
Depreciation e 6 58,789 1,098
Amortisation of other intangible assets HEVEE HH 6 75,807 -
Impairment of trade receivables, net EAE ZERFUREFR 6 969 -
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of other  E 4 YR 2 FifE,/
receivables, net CRERE)FE 6 (3,488) 20,699
Fair value gains on investment properties REWMEZ A TEMNE 15 (1,744) (33,103)
Gain on deemed disposal of an associate BRALERERAZFE 19 (3,561) -
Loss on disposal of an associate HEBL AR ZER 19 909 -
Impairment of available-for-sale investments ~ AJ{t &R E ZHE 20 - 67,280
Fair value loss on derivative financial THEEMIAY
instruments NEEERE 21 - 11,337
Write-down of properties under development ZEHYEREIEHE Y
and completed properties held for sale to EXHMERER
net realisable value I EE 22 - 296,848
Gain on disposal of convertible loans & AR 32 M 25 = (87,151)
Fair value loss on financial assets BRATEFAEREL
at fair value through profit or loss UHEE,ATEBE 30,573 -
Fair value loss on an equity investment BRATEFABREZBRAE
at fair value through profit or loss REZNTEBRE - 6,857
4,995 12,467
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS iR R & RE &K

Year ended 31 December 2018 # &

—E-NF+ZA=+—HIEFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Jiotz3 FET FET
(Restated)
(E75)
Decrease/(increase) in properties under BREPMERFELRE L
development and completed BETRMERD,/ (EM)
properties held for sale (41,081) 1,149,205
Decrease in inventories FERD 106,882 -
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables FEW B ZERFORD /() (30,769) 17,165
Decrease in amounts due from fellow YR AMBARRERD
subsidiaries 458 9,950
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TBRRE - e kE M EUER
deposits and other receivables FomL,/ (3E0) (32,633) 32,441
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables ENESEREN L) (35,490) 79,219
Increase in other payables and accruals HoA JE S OB R B A B AL 38,959 16,225
Decrease in provisions and other liabilities BREREMEERD (20,172) -
Decrease in customer deposits BERE&RDY - (748,686)
Increase in defined benefit obligations ERBMEEEM 1,232 -
Cash generated from/(used in) operations BEELE/ (FR)2B% (7,619) 567,986
Overseas tax paid BABINEIE (16,147) (16,986)
Net cash flows from/(used in) mETHELE/ (FR)Z
operating activities RengFs (23,766) 551,000
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZEBHZHEERE
Purchases of items of property, BAME BEANRERE
plant and equipment 14 (66,973) (28)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, L& V%%D?&ﬁlﬁ B
plant and equipment P {5 3 7,746 793
Additions to other intangible assets ﬁﬂﬂﬁi\’r@ﬂﬁ/ﬁﬁ 17 (54,862) -
Proceeds from disposal of HEEMBREEMBSRA
other intangible assets 2,666 -
Receipt on maturity of convertible bond AR & 5 B B AT W 3R 51,775 -
Proceeds from disposal of convertible loans & [T HQQ?KFﬁ?%ﬂ - 87,151
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B 42 (926,080) -
Disposal of subsidiaries HER B 43 2,157,548 -
Repayment of an amount due from Fﬂﬂﬁﬁ%@ HEZBE
an associate 582 -
Bank interest received BURITH B 2,744 6,214
Interest received on a convertible bond Bl RRES 2 E 186 1,036
Interest received on loans to an associate B E R RIE A S 804 774
Interest received on a loan to a B EaE A R E A8
related company = 1,079
Disposal of an associate HEEE DA 19 4,388 -
Purchase of an equity investment designated ~ BAZATEFAEMEE
at fair value through other Yk 2 RAZE
comprehensive income (389) -
Net cash flows from investing activities BREEHEERENEFH 1,180,135 97,019

91



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited e v,
PEIMZE TEERER (58)BRAT '
Annual Report 2018 —Z— )\ FFF 7R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 45 HE&RER

Year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT— \F+_A=1+—HILFE

2018 2017
—B-N\¥ —T—tF
Note HK$'000 HK$°000
i3 FEL TET
(Restated)
(£51)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES m&EEgrB47xE
New bank loans MBTER 236,724 -
Repayment of bank loans BEBRTEDR (167,400) (230,134)
Repayment of loans from a fellow subsidiary — EiEkEREZMBEARNED - (373,852)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to non- NG P 22T
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries FEENn,/ Chd) (4,896) 45,946
Repayment of loans from a non-controlling BEekEHBATYZ
shareholder of a subsidiary ERRRENE S (50,740) _
Repayment of loans from an intermediate BEkahEERARNED
holding company (486,285) -
Decrease in amounts due to intermediate FET R R A B R IB R
holding companies (7,484) _
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to fellow  pEft R R B A 7208
subsidiaries i/ CRd) (18,304) 4,726
Interest paid 2RF 8 (67,851) (88,593)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEEEHEEIEL RS EE (566,236) (641,907)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND BeRBELZHEEMBE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 590,133 6,112
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year &7 B4 LE4LZE 627,140 605,925
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  [&E &g &2 2 %40 (25,698) 15,103
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRVEESREELZE
AT END OF YEAR 1,191,575 627,140
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND BeRBLZHEEHRIIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances R RPITETF 28 1,191,575 301,921
Non-pledged time deposits with original NEBRIBEAFTE=HEAY
maturity of less than three months when IR T
acquired R 28 - 325,219

1,191,575 627,140
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
registered office of the Company is located at Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was mainly involved in:

(i) the general aviation aircraft piston engine
business; and

(ii) the property development and investment
business*.

The Group disposed of the property development and
investment business during the year.

In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Aviation Industry
Corporation of China, Ltd, which is incorporated in the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC").

1.

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H

RAREEER

AVIC International Holding (HK)
Limited B 2= T ¥ BB IERR (F#)
BERARA—MRBEREIMK LA
RAF e RRA) P EE & Canon's
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton,
HM 12, Bermuda °

FRAEETENRE:

(i) BRAMERKEEZDRET:
&
(i MERBRERERHG -

* AEBECNFAHEENXRRLEE
E N

e ENGE T NS
ETEREARAA KAARTEA
REFE ([ B ) M-
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31 December 2018 —E—\F+=-A=+—H

DNEREEER (&F)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(continued)

BEKEQRANER

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

AARETEMBABZFHBNOT

follows:
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/
registration registered Percentage of equity Principal
Name and business share capital attributable to the Company activities
HEMRL, BRITLER
8 AR R S B HEfREA  AARELCRAEZAILE TEXR
Direct Indirect
HiE Gk
CATIC Helicopter PRC/ HK$42,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Development Mainland China 42,000,000/ 70 REER
(Shenzhen) Limited FE A
("CATIC Helicopter SZ")**
LR B T R PR 7
(RIDBR AT
(TR M E ORI ]) =
Billirich Investment Limited* British Virgin US$1,000 100 - Investment holding
Islands/ 1,000% 7T REER
Hong Kong
EEEAHS/
BE
Motto Investment Limited British Virgin US$68,200,000 100 - Investment holding
("Motto")* Islands/ 68,200,000 7T REERK
Hong Kong
KBRAZHES/
BB
Continental Motors British Virgin US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Deutschland Limited* Islands/ 127 REER
Hong Kong
EEEAHS/
BE
Continental Motors, Inc. United States of us$10 - 100 Design, development
America ("USA") 10% 7T and production of

XFRERE
(I%81)

aircraft engines
and spare parts and
provision of repair
and maintenance
services for aircraft
engines

et FEREERE
BHE B AR
R EDRBER
&R
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31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

1.

DNEREEER (&F)

FENREARNER (&)
ARREIEMBRARZHBMOT

follows: (continued) (#&)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary/
registration registered Percentage of equity Principal
Name and business share capital attributable to the Company activities
HEMRL, BRTLZER
8 AR R B HEfREA  AARELCRAEZAESIL TEXR
Direct Indirect
HiE e 4
Technify Motors GmbH Germany EUR25,000 - 100 Design, development
= 25,0008 7T and production of
aircraft engines and
spare parts
Rt B R EERE
Bk PXE
CATIC General Aviation British Virgin US$2 100 - Dormant
Holdings Limited* Islands/ 2ETT Tmex
Hong Kong
EBRAHS/
BB
Wahman Investment Limited*  British Virgin US$1 100 - Dormant
Islands/ (E TmEx
Hong Kong
EEELHS/
N
Kingspot Investment Limited*  British Virgin HK$1 100 - Investment holding
Islands/Hong BT REERK
Kong
EBRAHS/
BB
Yipon Investment Limited* British Virgin US$1 100 - Dormant
Islands/ (E TmEx
Hong Kong
EEEAHS/
N
CATIC Helicopter (H.K.) British Virgin Us$2 100 - Investment holding
Limited* Islands/ 2ETT REERK
Hong Kong
EBRAHS/
BB
* CATIC Helicopter SZ is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned * FR R B R YIAR 8 R B B R A
enterprise under PRC law. INEBERE -
# None of the statutory financial statements of these # P UL ST B A BB A E B S IRk 3F
subsidiaries was audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or ARKEBRLKERBEEMKER

another member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

AlEZ -
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31 December 2018 —E—\F+=-A=+—H

2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

During the year, the Group acquired Motto and its
subsidiaries (“Motto Group”) from an intermediate
holding company. Further details of the acquisition are
included in note 42 to the financial statements.

During the year, the Group disposed of the entire issued
share capital of Ease Triumph International Limited
("Ease Triumph"). Further details of the above disposal
are included in note 43 to the financial statements.

The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"),
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the

accounting principles generally accepted

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment properties, equity investments, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, and derivative
financial instruments which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

1.

2.1

DNEREEER (&F)

EEMBATNER (&)

FR OAEEBPEERABFKE
Motto & E i A 7] ([MottoEE]) °
U 7 — SR B H N IS MR M 5
42 -

FRAEELHEREBERER QA
(MAEHNE2MEETRA -G/ it
HEZE-PHBEARMBREME
43 -

ERIHEBEEERREAKEAFEE
BREBEAREALAREEERECE
RO ZARRZMBERR -EFBR
s HEM B AT ZER  SERRE
BRITE

mRERE

AR BmREIRBEESGAHAE ([F
ARIEAE ) B2 BEWHERELE
A ([EEMBHREER]) (AP
EREBMBHREER FEGER
(IBEEEFENRE) BEEE
BBz &5 RAAREE R FHED RO
BHRERR A BHRRRIFE LKA
AR HEREME BAFEAR
B BEARERVHFEENRITES R
TEARBRIN ARFEFE) - AP BHE
WETE2Y BFFABEONEAAR
REAZ TUE (FRIERZEHA) -
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2018. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

2.1

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H

mAEE (F)

REEE
HEMBHRREBEARBLENE QT
(G AEEDBE_F-/\F+=
A=+ —-BUEFEZHBERR-HER
AINARFEERKMEREG2ER (8
REBLEER) EXAKER2ERER
BRAIEES 2 A 280 A E R
ERZAEN WEEHARIRE N FE
REROAFEDZSRE (NRF 2%
AR EE SRR E R A 28
MREE) AIRKRAKSEEBZG#Z-

fMARAERIEEAERIRE QT
MR E SR LER DR A Z 80 AR
SERNFEERTHAHRRERAZ
BOIKSEE—UHEBEZEERER &
EEE

(@) BERRERFEMERERBEAZ
BT

~
=

(b) HEMANRHMELZEN: &
(0 FAEEZERERRBEREE-

ERi= NS b e e =g S L = NN
HE WERAEARNRF] - G HE
mE-MBARRENBAEEIGE
HiEE BEFAGEMBHRRA L —
Bt AEEZERIERIEER L
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31 December 2018 —E—\F+=-A=+—H

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s
share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

2.1

mAREE (&)

REEE (#)

AME S S B RRERE LB ER
826 R A 2 E RS 2 SRR R
BRAEEGDRNEERIFERE
Ho-EALEKEDAMIRBEBL
FERBERNARMEERARE #3
KA BERRSREHNGEHER
5

1 2 B S 1B 00 IR BR | 3Py it = TR 2 Il
REHEF-HXZHEAE AAKES
ERRANARENRRERAR -HEA
Bl HRAEERELEZE BIRKE
TR - SR H AR

HMAEERENBLR ZEGE g
RIEBROZHBLARZEE (BRER
B)RAE: (VMEFASHERED 2 RE
B Rt Agmz Rt REZH I
HRNEKRREZATE: (NEMER
BB A E R A b mE 4
Wit NBEZ B EA - K AT E A
PHKRETERZAKERERD T
ERASEEZLERBEEERAGBRR
BRZAREE RIBEAEHDEE
B E R -
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts
with Customers
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment
Property
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance
Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and
HKAS 28

Annual Improvements
20714-2016 Cycle

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the adoption of the above new
and revised standards has had no significant financial
effect on these financial statements.

2.2

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H

B REREE 2

AEEDRANFENI BRI ERK
AT REETRER B RS E
Al

BEMBRE KROEBENXZZ78

LERE25RE  RiE
&3
BV BEmE RAZEBYBHRETE
HANEBAFE  AIFE4RREBE AR
&3] —HEFE B
HERIEI 2T
A
BEREMBERE Z2/HIA
AR 5%
BEEMBEmE EFEFLEANZ
AR E155%
BV BmE EEEBYBHRETE
HRIEISHEE  AIFEISRELEA
&3] Wz
BAGIHER HKEYXBEE
FA0RAEET
/%(IB%%HM‘% INESE G RFETILIE
WEREZE
%)*@%%
2258
—FEE  BFEMBHREERSE
—FE—NFH 1R EREBgER
Hm)FEHE B8R KIER]
BRI XPTerl o BT B RELELFE9
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31 December 2018 —E—\F+=-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(@) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all
three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting.

The Group has recognised the transition
adjustments against the applicable opening
balances in equity at 1 January 2018. Therefore,
the comparative information was not restated and
continues to be reported under HKAS 39.

Classification and measurement

The following information sets out the impacts of
adopting HKFRS 9 on the statement of financial
position.

22 SHBRERRBEZ2E (F)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B1 %8 3R & K{ st

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)

A reconciliation between the changes in carrying

amounts under HKAS 39 and the balances
reported under HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 is

as follows:

HKAS 39 measurement

EREH RSN IHE

2.2

31 December 2018 —E—N\E+=-_A=+—8H
B BERREE 2SS (£)

(a) (%)

PERE(E)
REFEEERIEIRNEE
B2 RS BRBERENHREE
AESRERHN T —NEFE—A
—BESRZHERWT:

HKFRS 9 measurement

BRUBBEENFIR 2GR

Re-
Category Amount classification Amount Category
Al k2 ENSE k2 Al
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mzt FET FET FET
Financial assets BBEE
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE AFS? 192,728 (192,728) - N/A
TER
To: Equity investments designated 88 F : A FEFTA (i) (110,380)
at fair value through other Hip2E a2
comprehensive income RAR &
To: Financial assets at fair value ~ B ZAFEFABEZ (i) (82,348)
through profit or loss HBEE
Equity investments designated BRATEGAEMEE N/A - 191,141 191,141 Fvocr’
at fair value through other Wi 2 BB E TER (equity)
comprehensive income (%)
From: Available-for-sale BE AHRHENRE (i) 110,380
investments
From: Equity investment at #BE BEATEGA (i) 80,761
fair value through BaZBRERE
profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFABSEZ FVPL® - 82,349 82,349 FVPL
through profit or loss HBEE (mandatory)
(&%)
From: Available-for-sale investments & & : Bt H &£ #) 1% & (ii) 82,348
From: Derivative financial #E TESRTA (i) 1
instruments
Equity investments at fair value A TF(E ABHEZ FVPL 80,761 (80,761) - N/A
through profit or loss R E TER
To: Equity investments designated 8 F - ERAFEFTA (i) (80,761)
at fair value through other Hi2EK@E
comprehensive income R E
Derivative financial instruments #7454 @ TE FVPL 1 (1) - N/A
TER
To: Financial assets at fair BE BEATEGA (ii) (1
value through other HE2EKR
comprehensive income HBEE
273,490 - 273,490
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)

1

(i)

FVOCI: Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

AFS:  Available-for-sale investments
FVPL:  Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

The Group has elected the option to
irrevocably designate certain of its previous
available-for-sale equity investments and
equity investment at fair value through
profit or loss as equity investments at
fair value through other comprehensive
income.

The Group has classified its convertible
bonds previously classified as available-for-
sale investments and derivative financial
instruments as financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss as these
non-equity investments did not pass the
contractual cash flow characteristics test in
HKFRS 9.

22 SHBRERRBEZ2E (F)

(a)

(%)

PERE (E)

" FVOCl: ERFEFGFARMEEH
Was 2 WBEE

2 AFS : AR ERIRE

3 OFVPL:  ERFEFABZZHY
BEE

Hiat -

(i) AEBE B REDIHEEM

(i)

#ETHERZ A&
MR E KRR AFEFAR
BmZBEAREREE/ER
FEFAREMEEKEZ
BAE -
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 E©xBEREECEH (£)
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(continued) (a) (%)
Impact on reserves and retained profits YREREF A&
The impact of transition to HKFRS 9 on reserves BEEREMBHREEREIR
and retained profits is as follows: HREGBLRBERNOZENT
Reserves and
retained profits
REREEREF
HKS'000
FET
Fair value reserve under HKFRS 9 BIEEBMBEREERFEIGREEZ
(available-for-sale investment revaluation 2 FE#FE (BEEESHER
reserve under HKAS 39) FIVREEZAHEHEREEM
%E)
Balance as at 31 December 2017 under BEEAGHERNEIRETEZ
HKAS 39 “E—tHFF+-A=t—HZ&EH 6,649
Reclassification of financial assets from EHBEEEHRATHEEENKRE
available-for-sale investments to financial ENoBEERATEFABRZ
assets at fair value through profit or loss WBEE (6,649)
Reversal of impairment losses under HKAS 39 BRI DA ERNIRE 2
for equity investments designated at fair BEAFEFAHEMEZEKZ 2
value through other comprehensive income X AN3& & - IR H B &5t %8|
previously classified as available-for-sale 395 H R B E B & T
investments (628,135)
Balance as at 1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 1R IE & 8 B 5 ) & £ R 55955
BEZ2_ZT—N\F-HA—Bz#&&H (628,135)
Retained profits BFaA
Balance as at 31 December 2017 under BREEBGHEAEINRET 2 Z
HKAS 39 E—+HF+A=+—HZH#&#H 591,051
Reclassification of financial assets from PHBEERAIHEENKRE
available-for-sale investments to financial BHOBERAFEFABRY
assets at fair value through profit or loss MIEEE 6,649
Reversal of impairment losses under HKAS 39 St LRI DB AR HE EHMRE 2
for equity investments designated at fair BRATEFAEMEERZ 2
value through other comprehensive income R A& - BiFEE & s+ 28|
previously classified as available-for-sale E395R I H R B E B T
investments 628,135

Balance as at 1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 1R 15 & /& 8 75 R & #E B 55955
BEZ-_T-N\F-A—Rz&H 1,225,835
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)  HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11
Construction Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and
related interpretations and it applies, with limited
exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts
with customers. HKFRS 15 establishes a new
five-step model to account for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15
provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation
of total revenue, information about performance
obligations, changes in contract asset and liability
account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The disclosures are
included in note 5 to the financial statements.
As a result of the application of HKFRS 15, the
Group has changed the accounting policy with
respect to revenue recognition in note 2.4 to the
financial statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the
modified retrospective method of adoption.
Under this method, the standard can be applied
either to all contracts at the date of initial
application or only to contracts that are not
completed at this date. The Group has elected
to apply the standard to contracts that are not
completed as at 1 January 2018.

22 EBFBEREREREz228 (F)

(b)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

22 EBIFBERBEEZ®H (Z)

(continued) (b) (%)
The cumulative effect of the initial application BRERBETBRELERFES
of HKFRS 15 was recognised as an adjustment KRB ERARENR_E
to the opening balance of retained profits as —N\F—A—HBEBFENENE
at 1 January 2018. Therefore, the comparative BR2 AR AL LB E B I &
information was not restated and continues to be B REBRBEEGHERE
reported under HKAS 11, HKAS 18 and related 115% « BB &R E 1858 R AE
interpretations. AR EER-
Set out below are the amounts by which each TXEINRZZE—N\F—HA—H
financial statement line item was affected as at RN B B i S 2RI 2155
1 January 2018 as a result of the adoption of M &Mz 2 ETEREK
HKFRS 15: TEZEHE:
Increase/
(decrease)
®im, CEd)
Notes HKS'000
k23 FET
Assets BE
Properties under development and BEBMERFELEZ
completed properties held for sale [mEID R/ ES (i) 134,818
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR K (1) (76,977)
Due from fellow subsidiaries i3 = NG (1) (1,664)
Prepayments Tt FRIE (iii) 4,971
Prepaid taxes TERT 1B (i) 16,539
Total assets BEBE 77,687
Liabilities =R
Other payables and accruals Hoh & A4 3008 R B ST B A (i) (10,016)
Customer deposits BEFPRE (), (ii) (217,981)
Contract liabilities EHEE (1), (ii) 339,654
Deferred tax liabilities EIETIE B E 4,353
Total liabilities BEBE 116,010
Equity &
Exchange fluctuation reserve P& 5,8 Bh 1 (i) 1,070
Retained profits B1Fm A (1), (iii) (21,029)
Non-controlling interests IR E = (i) (18,364)

(38,323)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

(continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 15 has had no impact
on profit or loss from continuing operations,
other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of financial position or on the Group's
operating, investing and financing cash flows for
the year ended 31 December 2018 because the
property development and investment business
has been disposed of.

The nature of the adjustments as at 1 January
2018 are described below:

() Revenue from sales of properties

Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 15, the
Group accounted for revenue from sales
of properties when significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, for properties that have
no alternative use to the Group due to
contractual reasons and when the Group
has an enforceable right to payment from
customers for performance completed to
date, the Group recognises revenue as the
performance obligation is satisfied over
time in accordance with the input method
for measuring progress. The excess of
cumulative revenue recognised in profit
or loss over the cumulative billings to
purchasers of properties is recognised as
contract assets. The excess of cumulative
billings to purchasers of properties over the
cumulative revenue recognised in profit or
loss is recognised as contract liabilities.

22 EBFBEREREREz228 (F)

(b)

(%)

RNE BV B REERF155%
HRBHBEEER 2 GMNEE
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=
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 E©xBEREECEH (£)
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) (continued)

()

Revenue from sales of properties
(continued)

If the control of the asset transfers over
time, revenue is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of
that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the purchaser obtains control of the
asset.

The progress towards complete satisfaction
of the performance obligation is measured
based on the Group’s efforts or inputs
to the satisfaction of the performance
obligation, by reference to the contract
costs incurred up to the end of reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated
costs for each contract.

For property development and sales
contract for which the control of the
property is transferred at a point in time,
revenue is recognised when the purchaser
obtains the physical procession or the
legal title of the completed property and
the Group has present right to payment
and the collection of the consideration is
probable.

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS
15 on revenue from sales of properties
was adjusted to the opening balance of
retained profits at 1 January 2018.

(b) (%)

@

KEYFEEZ Wi
(%)

B E . EHREB— K
R 8 W i i A
BHMEETKENEE
M EEITRER SR
WHERETRSEEES
R R EITRER -

TRBRHEEREREDE
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IR AGE L2
ZHREREHREENS
RIAE R & B KRB S
AR B DL

HRERSHMBEBYE
THIANMERRMEE
AR KRENRETERE
VIFRBRERE T T
BEERANEEERNA
EE A AL R A] B[]
HERER -

RNB BB RELRNE
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) (continued)

(i)

Significant financing component for
sales of properties

Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 15, the
Group presented sales proceeds received
from customers in connection with the
Group's pre-sales of properties as customer
deposits in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group
elected to apply the practical expedient
and did not recognise the effects of a
significant component with a customer
if the time period is one year or less.
In addition, reclassifications have been
made from customer deposits to contract
liabilities for the outstanding balance
of sales proceeds from customers.
The adoption of HKFRS 15 has had no
significant impact on the opening retained
profits as at 1 January 2018. Customer
deposits of HK$217,981,000 has been
reclassified to contract liabilities as at 1
January 2018.

22 SHBRERRBEZ2E (F)

(b)

(&)
(ii)
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) (continued)

(i)

Sales commission

Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 15, the
Group expensed off the sales commission
associated with obtaining an agreement
for sale and purchase with the property
buyer. Upon adoption of HKFRS 15, sales
commissions incurred directly attributable
to obtaining a contract, if recoverable, are
capitalised and recorded in prepayments.
Capitalised sales commissions are charged
to profit or loss when the revenue from
the related property sale is recognised and
are included as selling and distribution
expenses at that time. The impact of the
adoption of HKFRS 15 on sales commission
was adjusted to the opening balance of
retained profits at 1 January 2018.

22 EBIFBERBEEZ®H (Z)

(b) (%)

(i)
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture*

HKFRS 16 Leases’

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material?

and HKAS 8

Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement'

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures'

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments’

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23!

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available

for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a business.
The amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to
create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of acquiring
the business and continue to produce outputs. Instead,
the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired
substantive processes together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs. The amendments have also
narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods
or services provided to customers, investment income
or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional
fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020.

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H

C MM B H R AEM 2 BB MR
HERA (&)

) R=F-NF-A—HAKZEHRABRZF

[E HiR AR K

? R-TF_TFE-F-ARZEFAIGZF
JE HAR AR RK

: R-T_—F— A BARZEMAIRZF
JE HAR AR RK

4 i AR BB TE 58 ) AR A H E ME AT A ER

BHRERANAREZZET BN R
SREAZE-FEREINMT -

BEP B RELERFIRNETHER
H)TE 3 1F B8 BB HHBRIME 5l o % 18
FEARS M- RIER N EEZRE
R-EXF HFELEEAHEL N
ELENARELEREROKRARE
EHER - BEARRELMBEOMER
ARER R AFE -ZERB
RRAEUMS2EERTARNES
EBUFBEEL 2N 2 ERFR -1
ROHEEHERPESHRARESD
EEMERECOHARAYELENFLE
FAREB-REFEIELNESR &
hRAEPRHMNER MRS RERK
A B EEBEHEAMUKA - LI %E
RIEREMESHERERTAREE N
Re#tEsl Wal ArEA A FESFA
ANEEENGEAESHN —FRIEB R
BERG —HEEXHBK -AKEBEFE-F
—EF — B — BRRAKRKERERNZ
CHIE

111



112

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REMZE TEERER (58)BRA T
Annual Report 2018 =& — )\ F4ER

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& 3R & M 5%

31 December 2018 —E—\F+=-A=+—H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS
10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a
new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments
are available for adoption now.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK (IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK (SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK
(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees
to recognise assets and liabilities for most leases. The
standard includes two elective recognition exemptions
for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term
leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e.,
the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to
use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the
right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets
the definition of investment property in HKAS 40, or
relates to a class of property, plant and equipment to
which the revaluation model is applied. The lease liability
is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on
the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise
the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees
will also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon
the occurrence of certain events, such as change in the
lease term and change in future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments. Lessees will generally recognise the
amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting
under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the
accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify all leases using the same classification principle
as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases
and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors
to make more extensive disclosures than under HKAS 17.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either a
full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach.
The Group will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019.
The Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions in
HKFRS 16 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial
adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings at 1 January 2019 and will not restate
the comparatives. In addition, the Group plans to apply
the new requirements to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and measure the
lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The
right-of-use asset will be measured at the amount of the
lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to the lease recognised
in the statement of financial position immediately
before the date of initial application. The Group plans
to use the exemptions allowed by the standard on lease
contracts whose lease terms end within 12 months as
of the date of initial application. The Company is still
assessing the financial impact of this new standard on
the Group's consolidated financial statements upon its
adoption.
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality
will depend on the nature or magnitude of information.
A misstatement of information is material if it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions made
by the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion
of HKFRS 9 only includes interests in an associate or
joint venture to which the equity method is applied and
does not include long-term interests that in substance
form part of the net investment in the associate or
joint venture, to which the equity method has not been
applied. Therefore, an entity applies HKFRS 9, rather
than HKAS 28, including the impairment requirements
under HKFRS 9,

interests. HKAS 28 is then applied to the net investment,

in accounting for such long-term
which includes the long-term interests, only in the
context of recognising losses of an associate or joint
venture and impairment of the net investment in the
associate or joint venture. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments on 1 January 2019 and will assess its
business model for such long-term interests based on
the facts and circumstances that exist on 1 January 2019
using the transitional requirements in the amendments.
The Group also intends to apply the relief from restating
comparative information for prior periods upon adoption
of the amendments.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments
involve uncertainty that affects the application of HKAS
12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”).
The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies
outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically
include requirements relating to interest and penalties
The
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an entity

associated with uncertain tax treatments.

considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (i) the
assumptions an entity makes about the examination
of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how
an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax
bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts
and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the
use of hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative
effect of application as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application, without the
restatement of comparative information. The Group
expects to adopt the interpretation from 1 January 2019.
The interpretation is not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

23

C MM B R AEM 2 BB MR
HERA (&)

AR (ERMBHREREZES) -2
BE2FHHUERGRIESNTERN
ERGERE 2R AHEEE (FHE
RITHEERBAMR ) B 2 &5 (A
HIMELE) 2 @FtRE -2 BT ER
REBGFHERFE 1255 E AN 2 1B
FEHAE TLETNBEENEERBRE
BEHEBEZMERTIRZRTE A
BHEOERBESESEFERTHERD
B (NEBHRGKEEE N EE
P YERR AR ¢+ (ifi) B 78 20 fa] B8 X FE sR )i A
KRR HE  RBAHIBEEE K
BABIAEER R R E A K (v)E B LI
EZEEEMRBERAZE ZREBEIK
REREILEEENER IR NH
ERE RIERANRBREERNER
HAENAFENRER MEEBRAEIL
BRER -AEBBEHHEN _—_FT—hF—
A-—BERMAZRE ZRBESTE
HAKENMBRRENEATE -



2.4

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REMZE TEERER (58)BRAF
Annual Report 2018 —Z — )\ 7R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B1 %8 3R & K{ st

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES
Investments in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and a joint
venture are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
The Group’'s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and the joint
venture is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates or joint venture are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s investments in the associates or joint
venture, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associates or the joint
venture is included as part of the Group's investments in
associates or the joint venture.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture
(continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in
a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative
financial instruments and equity investments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, financial assets and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H
BEASTTHERE (&)

FUBEEZRME
BELBERETR INBFFEREE
(FE MBEERREMERIN) ET
AR A BEGSAZEEZAKRE
BH-BEZAREHRBEUNZEELR
CELBTLZERBERAFERIFE
RAME 2B mERE  XIAERIEE
BE HMEZEELTEERKIEE L
BUREMEEXEEMRIZRER
AIE Rl LB T A e 8iER
BRREEMBZRSELELEE -

HEEBRENEERAEBEEAKE
SRR - ENGEREBER  {a
ARRERETIAATRRERTISHE
KEREEENEERARRTHROBRKR
RITER R F R ERE - MEBRIZ LM
BEEZNREMBZRAX B AEL
IR &R P -

BEHRSHRGAEELTE UEER
SR RBRILCHCHER ZBERER
ETBFELBARD WELMNZF
Bhg - RIZAMLEH AT I BEE - 2B E (A
BRIN 2 R ERZBERBBERE
EBRERREEEE 2 At HREEHE0
BoERBRCEEENSERRRE
EFEREIERZEERDBERER R
HEZ 2 (R ERTE,#H) </
BEEBZOBERELBMREFABRER

123



124

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
PEIMZE TEERER (58)BRAT
Annual Report 2018 —Z — )\ FFF 7R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& 3R & M 5%

31 December 2018 —E—\F+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)

(continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction

in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of

an item of property, plant and equipment comprises

its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of

bringing the asset to its working condition and location

for its intended use.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Over the shorter of lease
terms and 3% to 3'/:%

Over the lease terms

20% - 33%

4% — 50%

20% - 25%

Land and buildings

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures
Machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of
profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties or inventories, the deemed cost
of a property for subsequent accounting is its fair
value at the date of change in use. For a transfer from
inventories to investment properties, any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date
and its previous carrying amount is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Properties under development and completed
properties held for sale

Properties under development and completed properties
held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined by apportionment of
total development cost, including capitalised borrowing
cost, attributable to the unsold units. Net realisable
value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales
proceeds, or estimated by management based on the
prevailing market conditions, less all estimated costs
to completion and selling expenses, on an individual
property basis.

EXSTHREEE (&)

REME (&)

REMERAFEZSMELE 2V BERE
B-REELEFEFABRRA-

ERRHEREMEZEFAFBERE
B-REAIHEFEERaRER-

HERENEZFERBERYEIFER &
MEHBREAZRERARKEREE
BZAFE - HEEEASRENER
ZYMERE AN A EELANKREE
ZEMEZENBRRER -

BRRPURRIFFELEZEZEIE

BRTFVENRFELEZCZRMETD
BARA R A BEFE 2 BEED IR
ATFEDBER L E BB 2 BERK
A (BEREBFEAEEERA)ME
E o B EFETIREE R Y X E LT
B -REFHEMBRIEA REEE
ERTAMEL 2 HEEER
P 2 FT BRI RIHEE A



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REMZE TEERER (58)BRAF
Annual Report 2018 —Z — )\ 7R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B1 %8 3R & K{ st

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Trademarks

Trademarks are stated at cost less any impairment losses
and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 30 years.

Product technology, licence and completed programs

The product technology, licence and completed
programs are stated at cost less any impairment losses
and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 10 to 30 years.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line
basis over their useful lives of 15 years.

Other intangible assets are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line
basis over their useful lives of 1 to 5 years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete and
its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability
of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
Development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis
over the commercial lives of the underlying products not
exceeding 10 to 30 years, commencing from the date
when the products are put into commercial production.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. When the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments
are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable
from 1 January 2018)" below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if
both of the following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when
the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery
of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to
be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified
as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not solely payments of principal
and interest are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to
be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates,
or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are also recognised as other income in the statement
of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if
the economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to the host; a separate instrument with the
same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, and available-for-sale financial
investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include the financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purposes of
sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging

instruments as defined by HKAS 39.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018) (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes
do not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable
before 1 January 2018)" below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS
39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted
for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if
their economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for trading or designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018) (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in other income and gains
in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in other operating expenses for loans and
receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are neither
classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this
category are those which are intended to be held for
an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes
in market conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018) (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss in other operating expenses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policies set out for "Revenue recognition
(applicable before 1 January 2018)" below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

EXSTHREEE (&)

RERHMUBEE (R-F-N\F
—A—HAERAZE RS ERIFE39
RETZHER) (&)
JHRHEWHBRE (&)

ENRERR AAHLENMBRER
BRIBBAFESE KRERMNBRERE
RAFHERESEHREBTERREM
EEHRGE BEERRERILRER  UIE
RENEHEERNEERER HEE
R EBERRE LR REFEHE
BRAHIEREEHRBEENIERE
Bk HMRERAX FHEAHLE
MR ERES ZF B R E R
BIXWaEzER (R_F—N\F—
A—BAEM) ] PrE R D BA B
WA BB EWAR B R ZE MU AR
THER-

ERR@AEZzATEMHEZE
URREMS REAR(b)E L AEER
ZEEGFIEZBETEAE MG
MAREET R FE MEHT LR SR
BIETRAKREZ AFER  ZBER
B VAR AR A (] B (B B 1B 51 B



AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REMZE TEERER (58)BRAF
Annual Report 2018 —Z — )\ 7R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B1 %8 3R & K{ st

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018) (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

J the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive

cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
"pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018) (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs"”) for all debt instruments not held at
fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

General approach (continued)

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component and lease receivables,
the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in
a collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other
operating expenses in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a group
of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against
the original cost of the investment and “prolonged”
against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. Where there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss
— is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for
sale are not reversed through the statement of profit or
loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The determination of what is
“prolonged”
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors,

“significant” or
requires judgement. In making this

the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for
sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria
as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However,
the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative
loss measured as the difference between the amortised
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. Future interest income
continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying
amount of the asset using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is
recorded as part of other income. Impairment losses on
debt instruments are reversed through the statement of
profit or loss if the subsequent increase in fair value of
the instruments can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or
as loans and borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include amounts due to
fellow subsidiaries, an intermediate holding company
and non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, loans
from fellow subsidiaries and an intermediate holding
company, trade payables, other payables and certain
accruals and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement of loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018
and HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018
and HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted
as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions (continued)

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the
sale of certain products for general repairs of defects
occurring during the warranty period. Provisions
for these assurance-type warranties granted by the
Group are recognised based on sales volume and past
experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted
to their present values as appropriate.

Product claim provision is made when there are
present expected claims which challenge the safety
of the products. The Group has general liability and
other insurance policies to cover product claims. Initial
recognition is based on historical experience. The initial
estimate of product claim costs is revised annually based
on the current year's development of present expected
claims.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and a joint venture, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and a joint venture, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EASHEHEME &)

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions would be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systemic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Frie® (&)

ELERAEERBBNIRERREHR
ERMAEERMZHRE (RBE) - &
BHEREAHEENFEEHAENRE
ZERHEEE -

EEAREEA R AENITHEN A A5 AV
MEEERNANAREEH  BET
BIREERFELERBAERR —HEHE
YR - ERAN SR RAEESR
BREEENAREREEFTREHL
BER RRFREEGENANRGE A
BEREEXAKEREENEERABL
TRBRBERHBZPAETER - AE
EMAEEERRERBAGER] THEH-

BT #Bh &

HFRRAEAERARKRBBA®HBE &
AEEMAMEESE  RRMhEZA
FEERRAR HEeE HEE M
B RIFE R B S B (B 2 AR 1 S 3H B
BB R R RUA -

157



158

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REMZE TEERER (58)BRA T
Annual Report 2018 —Z — )\ FFF 7R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 7% # 3k fiy &%

31 December 2018 —Z— N\F+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer.
The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the
Group a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018) (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(a) Sale of aircraft engines and spare parts

Revenue from the sale of aircraft engines and
spare parts is recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the aircraft
engines and spare parts.

(b) Sale of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised
at a point in time, when the purchasers obtain
the physical procession or the legal title of the
completed property and the Group has present
right to payment and the collection of the
consideration is probable.

() Provision of repair and maintenance services for
aircraft engines

Revenue from the provision of repair and
maintenance services for aircraft engines is
recognised over time in the accounting period in
which the services are rendered.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018) (continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1
January 2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(a) from the sale of properties, when the significant
risks and rewards of the properties are passed to
the purchasers when (i) an irrevocable sale and
purchase contract has been entered into by both
buyer and seller; (ii) the seller has received or
retained the right to receive all the consideration
of the sale; (iii) the construction has been
completed, and its quality has been inspected and
accepted by the relevant government authorities;
(iv) the ready-for-delivery conditions under the
sale and purchase contract have been fulfilled;
and (v) the notices of property delivery have been
sent to the buyer or the buyer has inspected and
accepted the quality of the property;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1
January 2018) (continued)

(b)

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;
and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Contract assets (applicable from 1 January

2018)

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange

for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the

Group performs by transferring goods or services to a

customer before the customer pays consideration or

before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for

the earned consideration that is conditional.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 January
2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods
or services to a customer for which the Group has
received a consideration (or an amount of consideration
that is due) from the customer. If a customer pays the
consideration before the Group transfers goods or
services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made or the payment is due
(whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract.

Contract costs (applicable from 1 January 2018)

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets,
costs incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are
capitalised as an asset if all of the following criteria are
met:

(a) The costs relate directly to a contract or to
an anticipated contract that the entity can
specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of
the entity that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in
the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged
to the statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis
that is consistent with the pattern of the revenue to
which the asset related is recognised. Other contract
costs are expensed as incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)

Refund liabilities (applicable from 1 January
2018)

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all
of the consideration received (or receivable) from the
customer and is measured at the amount the Group
ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer.
The Group updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and
the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the
end of each reporting period.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s

date fair value of awards,

best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service

conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of
the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value of
the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options, if any, is
reflected as additional share dilution in the computation
of earnings per share.

The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured initially
at fair value at the grant date taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the instruments were
granted. The fair value is expensed over the period until
the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding
liability. The cumulative expense recognised for cash-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate
of the number of awards that will ultimately vest. The
liability is measured at the end of each reporting period
up to and including the settlement date, with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme"”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

A subsidiary of the Group sponsors a defined benefit
pension plan as well as a retiree medical and life
insurance plan. Its defined benefit pension plan requires
contributions to be made to a third party trustee
managed fund. The cost of providing benefits under the
defined benefit plan is determined actuarially. Actuarial
gains and losses for the defined benefit plan are
recognised in other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes (continued)

The defined benefit asset or liability comprises the
present value of the defined benefit obligation, less past
service costs and less the fair value of plan assets out of
which the obligations are to be settled.

The Group's accounting policy for defined benefit plans
is to recognise actuarial gains and losses in the period in
which they occur in full in other comprehensive income
in accordance with HKAS 19 Employee Benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transaction.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of
the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
joint venture and associates are currencies other than
the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of the overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts
assets and liabilities, and

of revenues, expenses,

their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2018 was
HK$400,094,000 (2017: Nil). Further details are given in
note 16 to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
products) are expected to deteriorate over the next year
which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-

looking estimates are analysed.

3.
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BREEENHERASENTERE
SLENE - REBERILAEEERFE
BEFEBBRERRALHEE I
R TR BN (B A EERLE)
BERK-—FRBL SAEEHRE
REWBRERE N BELEOXRBELRA
E-EEBRSAH AJERERLENE
WEREH LoMAEE[BTOE
e e
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31 December 2018 —E—\F+=-A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables (continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's
trade receivables is disclosed in note 24 to the financial
statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax
assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December
2018 was HK$111,882,000 (2017: HK$26,656,000).
Further details are included in note 37 to the financial
statements.

3.

ETRgsHaE (&)

EFNTRERE (&)
FEWE SRR R RA S B R ()

HABRELEOER B EERR
MEREEREZFARAENFEBEX
M - BHEEERNEBEHRIRE
MIREBERRN BT E - AEE W
B (S B R 1R AR B A0 47 AR B TR
BARBARKEFHRKREREN B
MAKBEREEZEFNEREEBHR
MY E R BRI B S R MY RE24

EE B REE

BERIELERTEEE IR AT REIE ER
MaEMAHBBAEBEE 2 RBAZRES
Bz EEEEES KA BRI
7R 2R ER TR S ) AT BE 2 R R R K LA K
RERBREER UETA R E
EHBEESE - R _Z—\F+=-A
=+—H BERRABEEBZELTEHRE
BEZEAEMEA111,882,0008 T (=
T —+ 4 :26,656,00087T) i —H+F
BRI BRI E3T -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. They are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

3.

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H
BEEGHAEE (&)

BTN TRERE (&)
HUBEE (BEKFI) ZHE

AEEEREERE BRI EHZEHIEY
BEEERFAETMABERR LR
REREER T AIWEZ BFREFETT
MEAA BEEXREELETZR
EEBEEKESE (KA FERHE
EXRAEEFEREETZRSE) K
BIH IR RE - A FEBMEE KA DR E
RBEEARFETHR ST AR
RORNZHEER ST AIESENEIE
HABREMERLEEEZIBERAG
B-EEEREER EEELAML
AARBEERRSELE T ZEHRK
Ben&E UWEERBEZIREXUE
ZEReREZRE
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31 December 2018 —E—\F+=-A=+—H

4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services.
During the year, the Group acquired the general
aviation aircraft piston engine business and disposed
of the property development and investment business.
Accordingly, the comparative segment information
related to the property development and investment
business is classified as “profit/(loss) for the year from a
discontinued operation” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. As a result, the Group has only one
reportable operating segment, the general aviation
aircraft piston engine business, which engages in the
design, development and production of general aviation
aircraft piston engines and spare parts as well as the
provision of aftermarket services and support for piston
engines.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment loss, which is a
measure of adjusted loss for the year from continuing
operations. The adjusted loss for the year from
continuing operations is measured consistently with the
Group's loss for the year from continuing operations
except that certain income and gain, gains or losses
relating to investments in joint ventures and associates
and financial instruments, the gain on disposal of
convertible loans, as well as head office and corporate
expenses and unallocated finance costs and income tax
are excluded from such measurement.

RETHER

RTEEE AEEZER MRS E D
HEBET-FA AEERETER
MEREEERIREL XHETY
RERREEXRG -FIA BRAYEHR
EREREXBRELBRZOBEHER
REBEEXRENOBEAIKAERLER
BEBZARERN, (BE)] - Eit-
AEBERAE—AEZRIEEDHL—B
RMEREEEESHHER EFEA
M ZE RIS R B R F IR R B
BNEE URRHEEEZIRNER
5 AR B S8k o

BEEEIHERASEEB M 2E
B ORTEMA D BB IR M E KRR -
DERBDREXEFBELERB 2L
HEANFBERMFEZAZHN BER
RAEHFHE - REFBELEER KR
BEARFBRZAENEEREER AR
BREXBZAFER B MHEETR
ARMEBE HELRREBERAREE
MITAZREMEBZMNEXRERE L&
AR ERZAE AR @R ERE kb
EFSOMAR D B 75 B < M PR S FR RIS
BRENZAES -



OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue

and results from continuing

operating segment for the year ended 31 December.
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31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H
4. RESTER (£)

ATREZET_A=+—HILFELE
BREFEREERB I REREERE
ERZREDBEL 2D -

operations by reportable

General aviation aircraft

piston engine business Total

BEAMERKRTERDHRER Bt
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F —+tF ZBE-\§E —ZT—+F
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAET
(Restated) (Restated)
(24) (E5)

Segment revenue (note 5): DU (H725)

Sales to external customers IEPIHE 1,341,223 - 1,341,223 -
Segment results PWEE (84,773) - (84,773) -
Reconciliation: FAIZ -

Unallocated other income and gain K2 B E 4 A K FIE 36,987 6,227
Corporate and other unallocated ~ (EREMASEHT

expenses (31,251) (37,818)
Unallocated finance costs AOEHBHZ (15,461) -
Gain on disposal of convertible loans 15 A] # 3% & 5 2 7| & - 87,151
Share of profits and losses of: A EF R EE

Joint ventures SN (2,615) (19,043)

Associates i Al/NG 471 222
Gain on deemed disposal of an HEALERE AR

associate i 3,561 -
Loss on disposal of an associate HEBENG ZEE (909) -
Impairment of an available-for-sale AT &M E 2 Fi{E

investment - (67,280)
Reversal of impairment losses/ B EE L RBEBRR/

(impairment losses) on financial (REBE)F8

assets, net 3,488 (20,699)
Fair value loss on derivative financial 744 @I A2

instruments NFEEE - (11,337)
Fair value loss on an equity BRATEGABRZ

investment at fair value BARE s A TEER

through profit or loss = (6,857)
Fair value loss on financial assets at A FEFABR

fair value through profit or loss EM%QEZ TEEE (30,573) -
Unallocated income tax credit/ FOEMBHRER/

(expense) (F i) (6,057) 724
Loss for the year from continuing ~ KESELLERK 2

operations REEAR (127,132) (68,710)
Other segment information: HthpBEH:

Depreciation nE 57,962 - 57,962 -

Unallocated depreciation AABEWE 827 1,098

58,789 1,098

Amortisation B 75,807 - 75,807 =

Capital expenditure* BARRL 121,761 - 121,761 =

Unallocated capital expenditure* AOEEAHZ 74 28

121,835 28
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REFTER (&)
(continued)
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant & BXARZBEAEYE BEMZHER
and equipment and other intangible assets. HhfmpEE -
Geographical information h & & K
(a)  Revenue from external customers @ REIBEF YWz
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
HKS$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
(Restated)
(E%))
USA EE 1,065,749 -
Europe (O 154,163 -
Others HAh 121,311 -
1,341,223 -
The revenue information of continuing operations FlBELREEB 2 W ER T

above is based on the location of the customers.

BEREF ZHEwE D -

(b)  Non-current assets b) FREEE
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—tF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
USA £ 1,901,485 -
Europe (O 593,877 -
Hong Kong &5 21,673 22,424
Mainland China MR A HE 51,079 425,508
2,568,114 447,932

The non-current asset information above is based

on the locations of the assets and excludes

financial assets.

LHFRBDEEEMTDEEE
ZHERE S YT BEMBE

Eo
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from each of the major customers, which
individually amounted to 10% or more of the Group's
revenue from continuing operations, is set out below:

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H
BESITER (£)

FEEFZER
RESEEREPZREHINOT FE
BEAEEREFELEEB 2 WE
10%3k A -

2018 2017

—®-N\F  —T—+F

HKS'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Customer A ZEA 402,855 -

Customer B =B 220,334 -

Customer C BFEC 159,254 -
REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAIN Wz - H AU A & R E

An analysis of revenue, other income and gain from
continuing operations is as follows:

KEFEREEB 2 WS HmBRAR
MBI

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(E27)
Sale of goods transferred at MERBRHER 2
a point in time EmiHE 1,234,677 -
Rendering of services transferred BERs R 2 BRT5 2 1Rt
over time 106,546 -

1,341,223 -
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAIN

Wit bW A RRIE (&)

(continued)
Disaggregated revenue information Wz &R D
Geographical markets B 1 5
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HKS’'000 HK$°000
FET FET
USA EE 1,065,749 -
Europe (O 154,163 -
Others HAh 121,311 -
1,341,223 -
Performance obligations BREF

Information about the Group's performance obligations
is summarised below:

Sale of aircraft engines and spare parts

The performance obligation is upon delivery of the
products and payment is generally due within 30 days
from delivery.

Provision of repair and maintenance services for aircraft
engines

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as
services are rendered and payment is generally due
within 30 days from completion of the services and
customer acceptance.

AEEBOETERBANT :

HERME S BT

BHERENXNEMEKTK - BI50R
ERNRZMEIORA T AT -

RERME BB ERERS

BHOETRERREEEET B3R
BEEE TR RS REPRKZ30KRA
F A AT
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAIN

(continued)

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H

Wzt HWARFE (&)

2018 2017
A —T—+F
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(E5)
Other income H g A
Bank interest income HRITH B WA 2,253 3,897
Interest income on a convertible bond AR E S 2 F B WA 186 1,036
Interest income on loans to an associate ME& R AIIRENER Z
B A 787 586
Interest income on a loan to a related MEB QA GIREHNERZ
company FLEMW A = 536
Compensation fee HESR 9,680 -
Distributorship fee income S BIWA 713 -
Government grant* QRN = 172
Foreign exchange differences, net HNEE 5 HA Z RR SRR 33,151 -
Others Hh 4,364 -
51,134 6,227
Gain FI5E
Gain on disposal of items of property, HE¥% KEM
plant and equipment HBER ZHHE 221 -
51,355 6,227

* This represents subsidies from the municipal government

in Mainland China. There are no unfulfilled conditions or

contingencies relating to these subsidies.

* WIS T EASEE - 5
B0 R R 0 SR 40

4
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6.

LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group's loss before tax from continuing operations

L e—

6. PMKRFAIEE

REMEE B RERLE XK 2 BRBAEER

is arrived at after charging/(crediting): Bk (FHA)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
Cost of inventories sold* HETE KA 978,304 -
Cost of services provided* RRERSE 2 A 94,293 -
Reversal of write-down of inventories to 77 & 5 H £ 7] 2R /FE 2

net realisable value* # o] (2,335) -
Research and development costs: Tt 3% A A

Current period expenditure RFERZ 45,090 -
Provisions and other liabilities: BERAMEE:

Additional provision, net (note 34) RN FRE (W iE34) 30,402 -
Depreciation (note 14) WeE (Wit14) 58,789 1,098
Amortisation of other intangible assets Efth B2 & E B SE (A2 17)

(note 17) 75,807 -
Minimum lease payments under KEMAOzRERS

operating leases 6,138 129
Employee benefit expense (excluding EEREMNER

directors’ remuneration (note 8)): (TEEEEHE

(f7:£8) ) -

Wages and salaries TERS® 252,989 5,846

Pension scheme contributions** RIKEET B FR** 13,980 123

Defined benefit scheme (note 36) TEREAE M ET & (K iE36) 3,806 -

270,775 5,969
Other operating expense: H 45 2 B 3
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEYE  HEMN
plant and equipment REIEAB 2 B8 - 764
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B & 4,164 1,655
Foreign exchange differences, net HNEE 5 #h 7 BR S EE (33,151) 17
Impairment losses/(reversal of M EERERBE

impairment losses) on OREEERE ) F5E

financial assets, net:

Impairment of trade receivables, net JEWE 5 BR 5k 2 R B F 58

(note 24) (K1it24) 969 -

Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of E M EWIRZ ZBE,

other receivables, net ORERE ) T8 (3,488) 20,699

(2,519) 20,699

* Included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of * BREGEERRPIHEEXNE]I A
profit or loss.

*k At 31 December 2018, the Group had no forfeited *x RZZE—N\F+=-—_A=+—H" 'K

contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
pension scheme in future years (2017: Nil).

&
I AR AR 202 W 4 5 AT A A OB A R 2R
E%Z%&%ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ%

R(ZZE—tF:
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FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H

ISR X
REFBRLEEB 2B BRX DM

is as follows: T
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(E51))
Interest on interest-bearing loans and ~ FFEBE R KERZFIE
borrowings 17,755 -
Increase in discounted amounts of BEREMEBED
provisions and other liabilities arising wREeHE
from the passage of time (note 34) Bi& B [ 38 2 1 38 0
(Kit34) 114 -
Others HAh 985 -
18,854 -
DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EBEERTHAZEZHMSE

REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b),
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

REEEBMARIMERLE ([HBR
pri)@s EmARR (TERARAL) &
B R EHME P E383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ () K (f)f&
NAw (WBEEENEER) ROIFE280

and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information BEZFNEEMELT
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HKS'000 HK$°000
FETT FET
Fees e 1,120 1,063
Other emoluments: B2 -
Salaries, allowances and Ho EMREYH =
benefits in kind - -
Pension scheme contributions RIKEET K = -
1,120 1,063
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERTHARZME (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(a) Independent Non-executive Directors (@ BIYFHTES
The fees paid to Independent Non-executive REAZNTEIFNTESZZ
Directors during the year were as follows: WMEBIT
2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—+F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Chu Yu Lin, David Nl 300 300
Li Ka Fai, David F K IE 300 300
Li Zhaoxi FRER - 31
Zhang Ping iR 220 132
820 763
There were no other emoluments payable to the B N0 B EL At JE < T 08 7 3F
Independent Non-executive Directors during the BITEEHME (ZE—+45:

year (2017: Nil). ] o
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31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EEBERTHRELHZME (#Z)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive Directors and Non-executive (b) HITEERIHYTES
Directors
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind contributions remuneration
e 2ME  BHERE
ok ENFE it Mems
2018 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
—E-N\E§ FET FET FET FET
Executive Directors: HiTES:
Liu Hongde Bt 36 - - 36
Pan Linwu (resigned on ~ JEME (R T —N\F
24 August 2018) NAZTMBEET) 24 - - 24
Lai Weixuan* BRE~ 36 - - 36
Zhou Chunhua BAEE (RZZ-N\F
(resigned on 24 NAZ+EBEE)
August 2018) 24 = - 24
Fu Fangxing BrRE(RZS—N\F
(appointed on 24 NAZTRBEZE)
August 2018) 12 - - 12
Xu Hongge* (resigned  #MEH* (=T —N\F
on 24 August 2018) NAZ+TWAEMT) 24 - - 24
Yu Xiaodong TER(RZZ-N\4F
(appointed on 24 NAZTRBEEZHE)
August 2018) 12 - - 12
Zhang Zhibiao RER (RZ2-N\F
(appointed on 24 NAZ+HAEZET)
August 2018) 12 = = 12
180 = = 180
Non-executive Director:  JFHfTEE:
Chow Wai Kam &% 120 - - 120
300 = = 300
* Xu Hongge was also the chief executive of the * Bmtmn o — N\E )N A
Group before 24 August 2018. Since 24 August —+ BRI AAE®ET
2018, Lai Weixuan has also become the chief B@igon—=— )\E)\A
executive of the Group. —+NEE BESRAAE
BT A -
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8. DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERTHHEARZME (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive Directors and Non-executive (b) BITESRIPITES (&)

Directors (continued)

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration
e 2Bk BRI
wne ENN = e ik
2017 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
et 3 FET FHET FHET FET
Executive Directors: HTESE:
Liu Hongde Bt iE 36 - - 36
Pan Linwu B 36 - - 36
Lai Weixuan HBET 36 - - 36
Zhou Chunhua BEZE 36 - - 36
Xu Hongge eyl 36 - - 36
180 - - 180
Non-executive Director:  JEH{TE = -
Chow Wai Kam A# % 120 - - 120
300 - - 300
There was no arrangement under which a director FARETMNESHEXRERELW
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the e (ZT—+F &)

year (2017: Nil).
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees did not include
executive directors (2017: Nil). Details of the
remuneration for the year of the five (2017: five) highest

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H

TEERSHES

hERRHFEEYTEENTESR (=
B—tHF:8) - AFERH(ZF—+
F hB)ESHER (LFARAE

paid employees who are not a director of the Company F)zMerFBEHR T
are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Basic salaries, allowances and EAFHE ZMEEYH=
benefits in kind 10,512 3,238
Pension scheme contributions RIKE T B R - 87
Performance related bonuses TERIBERBEA 4,433 1,625
14,945 4,950

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

MeETs SR &xaHIFESEEHR
B :

follows:
Number of employees
EBEHE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T = 2

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T2
1,500,000 7T = 3

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 8L E
2,500,0007% 7T 3 -

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 L E
3,000,000/% 7T 1 -

HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 L&
5,500,000/ 7T 1 -
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10.

INCOME TAX 10.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong during the year. In the prior year, no
provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during that year. Taxes on profits assessable

PRt

FRRRNEE 2 5 ERB S
A16.5% 2 HEEBBNBHERF - =
F-ARAEBL EBEMRNEEZE
RPN - W BN R FER T BNG
T o H At b 5 B AR A A 2 B IR R
XBEARBEEMERR EEREE

elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax Sy =
prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the
Group operates.
2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FEr
(Restated)
(&%)
Current — Hong Kong: BVHA-F 78 -

Charge for the year RFERZ 6,060 -

Overprovision in prior years BEFE2BZEE - (277)
Current — Elsewhere: BVER— H fth i [% -

Charge/(credit) for the year RERZ/ (ER) 10,931 (447)
Deferred (note 37) IR (K 5E37) (48,884) -
Total tax credit for the year REFELEEBZ

from continuing operations RERBEREE (31,893) (724)
Total tax charge for the year REERIELEEBKB 2

from the discontinued operation REFIERR X 258 94,585 15,920

62,692 15,196




10.

INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable
to profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory rates for the
countries/jurisdictions in which the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax credit
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31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H

10. FRiBH (&)

BARBRETENBARMERR,
BERE OAEREFHEBERARRTA
A (EE) MRIER X (ER) 8
REZEBRREZRAR R Z RN

at the effective rate for the year is as follows: I
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—+F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
(Restated)
(Z5)
Loss before tax from continuing REFBELEEB 2
operations PR AT E R (159,025) (69,434)
Profit/(loss) before tax from a REBKRIEKEEBRZ
discontinued operation BREADER S (EE) 602,154 (251,913)
443,129 (321,347)
Tax at the statutory tax rates BEEMERGTE A 52,207 (70,317)
Profits and losses attributable to DIEEERRIRBERRZ
the joint ventures and associates i A & g5 18 604 4,705
Effect of withholding tax on interest TEHNE 2R B E B Y
income from the USA MEWARTE 8,021 -
Income not subject to tax BA B WA (23,536) (1,867)
Expenses not deductible for tax TEHNHAX 24,944 47,492
Land appreciation tax (“LAT") in R A3 2+ IR (E AR
Mainland China ([T3BER]) 3,002 45,617
Tax losses utilised from previous periods EpF & Bi I F TE &5 18 (2,550) (21,788)
Tax losses not recognised ARERTIBEE - 11,354
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate EAEBEE T K14.1%
of 14.1% (2017: -4.7%) (ZE—tF:-47%)
STEZBRIERX 62,692 15,196
Tax credit from continuing operations REFELEXEB 2 HIEER (31,893) (724)
Tax charge from a discontinued operation?R B B 4% | & & ¥ 75 2
154 T8 5 2 94,585 15,920
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10.

11.

INCOME TAX (continued)

The share of tax charge attributable to associates of
HK$1,000 (2017: HK$91,000) is included in “Share of
profits and losses of associates” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

There was no tax charge attributable to joint ventures
shared by the Group during the year (2017: Nil).

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

During the year, the Group disposed of the entire issued
share capital of Ease Triumph and the outstanding
shareholder’s loans and interests owed by Ease Triumph
to the Company, to Shengtong Holding Limited
(“Shengtong”), as detailed in note 43 to the financial
statements. Ease Triumph and its subsidiaries (“Ease
Triumph Group”) engaged in the property development
and investment business. The disposal of the property
development and investment business is part of a
wider restructuring campaign being implemented by
the state-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council.

10.

11.

Frig®t (&)

DIEBE R R Z BIEFR X 1,000 7T (=
T—LF:91,000ET) BT ARRE
BRZ[DEBERT ZEN MEE]
7 o

FRN AEEBTESHEERAIZRIE
X (T —tF )

ERIEEERK

FRAAKEEHEREE2HHTR
KIARMEMRARB Z REEBRR
EREMBETRBERERQA ([
) FEBERMIBRARM TS - E
REMBAR ([HEEEDREDE
BREBREXRT -MEBZRMREER
ZHETBREBRERFEEEEERE
REETETZCEREAES 2 — &

,f/'\ °



11.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 11.

The results of Ease Triumph Group included in the
Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss as a

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
HEMZEIXRERZER (F8)FRLH
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BRIEREER (&)

BREASEGABERT FREK
HEEXB 2 AXRKEZREZ7 0

discontinued operation are presented below: N
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue Iz 41,095 1,520,710
Cost of sales 5 B A (19,358) (1,706,522)
Gross profit/(loss) EH,(38) 21,737 (185,812)
Other income and gains H b Y A K A 2,285 35,454
Selling and distribution expenses HERZEHER (2,333) (26,130)
Administrative expenses THREREE R (30,962) (36,664)
Other operating expense H 45 2 5 2 (12) -
Finance costs FBHAX (49,111) (38,761)
Loss before tax from the KEERIEKEEFEE 2
discontinued operation Br 71 Al Es 1B (58,396) (251,913)
Income tax expense FTisfiA X (2,585) (15,920)
Loss after tax from the KREDKRIEKEERE 2
discontinued operation BREiEEE (60,981) (267,833)
Pre-tax gain on disposal of HEMRBARZ
subsidiaries (note 43) METFE (K 7E43) 660,550 -
Tax expense T I8 A 32 (92,000) -
After-tax gain on disposal of subsidiaries & W& Q& 2 F 1% FE 568,550 -
Profit/(loss) for the year from the REERIEEEEB AT
discontinued operation HH (EE) 507,569 (267,833)
Attributable to: TH AL A
Owners of the parent SRAIMAESE 526,100 (219,771)
Non-controlling interests FEPE A M = (18,531) (48,062)
507,569 (267,833)

Earnings/(loss) per share:
Basic and diluted, from the
discontinued operation

FRAN (EE) :
KEERIEGEXED

HKS5.90 cents
5.907%8 1L

(HK3.99 cents)
(3.997%1)
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 11.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share from the discontinued operation is based on:

BRIEREER (&)

KEERIREXG BRERALES
&R,/ (BE)METETIRE:

2018 2017
—E-N\E§ —E—+tF
(Restated)

(&%)

Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary equity ~ B AR EBEZRFE A

holders of the parent from the discontinued EHEBERIHELEEB Y

operation wA (E8)
Weighted average number of ordinary FABETEARZ
shares in issue during the year MHEFHE

HK$526,100,000 (HK$219,771,000)

8,919,813,140 5,519,591,000

The net cash flows incurred by Ease Triumph Group are
as follows:

MESEEEANRSREFENT:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Operating activities RERE (167,922) 570,159
Investing activities "B EE 491 2,341
Financing activities &R E (5,595) (639,374)
Net cash outflows BEMmHFEE (173,026) (66,874)
12. DIVIDEND 12. RE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZE—LF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Special — HK1 cent (2017: Nil) per R % B - I @ AR 1B
ordinary share (ZZ—tF:8\) 93,034 -

The special dividend declared subsequent to the
reporting period has not been recognised as a liability at
the end of the reporting period.

R|BEMREIR T RIS L RN H®E
HIRERRARE-
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EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 13. BAREERZFEARLER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY ZF, (EE)
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share BRERRRN(BE)SEHRES
amounts is based on the profit/(loss) for the year RAEBEEFEABGARFE
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, (BE)RFADETEBER MET
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 9£08,919,813,140 (=T — £ F:
8,919,813,140 (2017: 5,519,591,000) in issue during 5,519,591,000/% ) 5+ & °
the year.
No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings/ REBRBZ_Z—N\FER_Z—tF
(loss) per share amounts presented for the years ended TZA=T—HLEFEYRERNBEE
31 December 2018 and 2017 in respect of a dilution as ey 20 BTERR ARy
the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in ZEFESRIEREARRT, (BE)
issue during those years. RN BBEEE 2 AR
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per BREAREFRRN (BE)WTE
share is based on: ThiR$&
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HKS’'000 HK$°000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary SR BIEBERFFE A
equity holders of the parent: FEMR &R, (B1R) -
From continuing operations REFELE T (127,132) (68,710)
From a discontinued operation REDRIEEER 526,100 (219,771)
398,968 (288,481)
Number of shares
R E
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
Weighted average number of FREETERKRZ
ordinary shares in issue niEFEHE

during the year

8,919,813,140 5,519,591,000

191



192

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REMZE TEERER (58)BRA T
Annual Report 2018 —Z — )\ FFF 7R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 7% # 3k fiy &%

31 December 2018 —Z— N\E+=-A=+—H

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y¥E- -BEMNRE
Furniture ~ Machinery Construction
Land and Leasehold and and Motor in
buildings improvements fixtures  equipment vehicles progress Total
THRETF HEXE HUARKE HERRE RE EEIR At
HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Tz Tz FEx FA7 Tz Tz Tz
31 December 2018 “E-N\F
+=A=1-8
At 31 December 2017 and ~ RZ-F—t#
1 January 2018: +ZA=+-8k
“E-N\F
-A-8:

Cost AR 30,350 = 3,304 = 2,571 = 36,225

Accumulated depreciation ~ RFEE (8,014) - (3,196) - (2,571) - (13,781)

Net carrying amount BEFE 22,336 - 108 - - - 22,444
At 1 January 2018, RZE-NF

net of accumulated —-A-R8

depreciation NBEENE 22,336 - 108 - - - 22,444
Additions hE 47 372 74 8,153 = 58,327 66,973
Acquisition of subsidiaries ~ WiEEH B2 F)

(note 42) (W#42) 49,600 33,689 - 212240 - 24916 320,445
Transfer g = = - 2,410 - (2,410) -
Disposals HE (5,859) - - (1,666) - - (7,525)
Depreciation provided FRERE

during the year (note 6) (firzt6) (1,842) (3,650) (70) (53,227) - - (58,789)
Exchange realignment ERRE (3,195) - (1) (4,560) - (549) (8,305)
At 31 December 2018, RZZE-NE

net of accumulated TZA=T-8

depreciation B EENE 61,087 30,411 111 163350 - 80284 335243
At 31 December 2018: RZE-N\F

+ZR=+-8:

Cost XA 70,557 34,061 3,357 210,536 1,618 80,284 400,413

Accumulated depreciation B E (9,470) (3,650) (3,246) (47,186) (1,618) - (65,170)

Net carrying amount FEFE 61,087 30,411 m 163,350 - 80,284 335,243
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

14. Y% BENRHE (E)

Land and Furniture and Motor
buildings fixtures vehicles Total
THEEF KRLREE "E =k
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
31 December 2017 —E—+F
+tZR=+-H
At 1 January 2017: RZE—tF—HA—H:
Cost B 7R 30,350 4,958 4,214 39,522
Accumulated depreciation 2RWE (7,257) (4,101) (3,189) (14,547)
Net carrying amount REFE 23,093 857 1,025 24,975
At 1 January 2017, net of RZZ—tF—-A—8"
accumulated depreciation G EBFE 23,093 857 1,025 24,975
Additions NE - 28 - 28
Disposals HE - (609) (948) (1,557)
Depreciation provided FRNFTERE
during the year (note 6) (Hite) (757) (207) (134) (1,098)
Exchange realignment BE 5 0B - 39 57 9%
At 31 December 2017, netof MZZE—+%F
accumulated depreciation +=-A=+—8"
MKk 2BIME 22,336 108 - 22,444
At 31 December 2017: RZTE—+F
+-A=+—8:
Cost B A 30,350 3,304 2,571 36,225
Accumulated depreciation RIEME (8,014) (3,196) (2,571) (13,781)
Net carrying amount EEFE 22,336 108 - 22,444
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15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWHE
2018 2017
—E-N\F e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEmEE 368,639 315,866
Net gain from a fair value adjustment  AF(EFHENF B F58 1,744 33,103
Exchange realignment & 5 A B (12,669) 19,670
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 43) HEWBRT (A7:t43) (357,714) -
Carrying amount at 31 December RT+ZA=+—HZEmEE - 368,639

The Group's investment properties consisted of
commercial properties in Mainland China. The Group’s
investment properties were revalued based on valuations
performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal
& Advisory Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuers. Each year, the Group’s chief financial
officer decides to appoint which external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group's chief financial
officer has discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results twice a year when the
valuation is performed for interim and annual financial
reporting.

In the prior year, the investment properties were leased
to third parties under operating leases, further summary
details of which are included in note 45(a) to the
financial statements.

AEENREYEBIET BRI A
WME-ANEENOREMERIEA M EH
TEEFERERAERAR (BILEXE
BERMGER) ETHHEER - 8F
RER B 2 BA TS R BEORTE R XS AR (A (B R
BEHAREEREMEETIEE
DESERRMBSNE BE BUMK
RRBHERFERKE - REEZ W54
ESFMAGHENLT B REEYIEAR
BT ER EAEM R AERR
HEARETER -

EF REMENLEHELNHETE
= E—THEBEHRPEHRE W
45(a) °



15.

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REMZE TEERER (58)BRAF
Annual Report 2018 —Z — )\ 7R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B1 %8 3R & K{ st

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15.
Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment
properties as at 31 December 2017:

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H

REME (&)
DR ESEREE

TRARARBNBANER =T —+
FHoA=+—AMATEHESR:

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2017 using

R-B—tH+-A=t—H
ERANTRBEENTATENE

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
NGRS  BEAAEE EAMATHEE
MR E BAHE BABE
(F—R) (F=8) (E=%) At
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FHET FHET FET
Recurring fair value BEHEATFEFE:
measurement for:
Commercial properties ERAME - - 368,639 368,639

During the year, the Group's investment properties were
disposed of as a result of the disposal of Ease Triumph
Group.

FRAREORENEELERESE
Bl
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15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used
and the key inputs to the valuation of investment

15. BREYE (&)
DR EEREE (2)
UWFBR-E—+&+-A=+—8%
EYEBERANBETEREEHA

properties as at 31 December 2017: HIEIHE:
Range or
Valuation Significant weighted
techniques unobservable inputs average
H1ERE BEATAERE AR HEHE
INFE ¥ 159 2K
2017
—E—+F
Commercial properties Term and Term yield 5.5%
reversion method FHW R X
ElikZES FHRERE
Reversionary yield 6%
L
Market rent (per sgq.m. HK$104
and per month) 1047 7T

The term and reversion method measured the fair value
of the property by taking into account the rental income
derived from the existing leases with due allowance for
the reversionary income potential of the leases, which
were then capitalised into the value at appropriate rates.

A significant increase (decrease) in the term yield and
the reversionary yield in isolation would result in a
significant decrease (increase) in the fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase (decrease)
in the market rent would result in a significant increase
(decrease) in the fair value of the investment properties.

migHEE (B¥HREEAR)

FHMEREACEERARAHONE
WA XE RBHNAIEREERA
FHEENZE R R EVENRFE
REZBEENTHEERETER-

R R SRR R B A B L
TR EEHRENEAT EAR
B (i) - DEFALEBAE LA
(TH) S HIRA D E AT EA RS M
GRi) -
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GOODWILL (GRS
HKS’'000
FETT
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 R—ZE—+F—H—8
and 1 January 2018: ZE—tHFTA=T—8K
—T-N\F—H—8:

Cost N =
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 42) U B% O BB N &) (K aE42) 401,207
Exchange realignment ME 5, 7 B (1,113)
Cost and net carrying amount RZFE-N\F+ZA=+—H<

at 31 December 2018 BRI BR TR B 400,094
At 31 December 2018: R-E-NE+-_A=+—8:

Cost BN 400,094

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combination has
been allocated to the following cash-generating units
("CGU") for impairment testing:

o General aviation aircraft piston engine business in

the USA CGU ("USA CGU"); and

° General aviation aircraft piston engine business in
the Germany CGU (“Germany CGU")

R 2R EA

BB AV HEEART T
ReEAET ((REELET)) N
TR

. BAMZEREEEZSHEEBEN
XEMBRSELET ([XERE
EEET]) &

. BAMEREEEEHREBR
EENREELET ([FERE
ELXET])
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16.

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the

CGUs is as follows:

BR(E)
BEZRERR (&)

SETERSELETHHERDELN
T

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF

HKS$'000 HK$000

FETT FET

USA CGU EHBEEELEET 385,770 -
Germany CGU EHRESELET 14,324 -
400,094 -

The recoverable amounts of both cash-generating

units have been determined based on a value-in-use

calculation using cash flow projections based on

financial budgets covering a five-year period approved

by management. The discount rates applied to the

cash flow projections and the growth rates used to

extrapolate the cash flows beyond the five-year periods

are as follows:

MEREELETH K@ REIRE
KRR REBAUKRGFE 2 EREEM
BE ZReRERAAEEBHAED
TFRMBRERER - B REFANR
PT & A B T 3R 3R e A R0 T B 38 T 4 B

IR MEMNEREMT :

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —TE—+F
% %
USA CGU ZHESELER
Discount rate I8 = 13.6% N/A
Growth rate # R & 2.5% N/A
Germany CGU EHRREELER
Discount rate PR = 17.7% N/A
Growth rate R =X 2.5% N/A
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GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation
of the CGUs for 31 December 2018. The following
describes each key assumption on which management
has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the
average gross margins achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements, and expected market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax
and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.

16.

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H

mE(E)

mEZRENR (&)
—E-N\F+_A=t+t—HBRRELES
BIUMERAEEFERPFEATRE T
AR E R T R E R S T
MR e RETB R AT RIEN S ERERE
=

FEEENE -FEEETNENEETIRIE
EEFEZAI—FEMEEREMNFEHERN X
E WHAEER MRS RTESETS
R ML 0o

FIRE-—FRABZFBERTIRAGKR
B - WA BRI E T 2 1 E R e
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18.

17. HtEREE

Product
technology,
Development licence and Total other
programs completed Customer intangible
in progress  Trademarks programs  relationships Others assets
Emb-
BRR
7 BRAM At &R
BREiE BE HE EFEE A EEAH
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000
FET TET FET TET TET FET
31 December 2018 ZB-N\FtZAZ+-8
Cost at 1 January 2017, RZE—+E-f-R"
31 December 2017 “EtEtZAZT-AR
and 1 January 2018 3 \F-F-HZEA = = = = = =
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 42)  WEEH B 7 (Hit42) 185,140 265,747 826,147 558,001 7370 1,842,405
Additions HE 54,428 = 39 = 395 54,862
Transfers L (16,887) - 16,887 - - -
Amortisation provided during FRERRE (Hite)
the year (note 6) = (8,732) (29,022) (34,580) (3,473) (75,807)
Disposals HE (2,666) - - - - (2,666)
Exchange realignment ERAE (5,642) (2,136) (20,504) (9,355) - (37,637)

At 31 December 2018

RZZ-N\F+ZA=1-H 214,373

254,879 793,547 514,066

4,292 1,781,157

At 31 December 2018:

RZE-N\E+ZA=1+-H:

Cost B 214373 263080 821526 548,502 7765 1,855,246

Accumulated amortisation EL - (8,201) (27,979) (34,436) (3,473) (74,089)

Net carrying amount EETE 214373 254879 793547 514,066 4292 1,781,157
INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. EERTZRE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

HKS'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Share of net assets DINFEE 39,174 42,464
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INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)

The investments in joint ventures include the Group's
right to enjoy certain economic benefits derived from a
69.4% equity interest in CATIC Siwei Co., Ltd. (“CATIC
Siwei”) held by third parties through trust arrangements.
CATIC Siwei is registered as a co-operative joint venture
under PRC law and is holding an investment in China
which operates in the aero-technology business and in
investment holding.

In the opinion of the directors, notwithstanding that the
Group has the right to enjoy certain economic benefits
from the 69.4% equity interest in CATIC Siwei, none of
the shareholders of CATIC Siwei has unilateral control
over the economic activity of CATIC Siwei pursuant to
the provisions in the articles and association of CATIC
Siwei. Since the Group does not have any power to
control the financial and operating activities of CATIC
Siwei, the directors consider that it is appropriate to
account for the investment as an investment in a joint
venture using the equity method of accounting as at 31
December 2018 and 2017.

CATIC Siwei was not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong
Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young
global network.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of CATIC Siwei, which is considered as
a material joint venture of the Group, adjusted for
any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled
to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements:

18.

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H
EERTZRE (&)

BENRZREABEASEERZEAR
B EBEARERE ZNB#MTE
RAEMRAAE] ([FOHEER]) 69.4%K A
W 2 B THRERZ - Mg ERRESP
BEBIZMAEECE WRPERFH
EEMEHINERIREERZIZE -

EEIRA BALNEBRHEIEEX
69.4% B AR A E T B R=E 8
RIE U4 E AR R ZRRTE &M
HEBREYOGEERZCETSESR
B8 7 T A o E A AN R B A 4 I Y
WER VB REEEE EERAE
HIPZER A ERE TR
E-N\FRZIE—tF+ZA=1+—H
FFABERRIZIEE-

7O 4 E BOF R ZOK BB L K B IR
Hi K B RA]&EZ -

TRIEMMEER (KRR RN EEZE
EMBEAR) cHBEHRBE CHE
AR ZEMEREHARE  LEEA
MBHRRAZREEETHER:
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e e

18. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. BE¥RRZRE (&)
(continued)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEE 627 2,462
Other current assets Himoh&E 19,192 29,129
Current assets MENEE 19,819 31,591
Non-current assets ERBEE 75,402 78,084
Current liabilities mEBE (36,251) (44,776)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (923) (956)
Net assets BEFE 58,047 63,943
Less: Net assets attributable to B FEIE R R
non-controlling interests JEEEEFE (2,661) (2,756)
55,386 61,187
Reconciliation to the Group's interest ~ BIREBR A & QA
in the joint venture: W 2 ¥I0R
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEEBEHEREZ LG 69.4% 69.4%
Group's share of net assets of AEBESEEERAZ
the joint venture BEEFE 38,438 42,464
Goodwill on acquisition WEEMEE  HE 7,745 7,745
Provision for impairment ok (B B (7,745) (7,745)
Carrying amount of the investment "EZEREE 38,438 42,464
Revenue g 499 1,305
Interest income AES PN 1,991 2,972
Other expenses HEfbh (1,200) (22,196)
Interest expenses MERX - -
Tax sl = -
Loss for the year REFE (3,768) (30,158)
Other comprehensive income HEth2mEmla (2,128) 4,185
Total comprehensive income AETHEHWRARE
for the year (5,896) (25,973)
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INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)

CATIC Siwei has placed a deposit for the acquisition
of a property located at PRC, which was included in
“non-current assets”. The directors of the Company
performed impairment assessment of the deposit on
31 December 2018 based on the valuation performed
by LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, on the underlying
property to determine that there is no impairment
indicator.

18.

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H

BENRZRE (&)

MugERE KRB TPENDETS
ANES ZWECREE ERDEE]
NeARRARIEER _ZT—NF+ A
T —HREBYEESERIGEMF
BITHEMERATABEMEETH
HEHIZSETRERN S AEETE
NEAIERER

The fair value measurement of the underlying building HEEFHATFEFEDDERES
is categorised as Level 3. Below is a summary of the AT RABAGBERM 2 E A KA
valuation techniques used and the key inputs to the BEGHENE Z8H ASUE
valuation of underlying property:
Valuation technique Significant unobservable input Weighted
average
AEREE R ERATAEHEERASE I F I H
Direct capitalisation approach Estimated rental value RMB14,300

(per square meter)

BEERENMOZE

EEtEEEE (BFTX)

(2017: RMB10,500)
14,3007 A R ¥
Tt
10,5007C A R #)

Yield rate 4.2%
has & (2017: 5.5%)

The following table illustrative the financial information
of the Group’s joint venture that is not individually
material:

(ZZE—+HF:55%)

TREALFMAEAZ FAEBAE D
S BEN

2018 2017
—E-N\F —t &
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Share of the joint venture's loss SREERNRZANFEE
for the year (326) -
Share of the joint venture’s other SMEaE R R B2 E WS
comprehensive income = -
Share of the joint venture's total SiEEE ARz EENRERE
comprehensive income (326) -

Carrying amount of the Group's
investment in the joint venture

EREE 736 =
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES BENF2RE

2018 2017
—E-N\HF —E—+F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Share of net assets DMEEEFE 12,272 14,211
Goodwill on acquisition WEEMEE  HE 7,500 7,500
19,772 21,711
Less: Provision for impairment R E B (7,326) (7,326)
12,446 14,385

Due from an associate included EWFFAREBERSEEZ
in the Group’s current assets JE W Bt 5 X B 508 575 10,441

Loans to an associate included STAREERBEEZ

in the Group's current assets mEEARIRENER 9,143 -

The amount due from an associate is unsecured and is
repayable on demand.

The loans to an associate are unsecured, bear interest at
6% per annum and are repayable within one year.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group's
equity interest in EBEEME=BR AR ("EEM
Z=") was diluted and the Group no longer had any
significant influence over it. Accordingly, the investment
in 28 M= was reclassified to an available-for-sale
investment and the fully-impaired loans to 2 Bf iz

were reclassified to other receivables.

B R R R BRI B AR E K

o

A

I

RS QB E R R EE T RF
ME6%stE  BZAR—FAEE-

RBE-_FT-—tF+-_A=1+—H8L
FE AEEREBRBEBEMEBRAF
(TEMMZED 2B AR H#ER
REBITIBRZAREBEATE S -
At AEEREBMEZREEH D
BEAHBENKRE ME2BREZ
MEBRZRENERNERFOBEEE
1t & U B K
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INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the material associate are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

Particulars of registration and

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H

MENTRZRE (F)
BAMERRZHEMT

Percentage of ownership
interest attributable

Name issued shares held  business to the Group Principal activity
FBEERT gMRL/ AEEEGERE
£ BB AMREE LR BEBOL TEER
2018 2017
—E-NE —T—+F
EREGHRRE Registered capital ~ PRC/Mainland 31.75 35.61 Research and development
BROBRE QA of RMB1 each China of engineering technology
("EREER) SRITARESN B/ PER and electronics
A E R communication technology
TEBIRETFBE MO
TRFEE
* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another * WIER LK BB R LK BIRABLE AL

member firm of the Ernst & Young global network

The above table lists the associates of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

During the year, the Group's equity interest in 1t &
{=% was diluted subsequent to the capital injection by
new investors to Jt RZE{=Z. A gain on deemed disposal
of an associate of HK$3,561,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.

EWNSESA

ERIHEBEERRTEFEAFEEE
IBRAEEEEFETERO Z2AE
BEtENE - EER /M E M
REBEMEBO TR

FRN -FREERILLREERTIER
AEERLEREERIRAERZE W
e BEGEANEHE QR ZFE
3,561,000 TE R AFHIFEIBEREK
HRER
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19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19. B AR ZKRE (&)
During the year, the Group disposed of its entire 40% FRN - AEEHERIE R FEIERZE
equity interests in an associate, b 7P I8 54 Al 2= 4% RirERAR AR ([ RFRFEE])
WERAERAF ("IERFREE") to China National B EF40%RELE THMBEELOE
Aero-Technology Import & Export Corporation (“CATIC") REEAR ([hMiE]) REKRER
for a cash consideration of RMB3,839,000 (equivalent 3,839,0007T A R # (#H5 724,388,000
to HK$4,388,000). A loss on disposal of HK$909,000 L) o HEE18909,0008 TE RERA
was recognised in the consolidated statement of BaRRER - BRRMET B ERZE
profit or loss. Since CATIC is 50% owned by Aviation ITX¥SERRAREABS0%  KEFE
Industry Corporation of China, Ltd and 50% owned by R F BB R A BR R R A 50%
AVIC International Holding Corporation, the disposal BIEEHHRA HESEBRARAZ
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company FER 5o
under the Listing Rules.
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRINTAERBERIFERBERE 2
information of the Group's associates that are not BETHI AR
individually material:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Share of the associates’ profit PAR(E): /N AN S
for the year 471 222
Share of the associates’ total AMEEE ARZ
comprehensive income FHEW AR 471 222
Aggregate carrying amount of REEBRBEAG 2
the Group's investments in wEZRABELSE
the associates 12,446 14,385
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EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED 20. BRAFEFAHEMEZEHKEZR
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER TRE AMHHENRE

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/AVAILABLE-
FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Equity investments designated BRAFEFAHAM
at fair value through other E2EKREZREERE
comprehensive income
Listed equity investments, at fair value: M RRAEE » HAFE:
Peace Map Holding Limited (“PMH") RATEZERERA A
(IRTE=RKR]) = -
AVIC Joy Holding (HK) Limited FRER(ES)BRAF
("AVIC Joy") (T=RER]) 53,642 -
53,642 -
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value: 3F E IR ANIEE - A FE:
Ampaire, Inc. Ampaire, Inc. 389 -
54,031 -
The above equity investments were irrevocably AR AEERAEZSIREB R ML
designated at fair value through other comprehensive FrIAE AT UEE IR Bl IR AR B F
income as the Group considers these investments to be B ATFEFAREMEEEE-

strategic in nature.
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20. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED 20.
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/AVAILABLE-
FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (continued)

During the year, the trading in PMH’s shares has been
suspended and PMH's convertible bonds were in default.
Management has assessed that the fair values of PMH’s
shares and convertible bonds are zero based on available

BAFEFAREMEZEBRE 2R
FRE AIHHENRE (F)

FA R TEERZRNEEFEERE M
ATEZERNARREFCEN -BE
BEREAIAZETENXTEZERY
B ER T ER T BER MR M AR

published financial information of PMH. EHFENAFEARES-
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LtF
HKS’'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Available-for-sale investments AHEENRE
Current: EE)
Unlisted investments, at fair value: FLETIRE R ATE:
Bond component of PMH's convertible X T El4% i& 7] #2 B (& 5 49
bonds BEHAXE D = 42,400
Bond component of AVIC Joy's FRERTIRRESFT
convertible bond BEHMEKE S = 39,948
= 82,348
Non-current: ERE
Listed equity investment, at fair value ~ tFWRARE AT E - 110,380

During the year ended 31 December 2017, a net fair
value loss of HK$86,017,000, in aggregate, in respect
of the Group’s available-for-sale investments, was
recognised as other comprehensive income, of which fair
value loss of HK$67,280,000 was reclassified from other
comprehensive income to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss on impairment for the year ended 31
December 2017.

HE-_ZFZ—tHF+H=+T—81Lt
FE ARAEEAHEENREZ
AP {E K18 48 %886,017,0008 T & #E
RREMEEKE B QAFEEIE
67,280,000 7T 7 Rk 1B B 446 H fth 22 T UK
HREMOBEHE_T—+tF+=A
=+ HIEFENGRABRER
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H

TTEEMIT A
2018 2017
—E-N\HF —E—+F
HKS'000 HK$000
FET FET

Conversion option of PMH's convertible X~ [B 12 i% 7] #2 % & 55 &9

bonds I IR R
Conversion option of

AVIC Joy's convertible bond alib g

SEfRER AR E S

The Group's derivative financial instruments as at 31
December 2017 were managed and their performance
was evaluated on a fair value basis. Any fair value gain
or loss was recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the fair
values of the derivative financial instruments were
estimated using valuation techniques based on
assumptions that are supported by observable market
prices or rates. The valuations required the directors
to make estimates, including expected cash flows and
volatility of the underlying securities. The directors
believed that the estimated fair values resulting from
the valuation technique, which were recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair value, which were recorded
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, were
reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate
values at 31 December 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, an aggregate
fair value loss of HK$11,337,000 in respect of the
Group’s derivative financial instruments was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

ARER-F—LE A=+ A
FESRIANEAFEREEESE X
KB E AT EERTE - EFATE
FBMSE S RNA R RNRR

BE_Z—+F+-_A=+—HIF

TR T AZ A FETIAGER
MAMGE ZEERMRAZBEES
ABEMmSERRNERER/F -HE
AERFLES ERBHREERER
HAEFO RS -BEFHE M
BRRAKRRS 2 HEERNAEEZ A
FEARGEEGERALERZ A FER
HMEYIEARE R_T—tF+_-A
=t—R HEEZ/RKRE-

e

REBE-T—+tF+_A=+—HIEF
E-AEETESRIAZ AT ERE
R 11,337,000 L WREE =T
—tF+ A=+ BIEFEZHRAE
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22. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT AND 22. REPYERBEHEZECTRK
COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR LS

SALE

The analysis of the costs of the Group's properties under
development and completed properties held for sale

situated in the PRC is as follows:

7SR e 3 e B B R R M 2 RS
EXRERMETRASFOT -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HKS$°000 HK$°000
FET FET

Properties under development TEHAW B 2 B R AP E

expected to be recovered:

After one year —F A% - 1,817,160
= 1,817,160
Completed properties held for sale FIEHE 2B TR E - 1,120,000
= 2,937,160

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
properties under development and completed
properties held for sale had been written down to net
realisable value based on valuations performed by an
independent professionally qualified valuer, and a loss
of HK$296,848,000 was recognised in the cost of sales

REZE-FE—+tF+=-A=+—H8H1
FE - ZFRPDERBELEZETK
MECRBEBIEXSERMGERE
TZHEERBEENERFE MEIRE
296,848,000 LERBEBE T —+F
TZA=T—HILEFEZERIEEEE

in the discontinued operation for the year ended 31 TEE)8H B B AN TR o
December 2017.
23. INVENTORIES 23. FE&

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials R ¥+ 312,139 -
Work in progress £ 2 121,543 -
Finished goods LK o 40,071 -

473,753
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31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H

24. EBWEZKRM

2018 2017

—E-N\HF —E—+F

HKS'000 HK$'000

FETT FAET

Trade receivables JEWE ZERR 109,283 76,977
Impairment VERE] (6,572) -
102,711 76,977

The Group has different credit policies for different
business operations depending on the requirements of
the markets and businesses in which the subsidiaries
operate. Trade receivables from the sale of properties
in respect of the property development and investment
business are payable pursuant to the terms of sale and
purchase agreements. The Group's trading terms with
its customers in the general aviation aircraft piston
engine business are mainly on credit, where partial
advanced payment is required for certain customers. The
credit period is generally 30 days. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. As at 31 December
2018, the Group had certain concentrations of credit risk
as 37% of the Group's trade receivables were due from
one of the Group's key customers. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing.

AEETRBEREB 2 EERRTR
TIBURR TS ER LB AR AEEZ
X -MERREBREXBZOFHE
ZRERBESERDIRBEEE S DIRKE
o REBHEE A= REEEZIH
EB2BEPZEERFEIERRE 3
ETEPMEABNBORE-EEH
—RAB30A -BUEFPHERAEER
#

ARER B SRS R TE R 2 IR BRFR A 45 B
REE - BEERETHRBBNEH-
RZBE-NF+ZA=+—H F&HE
FEETEESTRR RERAEE
BEWE SRR 237 % R A S E —
HREBEPZHA -NEELEHRERE
WE SRR EHFREMERmE
EERE - BUKE B RRIL TGS
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24.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and

net of loss allowance, is as follows:

24,

FEWE R (&)

RBEEHR BRREZERZERZAH
KRB R RE DT

2018 2017

—EB-N\F —E—+F

HKS'000 HK$000

FETT FAET

Within 1 month — @A A 76,745 -
1 to 2 months —ZWEA 12,241 -
2 to 3 months —E==@A 3,927 -
Over 3 months wBiE={EA 9,798 76,977
102,711 76,977

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of

the trade receivables are as follows:

BB ZERAZBEBRREEES N

T

2018 2017

= % —EF—EF

HKS’'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

At 1 January m—H—H - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries g BE BT B8~ A 5,603 -
Impairment losses, net (note 6) AR R FEE (Hat6) 969 -
At 31 December Rt+-_A=+—H 6,572 -
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 24. BREZHRR(E)
Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31 BE-ZE-N\F+-A=+—HLHF
December 2018 EERMBRELERFIRIET 2R
=)
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting NERE B HRFERBEEEEETRED
date using a provision matrix to measure expected -t EEREEEE -BEXDE
credit losses. The provision rates are based on days REBBUBEREANZERF 5048
past due for groupings of various customer segments Al A BETE AT ERM TH X
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the MEHER BBRKEEEUNRR®REH
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money HAESHNERBESH SRR R
and reasonable and supportable information that is RRGEERABRAHEGERAZFE
available at the reporting date about past events, Be—Mms ZEZREKERNE BB
current conditions and forecasts of future economic B—FRBAXBREHHITIEEAT
conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off if LA 35
past due for more than one year and are not subject to
enforcement activity.
Set out below is the information about the credit risk TREIERARBEES>THEBRASE
exposure on the Group's trade receivables using a EEZEKERNEERRNER :
provision matrix:
As at 31 December 2018 R=ZEBE-NF+=ZA=+—8H
Past due
k!
Less than 1t03 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
0 SR-BA —-E=A =@EALEL B3t

Expected credit loss rate EHEEBBX 0.49% 3.70% 14.27% 42.95% 6.01%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) SREERE (FET) 82,026 11,431 3,650 12,176 109,283
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) FEEZEEBE(TET) 398 423 521 5,230 6,572
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 24. BREZRR(E)

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31 BE-Z—tFt+-A=t—HLHF

December 2017 EEBETERAEIRET 2RE
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at BIEFB B ERE35F - R_F—+
31 December 2017 that were not individually nor FH+ZA=+T—H WREARIHEER
collectively considered to be impaired under HKAS 39 is BAERENERE SRR RES TN

as follows: T

2017
—E—+tF
HK$°000
FET
Neither past due nor impaired KRB BT ARRE 22,206
1 to 3 months past due mE—=={EA 54,771
76,977

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired

related to a large number of diversified customers for

whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related

to a number of independent customers that had a good

track record with the Group. Based on past experience,

the directors of the Company were of the opinion

that no provision for impairment under HKAS 39 was

necessary in respect of these balances as there had

not been a significant change in credit quality and the

balances were still considered fully recoverable.

REEATF AR R FE W R RS ] R %
ZHILEF ZERFEFPYESTENE
EO

EEHERBEENREERIYS MRS HE
AEERARIBELEZBIRF
REEEER ARAEERS AR
EEBXVEBEREYEBBINBER
AEHKE WEFREEE G ER
FIEH L FERIE IR ER
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ANRE  2EREMERERX

2018 2017

—E-N\F e

HKS’'000 HK$'000

FAETT FET

Prepayments T R 48,235 4,275
Deposits and other receivables e R E b U ER R 83,421 52,895
Impairment allowance DR ERE & (46,861) (52,075)
84,795 5,095

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental
deposits, deposits with suppliers and loan receivables.
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date by applying a loss rate approach with reference to
the historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is
adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions, as appropriate. The
loss rate applied for where there are no comparable
companies as at 31 December 2018 was 100% on
the gross other receivables of HK$46,861,000 (2017:
HK$52,075,000) before impairment allowance.

Deposits and other receivables that were not impaired
relate to receivables for which there is no recent history
of default.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group disposed of fully-impaired convertible loans
to an independent third party at a consideration of
HK$87,151,000. As a result, a gain on disposal of
convertible loans of HK$87,151,000 was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

RehEMERERETEATERS
HEARSRERER -REHREA
H - AEBRAEBEBEXEIT2EAREE
MBTEBECHETRES T -AE
EAEEER R E AR ES R
RAEEAMR DO TR (HER) - HZF
—N\F+ZA=+—H EAELRA
AIER TR A BB E100%(ERE B E
2 H A U BR TR 58 (FOBR R (E B 1R
AT) /£46,861,0008 7L (=& —+ F ¢
52,075,000/ 7T ) °

) ROBLE 2 12 2 e At B M B 08 % S
BT K JE S # B MR X

REE—ZT—+tF+=ZA=+—HIL
FE AEBELKES?,151,0004 T M
—EZBUE=FHEEEERAENA
BBREF Bt DETBRBRERZF
87,151,000 LERBE_T—+tF
TZA=tT—RHIEFEZGREERRE

7
o
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26.

27.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

26.

BAVEIFABSCUBEE

2018 2017

—E-N\F B F

HKS’'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Listed equity investment, at fair value ~ EWRRAKRE R A FE - 80,761
Other unlisted investments, at fair value Hfbh3F FTRE IR AFE = -
= 80,761

The above unlisted investments at 31 December 2018
were PMH’s convertible bonds. They were mandatorily
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely
payments of principal and interest.

During the year, PMH’s convertible bonds were in
default. Management has assessed that the fair values
of PMH’s convertible bonds are zero based on available
published financial information of PMH.

PREPAID TAXES

Balance represented taxes and surcharges prepaid for
the sales deposits received from pre-sales of properties in
the PRC.

27.

LR =T - N\F+ZA=T—HHMI
LIHEERRTEERNITRBRES -
High R EARATEFAERZS
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R AE RFE -
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W BEEREBDREABZEHENXT
B2 i 1 B 75 B B AR R T BRI A
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BAHE
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 28. HERBRTEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+#F
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Time deposits FHIER - 301,921
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTER 1,191,575 325,219
Cash and cash equivalents RekResH 1,191,575 627,140
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank REBERR AEBAARE(TAR
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated BIAEZRERBITEEREHT
in Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted to HK$707,355,000 X 43707,355,0008 T (ZF — L 5F:
(2017: HK$301,810,000). The RMB is not freely 301,810,000/ 7T) - AR A] B HEE
convertible into other currencies, however, under BRAEMEE  AWMBEFE A .2
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations MEE IR AR S AT - B IE RATEEIEAR
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of EASETEBERERRING iR
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted ¥BoBRTBARBELBAEEME-
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on RITFRIETARITERFERFTENZ
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are BNEGFE - RIEAEENARRSH
made for varying periods of between one day and one K FENF—BE—FETREKN
year depending on the immediate cash requirements of REHEIE BRI AR AR A R B i
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term MEFE -RITEFREHAERETR
time deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits RET /R ES A BRE 2 RIT-
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.
DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 29. ENKHBARZEERRR

SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 were unsecured,
non-interest-bearing and had no fixed terms of
repayment.

RZZE—tF+ZA=+—H ENHH
B AR 2 FEEIRAR IR TS AR - A
AR EEEEEMR-
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30.

31.

BALANCES WITH INTERMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANIES

The loans from an intermediate holding company as at
31 December 2017 were unsecured, interest-bearing at
6% per annum and were not repayable within one year.

The amount due to intermediate holding companies
are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on
demand.

BALANCES WITH FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are unsecured,
non-interest-bearing and repayable within one year.

The amounts due to fellow subsidiaries as at 31
December 2017 were unsecured, non-interest-bearing
and repayable on demand.

The loans from a fellow subsidiary as at 31 December
2017 were unsecured and interest-bearing at 6% per
annum.

The loans from a fellow subsidiary which were not
repayable within one year as at 31 December 2017 were
included in the Group's non-current liabilities. The loans
from a fellow subsidiary which were repayable within
one year as at 31 December 2017 were included in the
Group's current liabilities.

30.

31.

B EER D E 2 AR

A\ ZE—tF+-A=+—H KA+
F'EHV“H TE’JEMTJ%EW R F R

EEtRRBAR—FREE-

H
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KB BSREE -

IRT A G

EEEEAC - N o o

Fﬂﬁlﬁ?@ﬁ%”_ BRI AT
RAER—FANEE-

R-Z—+&+-A=+—8 EHAE

A B ARRAEDEER T8 RA
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An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H

32. BNEZKRM
RBESHR BNEZERZERZAH

of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as ZIERBATIT
follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Within 1 month —EAR 65,839 85,604
1 to 2 months —ZWEA 19,182 -
2 to 3 months —Z=M@A 3,844 -
Over 3 months B = E A 1,287 36,907
90,152 122,511

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are

normally settled on 60-to-90-day terms.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

ZERMNE SRR T B —RIR60
Z0RHIRBRE -

33. HtENRERESTER

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Notes HKS'000 HK$'000
Jokza FET FET
Contract liabilities AEHEaE (a) 37,425 -
Other payables H b fE S SRR (b) 1,435 10,832
Accruals JEETE A 105,387 23,366
144,247 34,198

Portion classified as current DEEREEENIH
liabilities (114,727) (34,198)
Non-current portion JEMENE 0 29,520 -
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33. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 33.

(continued)

Notes:

(a) Details of contract liabilities as at 31 December

2018 and 1 January 2018 are as follows:

HttENRERESER (#£)

Bt -

(@ R-ZE—N\F+-_A=+—HBEK
—E-NF—A—BNEHaE

BT
31 December 1 January
2018 2018
—E-N\F —E-N\F
+=A=+-A i
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Short-term advances received KB E B2 BT 5
from customers
Sale of properties HEME - 339,654
Sale of aircraft engines and BHE R BB R A
spare parts 37,425 -
Total contract liabilities BHBEAR 37,425 339,654

Contract liabilities include short-term advances
received to deliver properties, aircraft engines and
spare parts. The decrease in contract liabilities in

2018 was mainly due to the decrease in short-

term advances received from customers in relation

to the sale of properties as a result of the disposal

of Ease Triumph Group.

(b) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have

an average term of three months.

BHAEBEREIMYE RKE
BHEEFNEHENR R
Z-N\FANEBERIEIEZAR
HEREEEMEHRTFKE
MY EEL B ) KA B RO RE B TR R
B BT B

(b) HEMEMNKETTEE R FHE
RA=EA -
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34. PROVISIONS AND OTHER LIABILITIES 34. BERHEMEE
Product
Warranty claim Other
provision provision liabilities Total
ERER
RIEBE BE HittBfE |t
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2017, RZE—+F—HA—H"
31 December 2017 and —E—LF
1 January 2018 +ZA=+t—8k
ZZEZ-NF—-H—H = = = =
Acquisition of subsidiaries =N
(note 42) (Hfitaz) 24,633 59,675 36,127 120,435
Provided/(reversed) (note 6) BB/ (BE) (Hite) 29,405 (10,890) 11,887 30,402
Utilised during the year FAEEHA (24,226) (20,327) (6,021) (50,574)
Increase in discounted amounts F& B & 18 2 i & &£ &Y
arising from the passage FRESREEMN
of time (note 7) (Htit7) = - 114 114
Exchange realignment BE R (540) - (2,853) (3,393)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE—-)\F
+-A=+—H 29,272 28,458 39,254 96,984
Portion classified as current DERRBBENIMR
liabilities (24,924) (10,463) (14,058) (49,445)

Non-current portion FEMENE 1D 4,348 17,995 25,196 47,539




222

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REMZE TEERER (58)BRA T
Annual Report 2018 —Z — )\ FFF 7R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& 3R & M 5%

31 December 2018 —E—\F+=-A=+—H

34.

PROVISIONS AND OTHER LIABILITIES
(continued)

The Group provides warranties ranging from one to
three years to its customers on certain of its engines. The
amount of the provision for the warranties is estimated
based on sales volumes and past experience of the level
of repairs and returns. The estimation basis is received
on an ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.

The Group is currently involved in legal proceedings
related to product liability claims. An estimate for
the probable costs has been made for these claims
as product claim provision. This estimate has been
developed in consultation with the Group's insurers,
legal counsels, historical experience and is based upon
an analysis of potential results. In the opinion of the
directors, these proceedings will not have a material
adverse effect on the Group's consolidated financial
statements. The product claim provision is made for any
present expected product liability claims as a result of
the assessment at the end of the reporting period. The
estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and
revised where appropriate.

34.

BERHEMEE (&)

AEEREBOEBRARETFEMHR

E-FHREY - REBBELERE
HERBEMEE RREKFEZERMG
H-AKEFERSZGEEEE IR
R R EEEITER -

AEEBR S MEEREEREABD
ERFRFREMRBEERE A5HE
EHZE R E A BERCAAE (A T © 7%
B DASEEERAKBENRR A
AINARBRE AL REBTER:
WERHBEERODITEL -EFR
B REFRDARFIEHAEENGS
MBEBRRENERTNEE - ERRE
BB YRS MR EOEAEAE
HERBETREMEDL- $El$iiiﬁ
APk AR ERE . W EE R Y EETE
ale
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 35. FTERITER

2018 2017
—E-N\f ZT—tf
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HKS$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
EBFE%) YA FET EEFE%) A FHET
Current: RE:
Bank loans - unsecured RTTEFR—EHEH  LIBOR+1.75% 2019 54,250 - - -
RBRITRE
HE+1.75%
Bank loans - unsecured 17 E K — &L LIBOR+1% 2019 53,568 - - -
RERTR ¥
FE+1%
Bank loans - unsecured 1T E F — EH I LIBOR+2% 2019 12,400 - - -
RBRITRE
17 E+2%
120,218 -
Non-current: FRE:
LIBOR+2%
RARTRE
Bank loans - unsecured 1T E F— EE 7 E+2% 2020 1,031 - - -
121,249 _
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HKS'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Analysed into: DT
Bank loans and overdrafts repayable: AR TR EEED
WITERRES
Within one year or on demand —FRHIREK 120,218 -
In the second year RE—F 1,031 -
121,249 -
All bank borrowings are denominated in United States FTAERITEEANETEE -

dollars.
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36.

DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 36. EHEEMNEME
Continental Motors United Auto Workers Pension RERBEKBSTETARKESE
Plan (“UAW Pension Plan”) (TUAWER k£ 5T81])
The Group has a defined benefit pension plan. It is a REBEHETREEEIRKRSEE %5t
pension plan for the United States employees which EAHHEEEENRKEF S AR
require contributions to be made to a separately BUEREREPIERHER - ZEMEKS
administered fund. This benefit pension plan is funded. EER LR - REE EEBE
Under the plan, the employees are entitled to monthly Z AWEGRRER - S iE SR F i
retirement benefits or early or postponed retirement EIRK - AR A WEUR AT S B R (R
benefits when they have early or postponed retirements &I - 7B 35 AR L A i A o
subject to other conditions.
Continental Motors Postretirement Life & Health REERBERAREBASEETE (A
Plan (“Life & Health Plan”) SRETE
The Group provides certain additional post-employment AEBRENEERES THEINRIKE
medical and life benefits to employees in the United BERERRASEMN ZERINARES -
States. These benefits are unfunded. Under the plan, RIEFTE BEAEWBURKEEERER
the employees are entitled to receive post-employment F e
medical benefits.
The actuarial valuations of the present value of the THEEMNECHENBEMGREDAH
defined benefit obligations were carried out as at the Newport Group, Inc. (A& IBHERAD)
end of each of the reporting period by Newport Group, NEREHRERIEAECEERE R
Inc., a qualified actuary, using the projected unit credit BIE#ET
actuarial valuation method.
The principal assumptions used at the end of the REBRERAREANETERZEHT W
reporting period are as follows: T~
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
% %
Discount rate B =
UAW Pension Plan UAWR K & &1 &l 4.25% N/A A3
Life & Health Plan ABREREE 3.88% N/A i A
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DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
(continued)

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant
assumptions at the end of the reporting period is shown
below:

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H

EHEENEE (&)

RBEERAREHEEABRNECEFRE
DMHIREAT -

RZE—N\&F
+-A=+—H

Discount rate WX

As at 31 December 2018

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined
based on a method that extrapolates the impact on
defined benefit obligations as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period. The sensitivity analysis is based on a
change in a significant assumption, keeping all other
assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis may not be
representative of an actual change in the defined benefit
obligations as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another.

The total expenses recognised as administrative expenses

Decrease Increase
in defined in defined
benefit Decrease benefit
obligations inrate  obligations
EEEN EHEEF
BERERS AN BEEEM
HK$'000 % HK$'000
FET FET
(4,590) Q) 5,789

PRGRESTHRBENREHREE
SREBELEZAEEHHTRERNAEL
FEEHREMEE SREINIER
EFRAEMBRTENER T —HE
KBRS M AETT - BURE DT R 4%
RREBBRMNETNERRE AZF
RENNBBREISEFEL-

AR BN ARBE B AR RIT

in the Group's profit or loss in respect of the plans are as EEBRAMNBRAENT:
follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current service cost B 89 Ak 755 A A 3,615 =
Net interest expense MERZ HER 191 =
Net benefit expenses (note 6) BRAS FEE (Hit6) 3,806 =
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36. DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 36. EHEBANEME (&)
(continued)
The movements of the defined benefit obligations and EREMNEERTEEENATEE
the fair value of plan assets are as follows: m
Defined benefit obligations  Fair value of plan assets Total
EEBREE HEEENATE EH)
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“B-Nf —T—+tF ZB-\§ —T—+F ZB-NF _—T—+F
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January ®—R—AH - - - - - -
Pension cost charged to HRBEN
profit or loss BARERE
Current service cost BV ER R 3% A A 3,615 - - - 3,615 -
Net interest expense/(income)  F| 85 % / (WA )FE8 1,258 - (1,067) - 191 -
Sub-total included in profit &t ABH A/ NEf
or loss 4,873 - (1,067) - 3,806 -
Remeasurement losses/ RE#ZERER
(gains) recognised in other ~BERMEHE
comprehensive income B/ (FE)
Returns on plan assets FEIEERR
(excluding amounts included ~ (FEEFTAFIE
in net interest expense) A FENESE) 433 - 2,355 - 2,788 -
Actuarial changes arising from A 0 &% &
changes in demographic EENBES
assumptions (351) - - - (351) -
Actuarial changes arising BBREZHELN
from changes in financial BEEE
assumptions (3,770) - = - (3,770) -
Sub-total included in other it AH 2 EUZEH
comprehensive income NEE (3,688) - 2,355 - (1,333) -
Others Hit
Contribution by employer EEXHR - - (2,574) - (2,574) -
Benefits paid BRI (690) - 690 - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries ¢ 100N
(note 42) (H3#42) 35,822 - (28,816) - 7,006 -
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 36,317 - (29,412) - 6,905 -
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DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
(continued)

The major categories of the fair value of plan assets of
UAW Pension Plan are as follows:

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H
EEENEE ()

UAWERAR ST EIM S EEM QT EZ
EEEBWT

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F

HKS'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Equity instruments fRAT A 9,452 -
Debt instruments B THE 13,147 -
Others HAth 6,813 -
29,412 -

The Group expects to contribute HK$3,410,000 to the
pension plans for the year ending 31 December 2019.

Since Life & Health Plan is unfunded, there are no plan
assets for the disclosure for the Life & Health Plan for
the year.

The average duration of UAW Pension Plan as at 31
December 2018 is 15 years. The average duration of Life
& Health Plan as at 31 December 2018 is 8 years.

AEFEBEAREZE T —LF+ A
=+ —BLFEMZLERKRESFTEHRK
3,410,000/ JT °

HRASREEARES WERNL
ERMASEREAENTEEENE -

R-ZZE—-NFE+-A=+—H UAW
RAReEIN TR AI5F -R=F
—N\F+ZA=+—H ASEREI
#)F 5 AR B84 o

227



228

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REMZE TEERER (58)BRA T

Annual Report 2018 —Z — )\ FFF 7R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 81 7% # 3k fiy &%

31 December 2018 —E—\F+=-A=+—H

37. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in the Group's deferred tax liabilities

L e—

37. EERIR

AEEEERRABEREENFAZE

and assets during the year are as follows: AT
Deferred tax liabilities BEHEAE
Fair value
adjustments
Revaluation arising from  Accelerated
of  acquisition tax
investment of depreciation
properties subsidiaries Total
410
RE AAEEN niE
MEZERR ATERAE BIEHE &t
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2017 R-_E—+tE—H—H - 171,759 - 171,759
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to ERMB/ (GFA)BEZ
profit or loss during the year EEHIE 318 (75,393) - (75,075)
Exchange realignment ERAE 422 8,840 - 9,262
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+-A=1+—H 740 105,206 - 105,946
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 15 RMB B BRE LD
FEISRIFE - 4,353 - 4,353
At 1 January 2018 (restated) R-_F-N\E—HA—H
(&51) 740 109,559 - 110,299
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to ERMk/ (Gt A)BR2
profit or loss during the year BT IE
- from continuing operations - RERELEED
(note 10) (Hz10) - (41,208) 2,294 (38,914)
- from a discontinuing operation - KRBEREEEER 436 (873) - (437)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 42)  WEM B8 (ffiF42) - 426,792 54,607 481,399
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 43) HEMBAR (H1i743) (768)  (104,132) - (104,900)
Exchange realignment ERIECE (408) (8,362) - (8,770)
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZE-NF+ZA=+—H
at 31 December 2018 ZERHEAFELE = 381,776 56,901 438,677
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DEFERRED TAX (continued) 37. EBEHE(£E)
The movements in the Group’s deferred tax liabilities AEBECHEEEREERNFAZE
and assets during the year are as follows: (continued) BT (&)
Deferred tax assets EERBEEE
Losses
available for
offsetting
Revaluation against
of future  Provisions
investment Provision taxable and other
properties for LAT profits liabilities Others Total
ALK 8
REWEZ IHEEH KRERB BER
Bff B BEANZEB HitB & Hit A%t

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

At 1 January 2017 R-_E—+%—H—H 7,958 5,850 38,056 - - 51,864
Deferred tax credited/(charged) ERHA,/ (k)
to profit or loss during BaRERFIE
the year (7,958) 1,647 (13,259) - - (19,570)
Exchange realignment ELAR - 395 1,859 - - 2,254
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—tF+=A
1 January 2018 =t+—-Bk
—T-\5-F-8 - 7,892 26,656 - - 34,548
Deferred tax credited/(charged) Rzt A/ (F1K)
to profit or loss during BEZELERE
the year
- from continuing operations ~ — K BB L £
(note 10) (Mit10) = - 11,414 (1,395) (49) 9,970
- from a discontinued -KBE#IE
operation REER = - (20) - - (20)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) Rzt A/ (F1K)
to other comprehensive Hth2EMNEZ
income during the year BEHIE
- from continuing operations —REFELLER = = - - (338) (338)
Acquisition of subsidiaries g 100)-YNG
(note 42) (B15#42) - - 97,625 49,290 9,944 156,859
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AT
(note 43) (Hit43) - (7,621) (25,723) - - (33,344)
Exchange realignment EHAE = (271) 1,930 = (11) 1,648
Gross deferred tax assets RZZE-N\5F
at 31 December 2018 +ZA=+—-Hz

BUERHEERR = = 111,882 47,895 9,546 169,323
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37. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 37. BEEBIE (&)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets RAFENR ETEEHBEERAR
and liabilities have been offset in the consolidated ERGEEMBRARPEN - ATRA
statement of financial position. The following is an EBEEEHBERRVBREREM
analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for TEDH -

financial reporting purposes:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HKS$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised ~ R&RA& BBk R X A
in the consolidated statement of RERIABEFEE
financial position (269,354) (71,398)
At 31 December 2018, the Group also had tax losses RZE-—NF+A=+—H F5H
arising in Mainland China of HK$13,141,000 (2017: TR B E 4 2 T IEE1813,141,000
HK$96,615,000) that would expire in one to five years BT (ZZE—+%:96,615,000/8 7T ) A]
for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred R—ZhFANBERHERRERT R
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these M-BpRZEBEREBRFHLREE
losses as they have arisen in the companies that have Z AR MmAXNRAAEEHR ERT &
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered FIAEEN R IEE B - Bt I M RE
probable that taxable profits will be available against JERIEE FE o

which the tax losses can be utilised.
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DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rates range from 5% to 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

At 31
recognised for withholding taxes that would be

December 2018, no deferred tax has been

payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries, joint
venture and associates established in Mainland China.
In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that
these subsidiaries, joint venture and associates will
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. As at
31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences of approximately HK$32,731,000 (2017:
HK$178,300,000) was associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised.

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.
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38.

SHARE CAPITAL 38. W&
Shares B 2
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T 4
HKS'000 HK$’000
FET FET
Authorised: VERE ¢
10,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,000% & fi%
HK$0.10 each E{E0.108 L 2 @A 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRAR:
9,303,374,783 (2017: 5,519,591,000) 9,303,374,783%
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each Tt
5,519,591,0000% )
F R EE0.105 7T
2 TR 930,337 551,959

A summary of movements in the Company’s share
capital is as follows:

RATEETRAZLE AT

Number of Share
shares Share premium
in issue capital account Total
2R
BROEA BRE  RORER &%
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2017, R-ZE—t5—-A—-HB"
31 December 2017 and “E—+tFTZA=1—H
1 January 2018 k=ZZ2—-N\E—H—H 5519,591,000 551,959 609,080 1,161,039
Issue of shares (Note) BTG (H5) 3,783,783,783 378,378 1,248,649 1,627,027
At 31 December 2018 RZE—-NF+=A=+—H9,303,374,783 930,337 1,857,729 2,788,066
Note: /;/71 u%f -

On 7 February 2018, 3,783,783,783 new shares of the Company
have been issued as fully paid to AVIC International (HK) Group
Limited (“AVIC International (HK) Group”), an intermediate holding
company, as part of the consideration for the acquisition as detailed
in note 42 to the financial statements. The fair value of these shares
was HK$1,627,027,000 which was measured based on the listed
share price of HK$0.43 on that date. Accordingly, the issued share
capital and share premium account of the Company increased by
HK$378,378,000 and HK$1,248,649,000, respectively.

K- N\FZH+EH"3,783,783,783% A&
ARAFBRHEBRETTHRBEERIG R M
BER(EB)EBBERAA([TMER(F
BIEER]) AV BRERMF42fFR 2
KWEEEZ2HEMRE - ZEROZAFER
1,627,027,0008 L NiIZERETRES
fR0.43B Lt E - Bt AR A D EHITRA
K B 0 4 & Bk 9 Bl 38 11378,378,000/%8 7T &
1,248,649,0007% T °
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting held on 28 May 2014,
the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme"”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants to contribute to the
business development and growth of the Group and
to enable the Group to recruit high-calibre employees
and attract or retain human resources that are valuable
to the Group. Since the adoption of the Scheme, no
options have been granted, exercised, lapsed, cancelled
or outstanding thereunder as at 31 December 2018.

Major terms of the Scheme include:

1. The purpose of the Scheme is to provide
incentives to the participants.

2. The participants of the Scheme are any individual
being employees, officers or consultants of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries including
any executive or non-executive directors thereof
whether employed in Hong Kong or any part of
the world.

39.
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Major terms of the Scheme include: (continued)

The total number of shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme,
together with all options to be granted under
any other share option schemes of any member
of the Group, must not in aggregate represent
more than 10% of the total number of the
Shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the
Scheme. The Company may refresh this 10%
limit at any time subject to prior approval given
by its shareholders at a general meeting. The
overall limit on the total number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme, together with all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under
any other share option schemes of any member
of the Group, must not exceed 30% of the total
number of the Shares in issue from time to time.
No options may be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of any
member of the Group if such grant will result
in the said 30% limit being exceeded. As at the
date of this annual report, the total number of
securities available for issue under the Scheme is
461,959,100 Shares, representing approximately
4.97% of the total number of the Shares in issue
as at the date of this annual report.

39.

BRESE (F)
ZAT B2 EBIERBIE: (&)

AITERBZAERLZMA
B ERBEARNSEBEMAK
B QA8 ] E Ath B AR R A
Bz E AR e 31T
ZARNE R (TR0 ]) B
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TN EEZ10% ° ANA 5 7] BE
B #T5210% £ R - AR AR
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RIE AT R W E R IT6E 2 P
BERITEERE ERITER
BAREEEMKE QAR ERME
fib B AR M AT BB L M B R AT R 2
FFT & & R 17 158 8 AR ¥ i o] B B
TZBRMHBEE TERBRTRD
BTN BB Z30% - IR E%
B RAEBETMRKE QR
o] E i B AR 4 5T 81 B BB IR
BB HBE Eii30% 2 ER
BT PRI ERE N AFRA
H - iREZ S HEITIES
B AH461,959,1000%  HE R
RERBHDBEITRGBE 2L
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Major terms of the Scheme include: (continued)

The total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options (whether
exercised, cancelled or outstanding) granted or to
be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company to each eligible
participant under the Scheme in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of the Shares in issue as at the proposed grant
date.

An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme at any time during a
period of 10 years commencing on the date
which the Board may determine at its discretion
but such date shall not be earlier than three
months after the date of the grant of such option
is made.

An option granted shall remain open for
acceptance by eligible participants for a period
of 28 days from the date of the grant of such
option together with a non-refundable payment
of HK$1.00.

39.
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Major terms of the Scheme include: (continued)

7. The exercise price of an option shall be the
highest of:

(a)

(@)

the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of the grant of the option,
which must be a business day;

the average of the closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
the grant (subject to acceptance) of the
option; and

the nominal value of the Shares.

8. The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a

period of 10 years commencing on 28 May

2014 and thereafter for as long as there are
outstanding options granted and accepted
pursuant thereto prior to the expiration of the

said 10-year period and in order to give effect to

the exercise of any such options.

Share options did not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

At the end of the reporting period and at the date of

approval of these financial statements, there were no

share options outstanding (2017: Nil).

39.
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RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 86 to 89 of this annual report.

Pursuant to the articles of association of certain
subsidiaries operating as foreign-owned enterprises in
Mainland China and the relevant PRC Company Law,
the subsidiaries shall make an allocation from their
profit after tax at the rate of 10% to the statutory
surplus reserve fund, until such reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital of the subsidiaries. Part of
the statutory surplus reserve may be capitalised as
the subsidiaries’ registered capital, provided that the
remaining balance after the capitalisation is not less than
25% of the registered capital of the subsidiaries. The
statutory reserve will be reclassified to retained profits
upon the disposal of the subsidiaries.

40.
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41. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH 41. AEARFEREZEZFZENES
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING NG
INTERESTS
Details of the Group's subsidiary that had material non- RZE—tF+-A=T—HBEEA
controlling interests as at 31 December 2017 are set out ERER s ANEENB AR FERER
below: T
2017
—E—+tF
Percentage of equity interest held by RNEMEBEXBRAF
non-controlling interests of ([REME]) FEERER
REMEBEFERAR ("REME") FRAENRAEDZA DL 47.92%
2017
—E—+tF
HK$'000
TET
Loss for the year allocated to non-controlling % Bt ¥ K@M ZE FEIERAERS 2
interests of A& fifi &= KFEE (46,527)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests of BN REMEIFZERER ZKE
NI fi 2 -
Accumulated balances of non-controlling RIRE B REMmE

interests of KiEMIZE at the reporting date R R ZEER 536,193
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PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiary. The amounts

31 December 2018 =&

—N\E+=-A=+—8

41. BERFEREZEZFZENES

DR (&)

TRFABLAHBRARNOT B ER G
E-EBENSRL ARINKRERNLQFME

disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: B HL 8

REMmE KREMEE
2017
—E—LF
HK$000
FET
Revenue Wz 1,520,710
Cost of sales and total expenses SHER AN 4R (1,617,803)
Loss for the year REEIE (97,093)
Total comprehensive income for the year RE2MWEERE (26,450)
Current assets MENE E 2,205,247
Non-current assets ERBEE 403,187
Current liabilities VEIE=RE (827,341)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (662,159)
Net cash flows from operating activities KERHEEACZREREFE 563,886
Net cash flows from investing activities REZHELZHEREFH -
Net cash flows used in financing activities MELTHERACRERNEFHE (630,849)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RehBeFHERD FHE (66,963)
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42.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 7 February 2018, the Group completed the
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Motto
and the shareholder’'s loan notes (the “Acquisition”)
from AVIC International (HK) Group at an aggregate
nominal consideration of HK$2,400,000,000, of which
HK$1,400,000,000 was satisfied by way of allotment
and issue of 3,783,783,783 shares of the Company,
HK$200,000,000 was satisfied by cash at the acquisition
date and the remaining HK$800,000,000 was to be
satisfied by cash upon earlier of the following events:
(i) the Company having received the proceeds from the
disposal of its property development and investment
business, resulting in the Company having net cash
balance of more than HK$800,000,000; and (ii) the
Company having net cash balance of more than
HK$800,000,000. The payment of HK$800,000,000 was
finally made at the end of 2018. Further details of the
Acquisition were included in the circular of the Company
dated 29 December 2017.

42.

XBEat

RZT—N\F-ALH REETAHRE
P E B (&8 % B BMottoz 2
BEBTRARBRRERRE ([

£IH]|) - #%% K8 %®2,400,000,000
Bt HF1,400,000,00058 7T A
3,783,783,783% 2N A ) B 17 B2 &% K B
7777 L fE 1 - 200,000,000 JT 72 U B
E A LAR & BT # T800,000,000/%
TAREFEEUTEER (ULREEAR
BE)UBSERN: )VAARESLHEEY
FERRREEB 2EHIE  LBR
~AlBRE FE e &8 18:A800,000,000
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BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities

42. ¥EXE6t(2)

of Motto Group as at the date of acquisition were as BEZAFENT

follows:

MottofR RN E B Al BRI EE K

Fair value
recognised on

acquisition
WK B B T R SR
WATEHE
HKS’000
FET
Property, plant and equipment (note 14) M- WE R (ML 14) 320,445
Other intangible assets (note 17) HthEmEEE (Kit17) 1,842,405
Investment in a joint venture BENEIZRE 1,062
Inventories FE 571,852
Trade and other receivables JEURE 5 AR 3k I H b fE AR X 121,303
Due from fellow subsidiaries JFE UL [B K M8 A 30,024
Prepayments TE YRR 41,896
Cash and cash equivalents RekRes 73,920
Trade payables, other payables and accruals JENT B 5 BR 7 H M & ZRIE &
JEETE A (191,534)
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings AEERRER (51,925)
Contract liabilities EHBE (35,704)
Provisions and other liabilities (note 34) BEREMEE (HiE34) (120,435)
Due to an intermediate holding company JE P R IR A 7] (28,087)
Due to fellow subsidiaries NG GV (14,198)
Loan from an intermediate holding company RKEFRERAFNER (1,845,561)
Tax payable JE A B 38 (3,658)
Defined benefit obligations (note 36) EREENEAE (M it36) (7,006)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 37) EEFIEAE (Hi137) (324,540)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value EAFEFENA #HNEEFESR 380,259
Shareholder’s loan notes acquired WEREERERE 1,845,561
Goodwill on acquisition (note 16) Wig o (Hitie) 401,207
Total consideration BRE 2,627,027
Satisfied by: FANPE:VE
Cash consideration HeaRE 1,000,000
Fair value of consideration shares RERDZAFE 1,627,027

2,627,027
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 42.

The fair value of the trade and other receivables as at
the date of acquisition amounted to HK$121,303,000.
The gross contractual amount of trade and other
receivables was HK$126,906,000, of which trade and
other receivables of HK$5,603,000 are expected to be
uncollectible.

The Group incurred transaction costs for the Acquisition
of HK$21,742,000 and HK$6,952,000, respectively, for
the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018. These
transaction costs have been expensed and included in
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2018, respectively.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
Acquisition is as follows:

EBast(F)

EWE ZEREF REMEWRERRNKEE
B2 A¥{&E45121,303,0005 7T ° E Ut
EORAREMEURERNBEHN SRR
/#126,906,000/% 7T * H #15,603,000/%8
TT B FE UL B 5 BR 3 R EAth e Uk BR SR TR HB
AU [E e

AEERUBEERBEEZE-_Z—LFR
—TE-N\Ft+_A=t—HIFEE
R GRS B A21,742,00008 7T K
6,952,000/8 T - % ER 5K AL B M 1E
ABRRE YEHREE T —

FR_E-NF+ZA=+—HLEFE
REBBERRNIETHRERER -

EHC R ERMBHRME TR H
o

REEEEELNRSROTWT

HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration paid TR zReERE (1,000,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FIERGEHReRRESE 73,920
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents REBEZE-_Z-N\E+_A=+—H
included in cash flows from investing activities — IFFEIAREESH 2R G
for the year ended 31 December 2018 mEeEsReRBRSZEMEIFRE (926,080)
Transaction costs of the Acquisition included REBEE_Z—tFRZFT—N\F
in cash flows from operating activities for the TZA=+—HIEFEIA
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018 REFHZHEERELZ
WEERX U (28,694)
(954,774)

Since the Acquisition, Motto Group contributed
HK$1,341,223,000 to the Group’s revenue and
HK$84,773,000 to the consolidated loss for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning
of the year, the revenue from continuing operations
of the Group and the loss for the year from
continuing operations of the Group would have been
HK$1,483,590,000 and HK$137,223,000, respectively.

I B = IH 1% > MottoE B AN &£ B R &
E-E-N\F+_A=t+—BHILEEL
U 351,341,223,0000 T R iE & BB
84,773,000 JT °

HEFRAFRERET BIRERE
BREKEEHK 2 AFRBERKE R
SEFBEREEBZERBDHER
1,483,590,000/% 7T & 137,223,000/8
TTo
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43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. HEMBE QA
2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FET
Net assets disposed of: LECZEEFE:
Investment properties (note 15) WA (HiE15) 357,714
Properties under development and BEAMERBELEZ
completed properties held for sale [REEIEZES 2,972,892
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERRIE - 1S R E A EWAR 55,550
Prepaid taxes TR B IE 25,157
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEE 7,504
Due to non-controlling shareholders FERTB B AR 2 JEE AR R
of subsidiaries (127,621)
Due to an intermediate holding company JE P R IR A A (7,708)
Loan from the immediate holding company REEEZERAGHER
— shareholder’s loans —REEK (1,312,458)
Due to the immediate holding company JEREEERA A
— accrued interests —JEETH B (90,569)
Due to fellow subsidiaries FXNIEEL IEAG (1,147)
Loans from a non-controlling shareholder KEWE LR IEZEREERENER
of a subsidiary (830,219)
Trade payables JETE 5 BR K (94,401)
Other payables and accruals HMERNRIERETER (19,613)
Contract liabilities AHBE (349,991)
Tax payable JE AT B TR (43,965)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 37) RETIBEE (HiE37) (71,556)
Non-controlling interests PR = (482,897)
(13,328)
Outstanding shareholder’s loans and FIEECAREERREREFNE
interests disposed of 1,403,027
Exchange fluctuation reserve ME 5K Eh 114,803
1,504,502
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 71) HEWNBRARZFE (Hat11) 660,550
2,165,052
Satisfied by: ERAH:

Cash (Note) Re (M) 2,165,052
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43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 43. HEMEBAR (&)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash EHALEMNBARMNBRSRRESEER
equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as ANFBEAITHOT
follows:
2018
—E-N\F
HKS’000
FET
Cash consideration (Note) RERE (W) 2,165,052
Cash and bank balances disposed of FrEE2Re RIRITET (7,504)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents ERALEMBARINRE R
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries ReEERNEE 2,157,548
Note: The amount included cash consideration for the disposal Wi heBEeEHERESBEETRAN
of entire issued share capital of Ease Triumph of I8 & K {E762,025,000/% 7T LA MK (B
HK$762,025,000, and for the outstanding shareholder’s ERREFEBREERFENRENAE
loans and interests on the shareholder’s loans of 1,403,027,0007% 7T °

HK$1,403,027,000.

The purchaser, Shengtong, is an indirect wholly-owned BEARBREXNMESEBRA G KM
subsidiary of Hengda Real Estate Group Company E2EWMBRR REFBEMBIIREE
Limited, which currently holds 80% of the issued share BERAFS%MEEITRA  HLHE
capital of Hangfa Investment Limited and therefore is a RREME (RIBEERS2.08%EH
substantial shareholder of KXiEfi%E, a 52.08%-owned MEBAR)MEZARE - RIE LML -
subsidiary of Ease Triumph. The disposal constitutes HEBRARAMBAREAMEER
a connected transaction at subsidiary level of the Z e

Company under the Listing Rules.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 44, HEBRESHRERWT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Changes in liabilities arising from financing RMETBMEENEEEH
activities
2018 —FE-NF
Loans
from a
fellow
subsidiary/
Loans non-  Due to non-
Interest- froman controlling  controlling Due to
bearing intermediate shareholder shareholders intermediate Due to
bank holding ofa of holding fellow
borrowings company  subsidiary subsidiaries companies subsidiaries
RERR
WEAE,/
REHHE WEARZ 1
FERT ERAFAN  FERRR KWEBEARZ B HE EREZ
R R MER FERRR ERAH HEAR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FE7 FE7 FE7 FE7

At 1 January 2018 RZE-\E—A—H = 503,550 923,077 138,852 16,681 5,492
Changes from financing BERETES

cash flows 69,324  (486285)  (50,740) (4,896) (7,484)  (18,304)
Foreign exchange movement  HhE % - (17,265) (42,118) (6,335) (761) (239)
Interest expense FlEZ 3,279 15,461 - 42,163 6,948 -
Interest paid ERFE (3,279) (15,461) - (42,163) (6,948) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAR 51,925 - - - 28,087 14,198
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AT - - (830,219)  (127,621) (7,708) (1,147)

At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+-F=+—H 121,249 - - - 28,815 -
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44. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 44. FEBEREBRMETE (F)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
Changes in liabilities arising from financing METHMEENEEESS (£)
activities (continued)
2017 —E—tF
Loans Due to non-
Interest- from an Loans  controlling Due to
bearing  intermediate froma shareholders intermediate Due to
bank holding fellow of holding fellow
borrowings company subsidiary  subsidiaries  companies  subsidiaries
KBS RERZ JEf
FERIT BRARAE MWBARMN WEBRARZ T TR
R ER ER FEREE BRAT MERAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—t%5—-H—H 230,134 475,419 1,234,637 88,444 - 1,643
Changes from financing BEBLREED
cash flows (230,134) - (373,852) 45,946 - 4,726
Foreign exchange movement ~ SMNEE B - 28,131 62,292 4,462 - 49
Interest expense FEX - - - - 16,681 -
Interest paid ERFHE - - - - - (926)
At 31 December 2017 RZB—+F
+=-A=+—"H - 503,550 923,077 138,852 16,681 5,492
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45. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 45, RERPNZHE
(a) Aslessor (@ fEBHBEA
As at 31 December 2017, the Group leased its R—_FB—+&+-_A=+—8"
investment properties (note 15 to the financial REBRBLEEHEN L HER
statements) under operating lease arrangements, WEYZE (MBWMEMTE5) - &
with leases negotiated for terms ranging from 1 EHBA—ZE T4 - HABKR—
to 10 years. The terms of the leases generally also BMEKBEFPHRRES RRTE
required the tenants to pay security deposits and BFBERTMATHAREE -

provide for periodic rent adjustments according to
the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future R—E—+F+-_A=+—8"

minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable RIEEBE PRIV 2 TR U KE &

operating leases with its tenants falling due as BA) REBERE 2 RRELO &
follows: REWASEBHINNAT

2017

—E—+F

HK$'000

FHET

Within one year —FA 23,974

In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFRF (RIEEEWMTE) 30,953

After five years hF & 3,817

58,744
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45. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 45.

(continued)

(b) Aslessee

The Group leases certain of its offices, factories

and cars under operating lease arrangements.

Leases for offices, factories and cars are

negotiated for terms ranging from one to sixty-

eight years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases falling due as follows:

REHENVREE (&B)

(b) ERFEBEA

ARERBEEBORHBEE
FHRRAE BERERHA
N DT
NF—EERTNE

RZE-NF+-A=t—8"

AR AR A A] BH

BE) AEE

B ZAREORIENKARS

FEnT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —F RN 5,402 -
In the second to fifth years, FE_EERF
inclusive (BEEEMT) 16,066 -
After five years hF % 47,554 -
69,022 -
46. COMMITMENTS 46. EE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed B | BT 5E45(b) BT ¥ H A 45 & H 49 AR R
in note 45(b) above, the Group had the following Gh s REBR RS IR G AT AE -
commitments at the end of the reporting period:
2018 2017
—E-N\HF —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Contracted, but not provided for: BERT4R & R B
Plant and machinery iR 5 No 1 28 158,015 -
Property development expenditure S EL R g - 371,009
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 47.

At 31 December 2017, contingent liabilities not provided
for in the financial statements were as follows:

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H

HAREE
R-_ZE—+F+_A=+—8 TxK
PHERRELNBHEIXABBEOT

2017
—E—+F
HK$°000
FET
Guarantees given to banks for housing loans B AEEWEZERER 2
extended by the banks to the purchasers of EEREZMABITREZER
the Group's properties for a period from the FEREABERBEER ZHRE
date of loans being granted to the purchasers Z=ERERWEEEZAIL
up to the date of issuance of property title
certificates to the purchasers 104,012

The fair value of the guarantees was not significant
and the directors considered that in case of default in
payments by the purchasers, the net realisable value of
the related properties would be sufficient to cover the
repayment of the outstanding loan principals together
with the accrued interest and penalties, and therefore,
no provision for the guarantees was made in the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017.

HZERZAFELFIER MEEER
B B-EREXNTHEBDEZA
BIFER T HARHEERRZER
AR A N FEEH A B AN ST 3R - B U I R R
BE-_ZT—+F+-A=+—BLFE
ZH BRI ZERETAEE-
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48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 48. BEBIRZ
(@) In addition to the transactions described (a) KRUBHMERSBEMBL IS
elsewhere in these financial statements, the AEBRFRNGETATEE S

Group had the following transactions with related R

parties during the year:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Notes HKS'000 HK$'000
=3 FET FET
Interest income on a loan A @8 A RIRH A
to a related company BERZHMBERA (1) - 536
Interest income on loans BEA=INGIE =0
to an associate Bz R BHKA (i) 787 586
Interest expense on loans  REMBARZ
from a non-controlling R R E R
shareholder of ZHBEZ T
a subsidiary (ifi) (42,163) -
Interest expenses on loans 2K B A A% A &) A9
from an intermediate BERzMBEZ W
holding company (iv) (22,409) (38,598)
Fellow subsidiaries: CIEN =N
Sales HE (v) 160,836 -
Purchases g ) (147) -
Interest expense on loans KA B XK ERF K
from a fellow subsidiary ERzMEXH (vi) = (101,293)
Management fee ERE (vii) - (5,443)

Agency fee RIEE (vii) - (115)
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48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(a) (continued)
Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

In the prior year, the interest income was charged
on the loan to a related company at an interest rate
of 6.15% per annum.

Details of the loans to an associate are set out in
note 19 to the financial statements.

The interest expense is charged on the loans from
a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary at an
interest rate of 6% (2017: Nil) per annum.

Details of the loans from an intermediate holding
company are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements.

The sales to and purchases from fellow subsidiaries
are determined between the Group and the fellow
subsidiaries.

Details of the loans from a fellow subsidiary as at
31 December 2017 are set out in note 31 to the
financial statements.

In the prior year, the management fee and agency
fee paid to fellow subsidiaries were determined
between the Group and the fellow subsidiaries.

48. BEARSH (&

(a) (&

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

EF RFENK6NSERAH
B m AR B KA E A B
A e

A ERRRENERZHIE
BN B mERMEE19

BENME6E (ZT—tF:
E)RREME QR 2 IR
BEROERFAEMBE S H -

KRR QBN ERZFF
TBHA R 75 MR MY FE30 -

RMRARMERANHEERRE
CESUIEFNCIEEAS VRN RI S
B B[R] R M R A B o

RZF—-—+tFFTZA=1+—
B RERRHEDFHER
BB BRAM I

EF RRRWE R ANE R
BRREBDBAKEERR
MiE R EE -
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48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b) Other transactions with related parties:

(i)

(i)

(c) QOutsta

(i)

(i)

During the year, the Group disposed of its
entire 40% equity interests in an associate,
It mRFHHEE to CATIC for a cash
consideration of RMB3,839,000 (equivalent
to HK$4,388,000). Further details are
included in note 19 to the financial
statements.

During the year, the Group completed the
Acquisition from AVIC International (HK)
Group, an intermediate holding company,
at an aggregate nominal consideration
of HK$2,400,000,000. Further details
are included in note 42 to the financial
statements.

nding balances with related parties:

Details of the Group’s balances with an
associate are disclosed in note 19 to the
financial statements.

Details of the Group's balances with non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
are disclosed in note 29 to the financial
statements.

48.

BRBIRS (&)

(b)

HEB O NEMRS:

)

(i)

FA-AEEBMRF M
HE AR E AR R
PR 40% %1 - 1R
% 183,839,000 A K
® (A& #4,388,000/%
To) c#E— SEIBH R
I ERMEE19

FA-AEBAPBIER
RAFHMER(FH) &
BB ER A58
K {8 52,400,000,000/%
Too# — B BE N
WM EE42 o

HRR T 2 RIBERKR:

)

(if)

AR E R T A
2 BN SRR 10
o

AN 2 [ BT BB A B 2 FEdE
RS RG22 FEIB A B
R 29 B -
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48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 48. BEAEXRZ (&)
(continued)
(c)  Outstanding balances with related parties: (0 HEEH2REEZH: (&)

(continued)

(i) Details of the Group's balances with (i) AEEEPREZERARZ
intermediate holding companies are BRI B EREN
disclosed in note 30 to the financial E30WEE -
statements.

(iv)  Details of the Group's balances with fellow (iv) AEEEHRRWHBARZ
subsidiaries are disclosed in note 31 to the EHRZFEBRM B REW
financial statements. FE31HEE -

(d)  Compensation of key management personnel of (d) FTEEBREEAB 2@ :
the Group:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Short term employee benefits MEE BB A 2,067 2,470

Post-employment benefits ER#&wEA 24 36

Total compensation paid to key BB EEAEZ

management personnel N 48 58 2,091 2,506

Further details of directors’ emoluments are EHEEEME 2 E—FFHBEHR

included in note 8 to the financial statements. B ISR M FES o

Certain of the related party transactions in respect EF%L‘/\J:( )v) > (@i & (b) B2 & T8
of items (a)(v), (a)(vii) and (b) above also constitute Bt R ZIMERK ET R BIE14AZ FTE
connected transactions or continuing connected BLABERIAFERERS -

transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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49. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 49. £® I A% E

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of REBEHR SR zEMITAREE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting wm
period are as follows:

2018 —E-N\E
Financial assets B EE
Financial
assets at
fair value

through other
Financial comprehensive

assets at income
amortised - equity
cost investments Total
BAFEA
REHERA HM2EWEZ
HIER Y MEEE
MBEE -RERE &t
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET
Equity investments designated R AFE A
at fair value through other Ht2HlEs
comprehensive income BRI E - 54,031 54,031
Trade receivables EUWE ZER 102,711 - 102,711
Due from fellow subsidiaries FEULIR XIS /8 A A 29,566 - 29,566
Due from an associate JE Y Bk &2 A A 575 - 575
Loans to an associate M B & R EIRENE R 9,143 - 9,143
Financial assets included in FFATERNRIE Re R
prepayments, deposits and H i JEUAR B
other receivables UHBEE 36,560 - 36,560
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEE 1,191,575 - 1,191,575

1,370,130 54,031 1,424,161
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 49. £®T A% E (&)

(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of REBEHR SEcERmITAREAE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting AT (&)

period are as follows: (continued)

2018 (continued) —E-N\FE (&)
Financial liabilities BRaE

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
128 85 A AR
5l BR B9
BEaE
HKS'000
FET
Due to intermediate holding companies FET P EER A F] 28,815
Trade payables JETTE 5 AR 90,152
Other payables and accruals Hi N RIBRETER 106,822
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SFEIRITER 121,249

347,038
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49.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY  49.

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows: (continued)

EMITASE (&)

RBEMR SEF 2B TAREE
LN

2017 —E—+tF
Financial assets MKEE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through
profit Available-
or loss — for-sale
held for Loans and financial
trading receivables assets Total
BATE
FABREZ
BBEE Xk AHEHED
—RHEEE & W BR 5K BB EE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Available-for-sale investments  AJ{£ HHE KK E - - 192,728 192,728
Derivative financial instruments #7T4 &€& T A 1 - - 1
Trade receivables W E 5 BER - 76,977 - 76,977
Due from fellow subsidiaries  FEW[F X i /& 2 7] - 1,664 - 1,664
Due from an associate JIE Ui Bt = 12 A - 10,441 - 10,441
Financial assets included in AR R Rk
prepayments, deposits and H At 8 i BR 70
other receivables HBEE - 820 - 820
Financial assets at fair value & FEFABZR 25 7#%
through profit or loss BE 80,761 - - 80,761
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEE - 627,140 - 627,140
80,762 717,042 192,728 990,532
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows: (continued)

49.

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H

ERMIEDE (&)

>

RmERR SRz &M TAKREE
mr (&)

2017 (continued) —E—tF(E)

Financial liabilities BRaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
bize - S )DWiN
HI AR
M5 aE
HK$'000
T

Due to non-controlling shareholders FERTHI B A A 2 FEE IR AR R
of subsidiaries 138,852
Due to an intermediate holding company FET R EIER A A 16,681
Due to fellow subsidiaries EASIEESG) - PAS 5,492
Loans from a fellow subsidiary KERRWBRARMNER 923,077
Trade payables JERTE 5 IR 122,511
Other payables and accruals HMEMNRIBRETER 34,198
Loans from an intermediate holding company 2R (& R A B H B X 503,550

1,744,361
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50.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments, other than those with carrying

50.

EMTRZAFERAFESEH

HE

AEESMTAZERERAFE(H
FREHEEAFEAEREERIN) &I

amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are LU
as follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
REE NFEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-NF ZZT—tF ZE-N\F ZT—LF
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets MBEE
Equity investments designated &2 (& A
at fair value through other Hpp2mElas
comprehensive income R & 54,031 - 54,031 -
Available-for-sale investments A fit &£ H IR A& - 192,728 - 192,728
Financial assets at fair value ~ A FEFAEBZEZ
through profit or loss M EE - 80,761 - 80,761
Derivative financial instruments T4 & f T & - 1 - 1
54,031 273,490 54,031 273,490
Financial liabilities /B =R
Loans from an intermediate R 5 R R EMER
holding company = 503,550 = 502,961
Loans from a fellow subsidiary 2RERZME R WER
(non-current portion) (JEREEH) - 556,213 - 555,274
Interest-bearing bank FERITER
borrowings (non-current (BEREEH)
portion) 1,031 - 1,031 -
1,031 1,059,763 1,031 1,058,235
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of trade
receivables, balances with fellow subsidiaries (current
portion), an intermediate holding company (current
portion), non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
and associates, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade payables, other payables and accruals
and interest-bearing bank borrowings (current portion)
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the chief
financial officer is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement
of financial instruments. At each reporting date, the
finance department analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed
and approved by the chief financial officer and then
reported to the chief executive officer. The valuation
process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

50.

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H

EMTRZAFERAFESER
HE (&

EEEMGERARS BRESRR &
RIZEMELRR OREED)  PRZERA
A CRBED ) - B QB2 FRERAR
REtERNB 28 ST AR RIE 1R
EREMEBURERNUBEE Rk
BeFE BNESRF HtEMR
BEREFER UEFERITEROR
BEt) 2 A FEEEASS ZREER
FETERBARZRETLAREHAZ
Hio

MRS RE ARE 2 M 5HM A
BEEFTEMTARTFEAEZBREE
FeRreEBs S MEHMTE
BTAMNEBEEES Y ETHETER
MER2B-RAEHPHREFZIM
fEEMBE TTRER -HEBRER
R E MR N FE I 55 5 e
HEZZBEGETHR-

MBEERBEZAFEFABR (M
FEERBREE)XFETRENR
SHAIEMTAZ SR -
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50.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of loans from an intermediate holding
company, loans from a fellow subsidiary (non-current
portion) and interest-bearing bank borrowings (non-
current portion) have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance
risk for loans from an intermediate holding company and
loans from a fellow subsidiary as at 31 December 2018
was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices, except for PMH’s shares, which
have been estimated based on PMH's available published
financial information. The directors believe that the
estimated fair values resulting from the valuation
technique, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes
in fair values, which are recorded in other comprehensive
income, are reasonable, and that they were the most
appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

The Group invested in an unlisted equity investment
as at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil). The Group
has estimated the fair value of this unlisted equity
investment with reference to the issued prices of recent
transactions.

50.

EMIAZAFERAFESER
HE (&
R ATER SEATIHXRRE

=,
B

REFEERAFNEN KA R KK
BRARMER (GERB M) Rt 2R
TEFRCGERBBH)NRAFENIZA
EREUGH EERRERGFEH T
BMIT 2 MEFRBIARKIB SR EF
- WNZE-N\F+ZA=+—8B 'K
EEMAFREFEERQFNERLK
BRZEWE R RHE KT REL R
FfEATERK-

EFARARE 2 A ETIAR R ERE
AEREERTEZERZ KD B
TR B R TR AT A ZE TIEMBE
H-BERA RAEVHERNKRLTHE
BEERMAHEEZ A FERAREME
HENREZ A TFERRES HES
B-RBEHR HEEEZRRE-

RZE—NF+ZA=+—H F£5H
BERIELTRAKRE (ZT—tF:
|) AEBELEBRHARFHEITER
AT ELTRARENRFE-
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY  50.

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs

to the valuation of financial instruments together with a

guantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2018

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H

EWMIAZAFERAFESR
HE (&

ATAR-E—N\FR-F—tF+=
A=+ AT AKEBZEATTH
REABBERTEUBEZ DT

and 2017: Z:
Significant
Valuation unobservable Sensitivity of fair value
technique input Range to the input
BERFAHE NTEHBAREZ
fh{E & 1M [P ¢ gH BEE
31 December 2018
—E-NE+=ZA=+—H
Unlisted equity Market Issued prices HK$40 1% increase/(decrease) in
investment approach of recent issued prices of recent
transactions transactions would result
in increase/(decrease) in
fair value by HK$4,000
JELETRAIRE M5 A TR SMEITE 408 T AHRZMBEITELM
O D)1 % BB A FE
#m, Cm4)4,000% T
31 December 2017
—E-tFt+=H=+—8H
Unlisted available- Discounted Default risks 23% to 1% increase/(decrease)
for-sale debt cash flow 65% in default rate would
investments result in decrease/
(increase) in fair value
by HK$518,000
FEEMAHEED BBReRE E AR b 23% % BHRKREN CR2)1%
5 65% BERATERD S (F

H1)518,0005% 7T
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50.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value

measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial

instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

50.

D ESRFE
TRINTAEECHIAZAFEME

£ e

LAFEFABZEE:

Fair value measurement using

ERAUNTREETAVENE

EMTREZAFERAFESEH
HE (&)

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERM S EATEE BEAFTAUHBE
MR {E BWAEE wAEE
(B—-%&) (B=#&) (B=4) &t
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FE
As at 31 December 2018 R=-ZT—N\F
+=A=t+-H
Equity investments BRTFEEA
designated at fair Hiv2H &2
value through other PR A&
comprehensive income 53,642 = 389 54,031
As at 31 December 2017 R-Z—t#&
t=ZA=t-H
Available-for-sale ARHENEE
investments:
Equity investments PRI & 110,380 - - 110,380
Debt investments BEBRE - - 82,348 82,348
Financial assets at fair value IR A FEFFABHZ
through profit or loss B EE 80,761 - - 80,761
Derivative financial MESRIA
instruments - 1 - 1
191,141 1 82,348 273,490
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 50. @I B AFERLAFEZSH
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (&2
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NP ESERHEE (&)
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FRN WEGBEEENATEAEES
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no —RRFE_H2EERE REE A RS
transfers into or out of Level 3 for financial assets (2017: F=R(ZE—tF -RAMGKERER
Except for the fair value measurement of available-for- FRAER TSR A SR mE A #
sale debt investments that was transferred from Level 2 PEMNEBRENATFTEFEHE-R
to Level 3 as a result of significant unobservable input HAB=FN WEMBEEN N TE
adopted in the valuation model, there were no transfers HEAE—MRBE_fzEERE  TE
of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level BASBEBEE=R) -
2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for financial
assets).
The movements in fair value measurements within Level FA-F=MRAVFEFENEHOT
3 during the year are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HKS’'000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Equity investments designated BATEFAEMEE
at fair value through other Wz BA®ZRE,
comprehensive income/available- AHEERNIEE
for-sale investments — unlisted: —FF LT
At 1 January n—H—H 82,348 -
Transfer from Level 2 WE e A - 129,164
Addition N 389 -
Redemption FEM (51,775) -
Total losses recognised in profit or loss B REZERNEIEARE (30,573) -
Total losses recognised in other EREM DN EERA
comprehensive income EiEasE = (46,816)
At 31 December Rt=ZA=t+—~H 389 82,348

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured
at fair values as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

RZE-NEFR-_ZF—tF+-A
=+—R AEEIEEAIRAFER
ENPHEE-
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50. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 50. £€®RITEZAFERAFEER

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) HE (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NP ESERHEE (&)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: EREAFTEZEE:

Fair value measurement using
ERAUTREETAVLETE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RERMS EAXTERE EATUHE
HERE WAHE WAYE

(5—-%) (E5=%) (=) At
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FHET F#ET F#ET F#ET
As at 31 December 2018 R=Z—N\%¥
+t=ZA=t+-H
Interest-bearing bank FERITER
borrowings (FERE )
(non-current portion) - 1,031 - 1,031
As at 31 December 2017 R=-Z—+#&
+=ZA=+-H
Loans from an intermediate K B & #1502 &1 69
holding company B - 502,961 - 502,961
Loans from a fellow PN B INEIE: o
subsidiary =
(non-current portion) (3EREEHD) - 555,274 - 555,274

1,058,235 - 1,058,235
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
bank loans and cash and short term deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities, such as trade receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

As most of the Group's business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the operating units, the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk is minimal.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk relates
principally to the Group’s interest-bearing loans and
borrowings from financial institutions as disclosed in
note 35 to the financial statements. The Group mitigates
the risk by monitoring closely the movements in interest
rates and reviewing its banking facilities regularly.

51.

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H

MEEREEEREREE

AEENTIECRHIABRRRITERR
BehERFER-EeMIENER
RgERAREEN L ERHEME N
ETEEENEBMBEERAE F
MEKEZERRENEZER HE
BEREEMEL-

AEENEH TAMEENTIERRE
SNEE LR - AR AR - EE R REME
R kkERR EFS@CFALIE
BRI TR ABE BT e

SMEE PR
HRANEENABNDEBR S EER
BEHTBENLCESU 2GR E
R ARE BT A TS INE &R R
8 e

A = = B

AEE T ZAZAEERPERERME
IS BERESRMEBOT EERRE
BB ERR - AEEBBEYE
RNEEHLEMENERTEERE
PR AR AR R B o
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51.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 51. MKEREEBEEREE (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued) F=@ b (&)
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined UTERESWT B REHRT R
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate RITEFNAERBRMET GEEHE
bank borrowings at the end of the reporting period. SMEDRERREHARREENEE
The analysis is prepared assuming that the amount of SENEEFEILAREE N mER
liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period EEEJ\E\E#E*UTHK ERARIE ISR
was outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis point DI00ES BERE LR KEEER
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest Sl 2 R R A S IR AT aE &
rate risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.
Decrease/
(increase)
in loss
before tax
Increase/ from Increase/
(decrease) in continuing (decrease)
basis points operations in equity*
REFHE
REEK 2
H g m MRV RIEE REZIZ
S ORD) "L () SR *
HKS’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZZE-N\F
+=A=+—H
LIBOR mBERTTRI 2T & 100 (1,212) -
LIBOR RBERTTRIE & (100) 1,212 -
* Excluding retained profits * TBIEE 75

The sensitivity analysis on bank deposits is not presented
as the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s exposure to interest rate fluctuations on bank
deposits is insignificant.

BERRTHERNBRESNALKRZHR
$Qa%$u/uﬁ$il7¥KmeE ﬁ
RN R B A o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 51. HKEREEBEEREE (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk FE R
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy AEBERLRUNKEZRTFNE=
third parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers FHETRG - AEENHEEMEEER
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit EITEEXRINEPHFRBERRT
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances e BE ASEFEETEWHIE
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's R &SR EIL R ER I A E K -
exposure to bad debts is not significant.
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 R-E-NE+ZA=+—HWREEE
December 2018 REXPIER
The table below shows the credit quality and the TRIITKRZE-NF+_A=+—
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s H UAEEEERRAKENEES
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due ZERAXNEEERR  FEERS
information unless other information is available without HER EBREER AR E DRI
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification BHREMERBRIN URFROEERD
as at 31 December 2018. o
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
T=@A
BHEE
B 2HBRHEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
E-BE E-RB e 5K(97
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FE7T FET FET
Trade receivables* B E 5B - = - 102,711 102,711
Due from fellow subsidiaries** [ U 5] Z i & 72 7] ** 29,566 - - - 29,566
Due from an associate** JER B & A m] ** 575 - - - 575
Loans to an associate®* B E AR REMEF 9,143 - - - 9,143
Financial assets included in st ABRFUE &R
prepayments, deposits H ft e U R SR80
and other receivables HBEE
- Normal** —EF** 36,560 = = = 36,560
- Doubtful** — AR = = 46,861 = 46,861
Cash and cash equivalents ~ BR&RIBEEE
- Not yet past due —HABE 1,191,575 - - - 1,191,575
1,267,419 = 46,861 102,711 1,416,991
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51. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31
December 2018 (continued)

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the
simplified approach for impairment, information based on
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 24 to the financial

statements.

* The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due
and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial

assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, available-
for-sale investments, derivative financial instruments,
deposits and other receivables, and loans to associates,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these

instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases
of the Group’s trade receivables are widely dispersed in

different sectors and industries.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are

disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements.

51.

BEEREEREREE (&)

FERRE (&)

REZFB-NE+ZA=1—-AHREEE

RERMBEER (&)

* PAEE A A ERENERE
SR = ABEERE A KIEER
MBI RR M 24K 5 -

o FEATEN R - B b B AR R S B &
EZUBEENEEEZNRERRE
HESANKANBAENEERRSA
BIBMEREREE] - DR BHBE
ENGEEERBRRIAE]-

R-E—tFEF-A=+—HHREERE

AEBEEMMKEEE (BRATEAS
FE AHOENERE TEERTA.
me REM BRI AR AEE R E

RENEFONEERR THXZY
FTEAOMES BRRBRNZETAN
FREESR-

E%$%f§ﬁi?ﬁ?73’ﬂ&%%§ﬁ?ﬁ’ﬂ

TR S B E A EE R &
E’Jﬁﬁg EREERREREFP /X5
HHEE: Hzﬂﬂli&ﬂ%“*ﬁ EZRIAN
SERWEZERFNTPER D HRA
REXLTE BREBENLEREER
R o

7 A o B O 8 R 3 PR KA 5
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 51. B¥EREEREREE (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk D 1 R B
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using AEBFMALEERESRE TAEZE
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the cRRER ZTAEGEe/mIT AR
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial BEE(WMEKRESHERF) OB
assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows KRB EEEENHEERE -
from operations.
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between AEEMBREDEEBMNARITERR
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of RERRMBRARRPEERARNE
bank loans and loans from a fellow subsidiary and an FOURBRAENFEEMEFHN T
intermediate holding company. The Group’s policy is to H-AEBENBREREEREHE -
minimise borrowings.
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities RBEHAR REBERBETAERR
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the AR BaEIRBEROT
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:
2018
—E-N\F
3toless
Less than than
On demand 3 months 12 months 1-5 years Total
=R
EDR
REXE DSR=MEA +=@A -ZEF Rt
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FE FET FET FET FET
Due to intermediate JERREER AR
holding companies 28,815 = = = 28,815
Trade payables BB ST - 90,152 - - 90,152
Other payables and accruals ~ Ef BN HBREFTER - 77,302 - 29,520 106,822
Interest-bearing bank FERITER
borrowings = 2,079 121,358 1,036 124,473
28,815 169,533 121,358 30,556 350,262
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51.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities

as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

51. MIBEAREZEERRBE (&)

RENERRR ()

RBERAR NEBERSITHER
RN R U BAEIHMBEROT

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: (#&)
(continued)
2017
“T—+F
3 to less
Less than than
On demand 3 months 12 months 1-5 years Total
=faA
RIR
REXRE  PR=EA TZ1@A —E20E At
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FET FHET
Due to non-controlling EAMBARZ
shareholders of subsidiaries ~ FEERRER 138,852 - - - 138,852
Due to an intermediate JER R ER AR
holding company 16,681 - - - 16,681
Due to fellow subsidiaries FERRZNERR 1,002 4,490 - - 5,492
Loans from a fellow subsidiary & & [F &K B 2 Al
B - - 409,775 664,495 1,074,270
Trade payables ERBZHRT - 122,511 - - 122,511
Other payables and accruals — E {1 J& 1 508 [
B ER - 34,198 - - 34,198
Loans from an intermediate R E R RZER A AH
holding company BER - 7,553 22,660 558,186 588,399
Guarantee given to banks  mR{TIRH 2 R
(note 47) (Hiit47) 104,012 - - - 104,012
260,547 168,752 432,435 1,222,681 2,084,415




51.

AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited
REMZE TEERER (58)BRAF
Annual Report 2018 —Z — )\ 7R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B1 %8 3R & K{ st

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 51. HKEREEBEEREE (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk JR {8 = B
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of A% (5 /2 ez B A % 32 48 UK T K (B Bl 35 5
financial instruments decrease as a result of changes in BEEZIMFEeRIAQAFERENR
the levels of equity indices and the value of individual R AEEAZBEERATEFARE
securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk w2 WBEE (Kit26) Rk A FER
arising from individual equity investments included AE A2 E W S 2 RAKE (H75220)
in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss RAHEERNRE (H:20) 2 (85K
(note 26) and equity investments designated at fair TEEMEAZIRERR -ANEH LW
value through other comprehensive income (note 20) N = RN N Sl e IR I = e
and available-for-sale investments (note 20). The RATImmEGE .
Group's listed equity investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange and are valued at the quoted market price at
the end of the reporting period.
The market equity index for the following stock FARKEIRERRR 5 BT E T
exchange, at the close of business of the nearest trading BHERGIMBEREREELERFARAZ
day in the year to the end of the reporting period, and e M ERENT
its respective highest and lowest points during the year
was as follows:
31 December High/low 31 December High/low
2018 2018 2017 2017
—E-N\F &/ ZT—tF =/ &
+t=BA=+-8 —E2-N\E¥ +ZA=+—H ZE—+tF
Hong Kong - B
Hang Seng Index BEEY 25,846 25,916/25,683 29,919 30,200/21,884
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51. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 51.

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every
1% change in the fair values of equity investments and
the conversion option of the convertible bonds, with
all other variables held constant and before any impact

on tax, based on their carrying

the reporting period. For the purpose of this analysis,
regarding the equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income/available-for-sale

BRERE (&)

amounts at the end of

investments, the impact is deemed to be on the fair

value reserve and the available-for-sale investment

revaluation reserve.

BEEREEREREE (&)

TREVN EMEHEMAIZERERT
FATHRAZENGET ER®RE
HIRBANRE R Al A 75 2 A 2
FREE EAFESHE1%HNEHRE -
AT BENME HRIZQFER
AHMEERE 2 RAIRE AT HE
MIRE FERRASH N FERE LA
HEERBEEGHRED

540

Decrease/
Carrying (increase)
amount of in loss
equity before tax
investments/ from Increase/
conversion continuing (decrease)
option operations in equity*
REFHE
BAxBE, REEKZ
BREZ BREBLATE B B
REE R (Em) (R *
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FHET FHET FET
2018 —E-N\F
Investment listed in Hong Kong REE LM ZEE
- Equity investments —®BRAFEEA
designated at fair Hit2mKE 2
value through other MR &
comprehensive income 53,642 = 536/(536)
Unlisted investments ZRFEYEY
at fair value FLETEE
~ Equity investments —BATERA
designated at fair Hit2EK R 2
value through other IR ARG &
comprehensive income 389 - 4/(4)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 51. BMKEREEEEREE (£)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk (continued) BRERM ()
Decrease/
Carrying (increase)
amount of in loss
equity before tax
investments/ from Increase/
conversion continuing (decrease)
option operations in equity*
RERHE
BARZE, REEB 2
BRiEZ B 75 Al 5 48 R,
REE R (Em) (R ) *
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TFET FET T
2017 —E—+tF
Investment listed in Hong Kong M &EB EH 2 8&
- Available-for-sale investment ~ — A it H &R E 110,380 - 1,104/(1,104)
- Financial assets at fair value ~ —&ZAFEFABHZZ
through profit or loss s EE 80,761 808/(808) -
Conversion option of RTEZERZ
PMH's convertible bonds AR EH 2 Bk - - -
Conversion option of EZRERATBRRES 2
AVIC Joy's convertible bond i 1 - -
* Excluding retained profits * TREBFEN
Capital management EXRERE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

AEBEAEENEZER REEL
SEAGBREBEZRNOEN BAFRR
MERL R U REEBHEE FE
RAMBIRER-
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51.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is the interest-bearing debts divided by equity
attributable to owners of the parent plus the interest-
bearing debts. Interest-bearing debts include loans from
an intermediate holding company, loans from a fellow
subsidiary and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

51.

MREREEEERBEK (&)

EXREHE (&

AEEBRBEEEBANEG NAHE
ENRREE BREERNEHEILED
HAE -RETAABRERNGERE A5HE
AREEHEMRRIKENERS RKR
EOMEARARBEITHR - AEE T &
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods

were as follows:

BHEREEEBEREE (£)

EXREE (&)

BERRZERBERNOT

2018 2017
—E-N\F e
HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Loans from an intermediate AR EERABSNER
holding company = 503,550
Loans from a fellow subsidiary RKERRZMBARRNER - 923,077
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SFEIRITER 121,249 -
Interest-bearing debts ETEER 121,249 1,426,627
Equity attributable to owners BRARIMAEEGEER
of the parent 3,619,168 1,732,505
Equity attributable to owners BARIMAEEGER
of the parent plus the mnEr BE®
interest-bearing debts 3,740,417 3,159,132
Gearing ratio BEXRBEE 3% 45%

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

The comparative consolidated statement of profit or loss

52.

has been re-presented as if the operation discontinued

during the current year had been discontinued at the

beginning of the comparative period (note 717).

LB F

HEGABRRDEY  BURAFER
ERIMEEEBE N LB R MRRER
W& (Bat11) -
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53.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  533.

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position

of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

R R &

BRAARRBRNE®E AR BT KR

EHBFIMT

2018 2017
—B-N\F ST —t%
HKS’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB 21,673 22,424
Investments in subsidiaries WB AR ZIEE 2,297,320 863,978
Total non-current assets FnBEELE 2,318,993 886,402
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and ENFIE -EZE Rk
other receivables H b W BR 3R 2,976 370
Cash and cash equivalents RekReH 943,397 319,818
Total current assets MEEERE 946,373 320,188
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAEE
Other payables and accruals E b RIE R EFTE A 3,415 6,227
Tax payable JE B 18 98,060 -
Total current liabilities mBAERE 101,475 6,227
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 844,898 313,961
Net assets BEEFE 3,163,891 1,200,363
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITRA 930,337 551,959
Reserves (Note) & (Hat) 2,233,554 648,404
Total equity EEmEE 3,163,891 1,200,363
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B1 %8 3R & K{ st

31 December 2018 —ZE—\F+-/F=+—H

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 53. ZARQATHHEMRRE (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)
Note: Biat -
A summary of the Company'’s reserves is as follows: RABREEBEMRT
Share
premium Contributed Retained
account surplus profits Total
B0 EER AR BERF &a&t
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$°000
FET FHET FET FET
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+F—HA—H 609,080 5,243 928,851 1,543,174
Total comprehensive income  ANF 2 HE UK 54258
for the year - - (894,770) (894,770)
At 31 December 2017 and R-ZE—+4F
1 January 2018 +ZA=+—HBK
—E2-NF—HA—H 609,080 5,243 34,081 648,404
Total comprehensive income  ANF 2 E UK 5458
for the year = = 336,501 336,501
Issue of shares BT 1,248,649 - - 1,248,649
At 31 December 2018 RZT—NF
+-A=+— 1,857,729 5,243 370,582 2,233,554
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess RARZHBABHRARAAREBEEREAR
of the consolidated net asset value of Far East Aluminium (B.V.l.) BER—NANhL—F+— A=+ HE AFar East
Limited on 20 November 1991, when its entire issued share capital Aluminium (B.V.I.) Limited2 & & 277 i% AN B -
was acquired by the Company pursuant to a group reorganisation, Far East Aluminium (B.V.l.) LimitedZ 45 & & &
over the nominal amount of the Company's shares issued in FEBEANFTMEAREBREMBEIT ZRMOHE
consideration for such acquisition, net of accumulated losses of Bz YENMBRRBEFEERHEZIARR
the Company set off in the prior years. Under the Companies Act 2REE - BREBEEREEQTE-—NN—EKQF
of 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed surplus of the Company is ZENBBEETEATAHSIRTERE-
distributable to shareholders under certain circumstances.
The Company's share premium account of HK$1,857,729,000 AR _ZFE—NF+_A=Z=+—8Bz2K
(2017: HK$609,080,000) as at 31 December 2018 may be % B #E1,857,729,0008 T (ZE — L F:
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares. 609,080,000/ 7T ) AT LA B8 R AT A% 75 2\ 99 I ©
APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 54. M|z 2HALAE
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised MBHEENR-_FT-NAF=A+HALK

for issue by the board of directors on 15 March 2019.

EFeHEMRETE-
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

L EHBERE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial

years, as extracted from the published audited financial

statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set

out below. This summary is not part of the audited financial

AEEBEREMRFENEENEE AF
MIEERES AT DR HREE
BRHBHRE TEEEEEYENHE- U
EMBYFEELT B RERAEMD -

statements.
Year ended 31 December
BZ+t-A=t+-HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ZE-N§ T+t ZE-RE ZT-1Ff ZE-@OmEf
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E5) (231) (85) (E5))
RESULTS E4
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FELEER
Revenue Y & 1,341,223 - - 7,644 17,443
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BB ARA (BE) (159,025) (69,434)  (688,853) 91,710 (119,197)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrefiEe,/ (Bx) 31,893 724 (382) (29,259) (569)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FROM RE#HELE£K v
CONTINUING OPERATIONS KERR,/ (F]) (127,132) (68,710)  (689,235) 62,451 (119,766)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BREREEE
Profit/(loss) for the year from a REBRIEREERK
discontinued operation KERFH,/ (BB) 507,569 (267,833) (19,696) 21,009 125,713
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR KERMN/ (BE) 380,437 (336,543)  (708,931) 83,460 5,947
Attributable to: THALRELR:
Owners of the parent BARMEE 398,968 (288,481)  (685,842) 41,820 27,266
Non-controlling interests FRRER (18,531) (48,062) (23,089) 41,640 (21,319)
380,437 (336,543)  (708,931) 83,460 5,947
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EE -BEK
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FERER
Total assets BEBE 4514263 4,384,075  5703,073 6,417,546 8,680,613
Total liabilities BEGE (895,095) (2,112,143)  (3,176,320)  (3,085,888) (5,318,852)
Non-controlling interests FE R R - (539,427)  (553,481)  (594,124)  (578,390)
3,619,168 1,732,505 1,973,272 2,737,534 2,783,371
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